
1 

AGENDA 
STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 

Thursday, June 1, 2023 4518 Expo Cir E 
10:00 a.m.   Stillwater, OK  74075 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Declaration of a Quorum

4. Introduction of Guests

5. Consideration and Proposed Action on Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of April 26,
2023.

6. Consideration and Proposed Action on Division Reports

A. Administrative Services – Dan Ridings
Summary of present financial condition of the agency and monthly activities in the
following areas: Finance, Human Resources, Fleet Management, Data Processing and
Agriculture Law Enforcement Investigators.

B. Laboratory Services – Wade Krivanek
Summary of analytical activities, customer contacts, and other pertinent information
related to laboratory operations.

C. Forestry Services – Mark Goeller
Summary of activities and accomplishments in resource protection and rural fire
defense, forest management and regeneration, water quality, urban forestry, forestry
education and law enforcement.  Includes statistics on wildfires and law enforcement
activity and narrative of forestry program highlights for the month.

D. Consumer Protection Services – Kenny Naylor
Addresses stop sale orders on insect and disease infested crops, phytosanitary
certificates issued, insect survey summaries, pesticide registration updates, pesticide
inspections, seed program and seed laboratory updates, weights and measures reports,
scanner inspections, grain warehouses and meetings attended by division personnel.



2 

E. Animal Industry Services – Rod Hall, DVM
Addresses information and activities of staff related to control and eradication of
animal diseases affecting livestock and livestock market audits.  It also addresses
emergency response preparation and education for response to any outbreak of
foreign, emerging and/or eradicated disease.

F. Wildlife Services – Scott Alls
Summary of activities and accomplishments in wildlife damage management to
protect state resources such as agriculture, property, natural resources, and public
health and safety from wildlife damage and wildlife threats.

G. Agricultural Statistics – Troy Marshall
Addresses the current crop conditions and livestock inventory numbers.  Also
included is a report on the number of information requests received, reports released
during the previous month, reports to be released during the current month, and the
meetings attended by Division personnel during the previous month.

H. Market Development Services – Meriruth Cohenour
Summary of the accomplishments, projects and events of Ag in the Classroom,
Agritourism, Communications, Domestic Marketing (Made in Oklahoma, Made in
Oklahoma Coalition), Diversified Marketing (Farmers Market, Specialty Crop Block
Grants, Farm to School), International Marketing, Market News and Rural Economic
Development.

I. Agricultural Environmental Management Services – Teena Gunter
Executive summary that addresses Swine Feeding Operations, registered poultry
feeding operations and poultry waste applicators, National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES), plus agricultural composting facilities, and
Commercial Pet Breeders and Shelters.  Includes numbers and statistics on complaint
investigations, technical assistance contacts, inspections, enforcement/compliance
activities and seminars/meetings attended by Division personnel for the month.

J. Office of General Counsel – Teena Gunter
Summarizes activities of the division, including rules, collections, legal research,
meetings, support for programs, contracts, employment issues, open records requests,
farming and ranching incorporations, and informal and formal enforcement actions
before the Board, district court, and federal court.

K. Food Safety Services – Scott Yates
Addresses the inspection of meat, poultry, egg, and milk processing facilities to
determine compliance with regulatory standards.

L. Ag Communications and Outreach Update – Lee Benson



3 

7. Consideration and Proposed Action on Purchases/Contracts

8. Consideration and Proposed Action on Cases Resolved by Stipulations
Consumer Protection Services
5 Star Lawn & Landscape, P. O. Box 96221, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
7-Eleven, 9001 S. May, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
7-Eleven, 1201 12th Avenue N. E., Norman, Oklahoma
B & B Paint & Weed Serv., LLC, 11549 State HWY 76 N., Lindsay, Oklahoma
Madison Davis, P. O. Box 256, Owasso, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 811 N. Hazlett, Fort Cobb, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 110 N. Bridge Road, Grandfield, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 1500 N. Louis Tittle, Mangum, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 1102 N.4th, Sayre, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 211 N. 5th, Henryetta, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 1730 E. 6th Street, Okmulgee, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 303 N.  LL Males, Cheyenne, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 205 W. Broadway, Thomas, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 825 W. Ozark Street, Morris, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 8190 Council Ave., Blanchard, Oklahoma
Dollar General, 207 N. Main, Bristow, Oklahoma
Edko, LLC, 4615 Marlena Street, Bossier City, Louisiana
Tyler Enyeart, 900 W. 1st., Moore, Oklahoma
Family Dollar, 2107 Oklahoma Avenue, Woodward, Oklahoma
Family Dollar, 411 E. Main, Tuttle, Oklahoma
Family Dollar, 420 W. Main, Weleetka, Oklahoma
Family Dollar/Dollar Tree, 324 N. Eastern Avenue, Hominy, Oklahoma
Tanner Harper, 2400 S. W. 112TH, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
Quality Ranch, LLC, 4754 State Highway 76, Wilson, Oklahoma
Red Dirt Grow, LLC, 7152 E. 136 Road, Holdenville, Oklahoma
Paige Sherry, P. O. Box 1262, Wewoka, Oklahoma
Southeast Vegetation MGMT., P. O. Box 43, Brierfield, AL
Brent Thompson, 2194 CR 1375, Alex, Oklahoma
Tractor Supply Co., 5401 Virginia Way, Brentwood, Tennessee
Tractor Supply Co., 5401 Virginia Way, Brentwood, Tennessee

**Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  
As authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the 
Oklahoma Statutes, an executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in 
deliberations or rendering a final or intermediate decision in an individual proceeding 
pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures Act.” 

9. Consideration and Proposed Action on Cases Resolved by Consent Order
Agricultural Environmental Management Services
Tri-State Feeders, L.L.C, #18 Sandy Ridge Rd., Columbus, Nebraska

Consumer Protection Services
AAPEST, 2409 N. Broadway, Poteau Oklahoma
AAPEST, 2409 N. Broadway, Poteau Oklahoma



4 

**Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  
As authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the 
Oklahoma Statutes, an executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in 
deliberations or rendering a final or intermediate decision in an individual proceeding 
pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures Act.” 

10. Consideration and Proposed Action on Cases Resolved by Final Order
Consumer Protection Services
Security Pest Control, Inc., 10323 E. 50th St., Tulsa, Oklahoma
Jason Taylor, P. O. Box 70303, Tulsa, Oklahoma

**Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):
As authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the
Oklahoma Statutes, an executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in
deliberations or rendering a final or intermediate decision in an individual proceeding
pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures Act.”

11. Next Board meeting scheduled for Wednesday, July 19, 2023, at Oklahoma City.

12. Old Business

13. New Business – Under the Open Meeting Act, this agenda item is authorized only for
matters not known about or which could not have been reasonably foreseen prior to the
time of posting the agenda or any revised agenda.

14. Adjournment

*Members of the Board and staff from ODAFF may join for lunch.  Board Members, staff, and the public may
discuss program issues during lunch; no votes or action will be taken during the luncheon.



1 

OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
OF THE STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
April 26, 2023 

The Oklahoma State Board of Agriculture met in regular session at 10:00 a.m., April 26, 2023, 
in the Agriculture Building, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.  Written notice of this meeting was filed with 
the Secretary of State.  A notice was posted at the Agriculture Building 24 hours prior to the meeting 
setting forth thereon the date, time, place and agenda for the meeting and an agenda was posted on the 
agency website. 
 

Members Present: Brent Bolen 
Blayne Arthur 
Joe Farris 
Nocona Cook 

Others Present: JanLee Rowlett, Deputy Commissioner 
Michaela Lembeck, Executive Assistant 
Dan Ridings, Director, Administrative Services 
Wade Krivanek, Director, Laboratory Services 
Mark Goeller, Forestry Services 
Kenny Naylor, Director, Consumer Protection Services 
Dr. Rod Hall, Director, Animal Industry Services 
Scott Alls, Director, Wildlife Services 
Troy Marshall, Agricultural Statistics 
Meriruth Cohenour, Director, Market Development 
Teena Gunter, Director, Agricultural Environmental  

Management Services & Office of General Counsel 
Scott Yates, Director, Food Safety Services 
Lee Benson, Public Information Officer 

Mrs. Arthur called the meeting to order, and a quorum was declared. 

A motion was made by Mr. Bolen, seconded by Mr. Farris, to approve the minutes of the 
regular meeting of March 8, 2023, as presented. 

The vote was as follows: 

Bolen Aye 
Arthur Aye 
Farris Aye 
Cook Aye 



2 

The motion carried. 

A motion was made by Mr. Farris, seconded by Mr. Cook, to approve the division reports as 
submitted. 

The vote was as follows: 

Bolen Aye 
Arthur Aye 
Farris Aye 
Cook Aye 

The motion carried. 

A motion was made by Mr. Bolen, seconded by Mr. Farris, to approve the following 
purchases/contracts as submitted. 

The vote was as follows: 

Bolen Aye 
Arthur Aye 
Farris Aye 
Cook Aye 

The motion carried. 

A motion was made by Mr. Farris, seconded by Mr. Cook, to approve the Proposed Action on 
Cases Resolved by Stipulations as submitted. 

Consumer Protection Services 
Cart’s Farm & Home Supply, Inc., 919 E. Main Street, Binger, Oklahoma 
Complete Ground Care, LLC, 6800 E. Covell Road, Edmond, Oklahoma 
Dollar General, 22910 State Highway 76, Dibble, Oklahoma 
Elite Lawn Care, 8505 Gateway Terr., Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
Family Dollar, 101 East 1st., Granite, Oklahoma 
Family Dollar, 2107 Oklahoma Avenue, Woodward, Oklahoma 
James Jacobs, 1810 CR NS 223, Frederick, Oklahoma 
Orkin, 13465 Puppy Creek Rd., STE C, Springdale, Arkansas 
Redbud Pest Services, 13929 Technology Dr. STE B, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
Row Crop Ag LLC, 5721 IL 145 Road, Metropolis, Illinois 
Row Crop Ag LLC, 5721 IL 145 Road, Metropolis, Illinois 
Signature Landscape, LLC, 9600 N. Eastern Avenue, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
Sun City Farm, LLC, 179317 N. 2810 Road, Comanche, Oklahoma 
Benjamin Yost, 9008 Raven Avenue, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 

**Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  As authorized 
by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the Oklahoma Statutes, an 
executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in deliberations or rendering a final or 



3 

intermediate decision in an individual proceeding pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures 
Act.” 

The vote was as follows: 

Bolen Aye 
Arthur Aye 
Farris Aye 
Cook Aye 

The motion carried. 

A motion was made by Mr. Cook, seconded by Mr. Bolen, to approve the Proposed Action on 
Cases Resolved by Consent Order as submitted. 

Consumer Protection Services 
Heinen Brothers, Inc., 1226 104th, Rd., Blackwell, Oklahoma 
Mosquito Joe of Tulsa, 13795 S. 309th E. Ave., Coweta, Oklahoma 

**Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  As authorized 
by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the Oklahoma Statutes, an 
executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in deliberations or rendering a final or 
intermediate decision in an individual proceeding pursuant to Article II of the Administrative Procedures 
Act.” 

The vote was as follows: 

Bolen Aye 
Arthur Aye 
Farris Aye 
Cook Aye 

The motion carried. 

A motion was made by Mr. Cook, seconded by Mr. Bolen, to approve the Proposed Action on 
Cases Resolved by Final Order as submitted. 

Consumer Protection Services 
Douglas Rose, Lawn Guy, 404 Broadway, Blanchard, Oklahoma 
Douglas Rose, Lawn Guy, 404 Broadway, Blanchard, Oklahoma 

**Possible Executive Session (if approved by the required number of members present):  As 
authorized by the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act in Section 307(B)(8) of Title 25 of the 
Oklahoma Statutes, an executive session may be held for the purpose of “[e]ngaging in 
deliberations or rendering a final or intermediate decision in an individual proceeding pursuant to 
Article II of the Administrative Procedures Act.” 



4 

The vote was as follows: 

Bolen Aye 
Arthur Aye 
Farris Aye 
Cook Aye 

The motion carried. 

There is no Old business presented for the Board to take action upon.  Mr. Cook moved, Mr. 
Farris seconded, that the meeting be adjourned at 11:33 a.m.  

By 
President 

ATTEST: 
     Executive Secretary 



5 
 

APRIL 26, 2023 BOARD MEETING 
 
PURCHASES/CONTRACTS  

Administrative Services 
FY24 – OMES Central Printing - $7,000 
 
FY24- Presort Mail Services - $7,000 
 
FY24- Backpacks Embroidered with ODAFF Logo - $8,970.00 
Purchasing 345 Port Authority backpacks embroidered with the department logo as Employee Appreciation 
Day gifts for full-time ODAFF employees. This item has been selected by a department-wide vote by the 
employees and is a one-time purchase. 
 
FY24- ImageNet Consulting – $13,000 
Annual Laserfiche software maintenance (LSAP) renewal for the agency document scanning 
software. 
 
FY24 - Compsource - Rural Firefighters Workers Compensation - $171,300 
Premiums for insurance to cover the claims of injured rural firefighters. ODAFF would be in 
violation of state law. This would increase the state’s liability in the event of the injury of uninsured 
rural firefighter. Legislative directed spending. 
 
FY24 - Rural Fire Pension Fund - $92,000 
The Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System shall determine the number of persons 
who are eligible members of the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System. Upon 
adequate documentation of membership in the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement 
System pursuant to the provisions of subsection D of Section 351 of Title 19 of the Oklahoma 
Statutes, the State Department of Agriculture shall make a transfer payment from the Volunteer 
Firefighter Employer Contribution Payment Revolving Fund to the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension 
and Retirement System. The amount transferred shall equal the sum of Sixty Dollars ($60.00) 
multiplied by the number of members as certified by the System to the Department. Legislative 
directed spending. 
 
FY24 AT&T Wireless - $120,000.00 
This purchase is for the agency pooled plan cellular service. This purchase allows agency employees 
to conduct state official abroad which increases efficiency and productivity. This allows for internet 
connectivity to cell phones, hotspots and IPads. If not approved, the agency will become less 
efficient and greatly reduce agency response times and agency deliverables. This expense is vital to 
agency operations. 
 
FY24 Comdata Inc. - $1,500,000 
This purchase is for agency fuel and maintenance of the fleet. Each agency vehicle is issued a credit 
card for fuel and maintenance purposes which are tracked on a monthly basis. If not approved, the 
agency will become less efficient and greatly reduce agency response times and agency deliverables. 
This expense is vital to ensure agency operations 
 
FY24 Agency Workers Comp Insurance premium - $340,000 
Premiums for insurance to cover the claims of injured workers. ODAFF would be in violation of 
state law.  If not approved, this would increase the State’s liability in the event of the injury of 



6 
 

uninsured state employees. 
 
FY24 Onsite Security Guard Services (Prosegur Security) - $70,000 
The agency has onsite security services for building and personnel safety. Without this service 
agency property and employee safety would be placed at a greater risk daily. 
 
FY24 Bank of America – Credit Card charges - $30,000 
The State contracts with Bank of America to process credit card payments. If not approve, ODAFF 
will not be able to accept credit card payments in person, mail order or for the online store operated 
by Forestry. 
 
FY24 Federal Express - $65,000 
This purchase is a release against the mandatory statewide contract for small package delivery. This 
allows for the agency to conduct daily mail services. Without this purchase the agency would be 
unable to send packages, thus resulting in potential work stoppage of agency activities. 
 
FY24 Petroleum Traders (Bulk Fuel) - $75,000 
Forestry Services has several remote office locations with heavy firefighting equipment. Providing 
bulk fuel allows for these locations to fuel it firefighting equipment and remain in a ready status 
when dispatched. Without this purchase this could greatly reduce agency response times, thus 
putting the public and property at greater risk.  
 
FY24 National Association of State Departments of Agriculture (NASDA) - $17,000 
NASDA grows and enhances agriculture by forging partnerships and creating consensus to achieve 
sound policy outcomes between state departments of agriculture, the federal government, and 
stakeholders. Without this membership the agency would no longer be allowed to vote/approve 
NASDA policy priorities. This would weaken agency partnerships and discontinue agency 
resources; such as member leadership, regulatory expertise, political connections, white papers and 
subject matter experts. NASDA’s tactics support the strategic initiatives, which carry out the 
business objectives of our mission statement and strategic intent statement. 
 
FY24 Oklahoma Capital Improvement Authority – Bond Payments - $1,704.768 
Payments on the bond that financed the construction of the Agriculture Lab building. These 
payments are required by state law. 
 
FY24 Oklahoma Employment Security Commission – Unemployment benefits - $32,000 
This is an estimate of the claims that ODAFF would have to pay former employees who file for 
unemployment and are approved. These payments are required by state law. 
 
 
FY24 Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System – Retirees unused sick leave $100,000 
When an employee retires, they can use the balance of their accrued sick leave to “purchase” time to 
count for retirement eligibility.  These payments are to transfer the  
value of the leave to the OPERS system. These payments are required by state law. 
FY24 Oklahoma Management Enterprise Services (OMES) – Risk Management- $120,000 
Purchase of insurance for liability, vehicle, equipment, agency contents, tort and Directors & 
Officers. The agency would be uninsured and unable to fulfill its statutory mission.  
  
FY24 Oklahoma Management Enterprises Services (OMES) FICA Savings $25,000 
When an employee selects ‘Premium Conversion’ they can see a lowering of their tax base for tax 



7 
 

purposes and for the withholding of FICA.  Since the State matches FICA withholding, this results 
in a savings for the state as well.  These payments transfer that savings to EBC to administer the 
program. These payments are required by state law. 
 
FY24 Oklahoma Management Enterprises Services (OMES) - Facility Services - $365,505.72 
Service Management Agreement with OMES, OMES agrees to furnish janitorial services, 
maintenance services, and all utilities. OMES maintains the building’s existing heating, ventilating 
and air-conditioning (HVAC) system, water system, electrical system, and plumbing system. If not 
approved, laboratory operations would cease, and the agency would be unable to fulfill its statutory 
mission. 
 
FY24 Oklahoma Management Enterprises Services (OMES) – Information Technology -
$650,000 
Pursuant to the Information Technology Consolidation and Coordination Act codified at 62 
O.S.§35.1 et seq., as amended (the “Act”), OMES -ISD shall provide information technology shared 
services to each State Agency. The agency will have no computer operations and would be unable to 
fulfill its statutory mission. 
 
FY24 Oklahoma Management Enterprises Services (OMES) – OPM - $26,000 
Payment of ODAFF’s portion towards mandated Merit Protection Act. These payments are required 
by state law. 
 
FY24 Pitney Bowes – Mail Machine Lease - $20,000 
Statewide mandatory contract for leased mailroom postage equipment. Without this purchase the 
agency would be unable to fulfill its statutory mission.  
 
FY24 Oklahoma Turnpike Authority – Pikepass - $21,000 
Agency payment of toll expenses for agency vehicles which use toll roads. Without this contract, the 
agency would be unable to use toll roads.  
 
FY24 United State Postal Services (Postage) - $90,000 
Purchase of postage for the agency mail machine. Without this purchase the agency would be unable 
to fulfill its statutory mission. 
FY24 (Walnut Storage Building) - $18,300 
Storage building for agency supplies. Without this contract, the agency would be required to store 
supplies in the headquarter building, which currently is very limited with regards to storage 
capacity.  
FY24 Xerox - $78,500 
Lease of multifunction devices for agency operations, these devices are used as printers, copiers, 
scanners, faxes. Also, maintenance and supply services for agency laser printers. Without this 
purchase the agency would be unable to fulfill its statutory mission. 
 
FY24 Galt Temporary Services - $150,000 
Purchase from the mandatory statewide contract for temporary services. These individuals provide a 
variety of agency mission critical functions which allow the agency to operate in an efficient as 
possible manner. Without this purchase the agency would be unable to fulfill its statutory mission. 
 
FY24 BancFirst - $17,900 
ODAFF lockbox services. This service allows for agency deposits to be received directly by 
BankFirst staff and deposited directly into agency accounts. 



8 
 

 
FY24 Oklahoma Governor’s Office - $37,500 
This MOU will provide shared office space, furniture, and salaries for OG staff for its office in 
Washington D.C. with the support of funds provided by ODAFF. ODAFF will receive access and 
use of the facilities, subject to availability, and support from the staff in Washington D.C. 
 
FY24 Oklahoma Management Enterprise Services (OMES) Fleet Management (AVL 
services) $114,558 
This purchase is required per Governor Stitt’s executive order 2020-04, that all state agencies are 
mandated to install “Automatic Vehicle Locator (AVL)” equipment in all state-owned vehicles. This 
directive will be achieved through a “shared services agreement” with OMES Fleet Management.   
 
FY24 SHI – Adobe Subscription Services - $11,000 
Purchase of the Adobe subscription services. The agency will purchase (5) Creative Cloud licenses 
for Enterprise All Apps. We also purchased (68) licenses of Acrobat Pro DC for enterprise for 
agency staff and one Adobe Captivate license for ODAFF staff for a 12-month period. 
 
FY24 $6,000 – Asset Panda – Renewal of subscription agency inventory software system. 
This system will allow for easy asset tracking. It is a cloud-based technology that offers complete 
flexibility to manage assets for our agency. The software offers a mobile application for users and 
customizable content creation. This system will replace an outdated Microsoft Database, the system 
will allow for the migration of those assets into this new cloud-based program. 
 
FY23 $500,000 – Purchase of new cubicles for Administration, Market Development, and the 
Office of General Counsel. The existing cubicles are outdated and no longer manufactured, and 
parts are no longer available when a repair need arises. This purchase is needed to modernize the 
modular furniture within each area and to project a professional image when entering these 
workspaces. Without this purchase we will continue to use our outdated, irreparable, and potentially 
hazardous modular furniture. 
 
Agricultural Environmental Management Services 
A request for $45,000.00 
Professional Services: The AEMS Division needs to continue our contract with our consultant to 
review Nutrient Management Plans (NMP); perform duties in the areas of poultry, swine, cattle, 
Best Management Practices in compliance areas and AgPDES. The Consultant will provide 
technical assistance and reviews of other related actions as requested by the Director of the AEMS 
Division failure to hire a consultant to perform these activities will result in noncompliance with the 
laws that regulate poultry, swine and cattle industry. This is the third year of current contract. 
 
A request of $48,276 
Professional Services: Request approval to renewal, not to exceed $48,276.00 for the OSU Poultry 
Education program. The funds are appropriated dollars. The funding is for Poultry Waste 
Management training, as needed, for operators of poultry feeding operations and land applicators of 
poultry waste, to attend educational training on poultry waste management which is provided by 
Oklahoma State University through the Oklahoma Cooperative Extension Service. Failure to renew 
will result in noncompliance with the law that regulates poultry feeding operations operators and 
land applicators of poultry waste. 
 
A request of $130,900 
The AEMS Division has obtained a grant of $185,614 from the Exchange Network (EN) to expand 



9 
 

our e-Reporting for our programs. The Grant will allow AEMS to contract with an approved 
contractor company to develop a program to assist in the modernize our operations. AEMS seeks to 
contract with Ideagen to begin the development process. Ideagen is part of the Statewide contractors 
and can provide a cost-effective rate to assist the division to accomplishment the grant goals. Our 
inability to complete this project in the timeframe established with the grant funds available will 
cause the division to operate less effectively and efficiently and fill the grant requirements. 
 
A request to continue agreement with Tulsa Metropolitan Utility Authority (TUMA) $180,200 
To employ two (2) Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food and Forestry (ODAFF) 
Environmental Program Specialists with the experience, training, and qualifications prescribed by 
State or federal law or rules and regulations to prepare NMPs designed to properly manage poultry 
waste at agricultural operations and to protect water quality in the Eucha-Spavinaw Watershed. 
Failure to continue the agreement will prevent Tulsa and ODAFF to fulfill the courts mandate on 
lawsuit. 

 
CONSUMER PROTECTION SERVICES 
FY2024 South Dakota Agricultural Laboratories testing fees for pesticide samples and feed 
samples - $9,800.00 
 
FY2024 OSU laboratory testing fees for soil and water samples related to environmental 
pollution investigations - $9,800.00 
 
FY2024 Oklahoma State University Soil Fertility Research --$450,000.00 
Pursuant to 2 O.S. § 8-77.7 (A), ODAFF is required to collect an inspection fee of $1.00 per ton of 
which $0.50 per ton shall be forwarded directly to a special Soil Fertility Research Account in the 
Department of Plant and Soil Sciences of the Division of Agricultural Sciences and Natural 
Resources at Oklahoma State University (OSU) for the purpose of conducting soil fertility research 
and extension involving efficient fertilizer use for agronomic crops and forages and groundwater 
and surface water protection from plant food nutrients.  Though tonnage amounts vary each year due 
to when a crop is planted, commodity prices, fertilizer prices and the weather we use the upper 
range of inspection fees paid annually to determine the amount of $450,000.00 that could potentially 
be paid out to OSU.  However, the actual amount paid to OSU will be based on the amount of 
inspection fees paid to ODAFF. 
 
This is a statutory requirement of the Oklahoma Fertilizer Act and needs to be done to further 
research to prevent the pollution of lands and waters of Oklahoma from fertilizers. 
 
FY2024 Unwanted Pesticide Disposal Program --$350,000.00 
Pursuant to 2 O.S. § 3-82(J) (3), ODAFF is required to collect a registration fee of $210.00 for each 
pesticide or device label registered.  A portion of these fees, in the amount of $300,000.00 annually, 
shall be dedicated for conducting programs for unwanted pesticide disposal.  This amount shall be 
deposited into the State Department of Agriculture Unwanted Pesticide Disposal Fund and shall be 
dedicated for this use only.  Since not all the $300,000.00 in the funds is utilized each year they are 
then carried forward into the next fiscal year and the amount available for unwanted pesticide 
disposal in fiscal year 2024 is $350,000.00.   
 
This is a statutory requirement of the Combined Pesticide Law and needs to be done to prevent the 
pollution of lands and waters of Oklahoma from unwanted pesticides. 
 
 



10 
 

FY2024 Oklahoma State University Pesticide Program Contract Approval --$130,000.00 
Pursuant to 2 O.S. § 3-82 (B), applicators are required to be certified in a category or categories in 
which they make pesticide applications.  ODAFF administers these exams under state law and 
delegated federal authority from EPA.  Additionally, the law also requires a practical training exam 
after the written exams have been passed for certain categories such as fumigation, structural and 
general pest.  To support the certification and training program the EPA grant includes monies for 
development of study manuals specific for each exam and for a practical exam when necessary.  
Other uses of the EPA grant monies include assisting applicators, owners and farmers with 
compliance for the federal worker protection standards.  In order to comply with these requirements 
assistance was requested from Oklahoma State University (OSU) for the purpose of study manuals, 
WPS compliance support and providing a venue for the practical examination school. 
 
OSU as a land grant university has proven expertise in each of the pesticide categories and 
education that lends itself well into writing study material for the written examinations.  They also 
have a state-of-the-art training facility for practical exams that allows each applicator to experience 
many different application sites during an exam.  This has resulted in two positive outcomes for 
ODAFF.  The first is a large decrease in the number of complaints which frees up agency time and 
resources.  The second is the ability to do these exams as a group instead of individually for each 
applicator which requires fewer personnel to complete the task.  Finally, since education is one of 
the universities main purposes, they are an excellent source to provide training for the federal 
worker protection standard.   
 
Currently, ODAFF does not have the resources to develop, print and distribute study material for the 
certification and training program.  The agency also does not have enough staff to monitor all 
practical exams individually so additional staff would be necessary without OSU.  The federal WPS 
program would also be problematic without the assistance of OSU.  OSU provides a neutral party to 
review a facilities compliance with WPS and provide assistance and education to show them how to 
comply with federal law.   
 
OSU provides critical support in the pesticide program through training material and assistance that 
would be difficult for the agency to provide without additional personnel.  The loss of OSU’s 
assistance would place a great strain on ODAFF’s limited resources.  
 
FY2024 Kelly Registration System (KRS)—maintenance, ACH reimbursement and inspection 
program fees--$88,000.00 
KRS paid ODAFF for licenses, tonnage and registrations that were initially completed in the online 
system using an ACH transaction. The persons/companies later canceled the payments, so Kelly did 
not receive payment for what they had already paid to ODAFF.  ODAFF has since collected the 
money from these entities and needs to repay KRS for the overpayment.  Also, pays the fees for a 
subcontracted online inspection program for MI Corporation and the Kelly yearly maintenance fee. 
 
This money is for overpayments by KRS and needs to be returned.  We do not have an inspection 
program for field staff to use when conducting their inspections and it is the maintenance fee for our 
online program. 
 
FY2024 OSU Plant Disease and Insect Diagnostic Lab (PDIDL) --$ 25,000.00 
This is for payment to the PDIDL lab for processing of plant pest and disease samples.  This can 
include reoccurring pests such as red imported fire ant or new pests such as vascular streak dieback 
in redbud.  Sampling events may be funded by an USDA APHIS cooperative agreement but not all 
samples are funded. 



11 
 

 
Nurseries will be unable to ship plants.  Plant diseases and pest introduced into Oklahoma may 
spread throughout the state affecting crops and native plants. 
 
FY2024 GIS Programing with Oklahoma University --$43,000.00 
GIS programing would provide ODAFF with the ability to GPS hemp grower fields to provide 
required data to USDA.  It also will allow us to do a better job of collecting and reporting our 
USDA CAPS survey information under our grant programs. Finally, it will assist us in collecting 
information on sensitive crops, complaints, inspections, and licensees. 
 
Without the GIS programming we will have more difficulty meeting USDA hemp reporting   
requirements and CAPS reporting requirements. This will also limit our efficiency in sampling, 
trapping and inspections. 
 
FY2024 Verizon Wireless --$25,000.00 
Verizon is used as the main form of communication for field staff and office staff.  Additionally, 
with the Agency moving forward with online services having access to a mobile wireless for field 
staff is essential to their job duties.   
 
Without wireless there would be no way to communicate or move forward with our online system 
for inspections.  Additionally, it will slow response times to complaints including those that are time 
sensitive like human health related and environmental.  
 
FY2023 OSU Plant Disease and Insect Diagnostic Lab (PDIDL) --$20,000.00 
A plant pest emergency occurred in December with the first detection of Vascular Streak Dieback in 
Redbud trees.  ODAFF spent January and February testing trees in the positive nurseries and then in 
the remaining nurseries for the disease to prevent the further spread of infected plant material.  This 
request is to cover the sampling that has already occurred and any additional sampling through the 
year end. 
 
This will prevent infected trees from being sold to the public all of which die and also may spread to 
our native redbud trees. 
 
Computers --$37,800.00 
Updated computers are needed to replace existing computers for CPS field staff.  CPS field staff’s 
computers need replaced often due to the rugged environment that they are used in by staff.  When 
their computers fail it causes inspector down time while they get repaired or replaced.   
 
Computers are essential for us to be able to complete our work. without them inspection, licensing, 
registrations, tonnage and complaint response time will be slowed.  Additionally, communication 
with field staff and the public will be affected causing undo frustrations.  
 
Food Safety Services 
Contract employee for Dairy Services - $40,000.00 
Perform various duties at dairy plants in Oklahoma, collect milk and milk products for sampling.  
Conduct Oklahoma Dairy plant and farm state surveys for sanitation compliance and enforcement.  
If this position is not filled, then a contractor from out-of-state would have to be brought in and paid 
to do this job for the facilities to remain in compliance.   
 
 



12 
 

Forestry Services 
FY24 - $250,000 
For use of  Purchase Orders to repair firefighting equipment including but not limited to dozers, 
Bambi buckets, UTVs and slip-on firefighting units. These purchases will be for repairs more than 
$5,000 when a piece of equipment has significant issues and requires Board approval.  Justification:  
This will allow the equipment to be repaired quickly after completion of the bidding process and 
back in service for fire management activities.   
 
FY23 - $100,000 
For use of PCards & Purchase Orders to repair firefighting equipment including but not limited to 
dozers, Bambi buckets, UTVs and slip-on firefighting units. These purchases will be for repairs 
more than $5,000 when a piece of equipment has significant issues and requires Board approval.  
Justification:  This will allow the equipment to be repaired quickly after completion of the bidding 
process and back in service for fire management activities. 
 
FY23 – Transport Trucks, $832,526 (Federal Funding–SFA Response, 245 Fund) 
Purchase of five (5) Class 8 Truck Tractors that will be used to carry Type 3 firefighting bulldozers.  
These are mission critical pieces of equipment that will respond to wildfires and all-hazard 
situations throughout the entire state.  With new transports in service, OFS will be able to provide 
timely and reliable responses, limiting the threat to life and property.  The transports will be 
replacing trucks that are undersized, has excessive mileage and require frequent, costly repairs.  
Funding for this purchase will come the US Forest Service – FY20 SFA Response Grant 
($460,000), FY21 SFA Response Grant ($197,526) and the OFS Fund 245 ($175,000) as part of an 
approved budget revision. 
 
FY22 – Firefighting bulldozer, $574,121 (Federal Funding–SFA Response) 
Purchase two (2) Type 3, John Deere 650P bulldozers that will be used for state-wide wildfire 
response, suppression and mitigation activities. The horsepower and hydrostatic transmission of this 
type is well suited to the diverse wildland fuels and terrain present across all of Oklahoma.  The size 
allows for easy transport on a truck with a dovetail bed enabling access to remote locations where 
fires occur.  These dozers will be replacing a 2001 JD 650H (1649 hrs.) needing $15,000 in repairs 
and a 2001 JD 450H (1400 hrs.) needing $10,000 in repairs.  Funding for this entire purchase will 
come the US Forest Service – FY21 SFA Response Grant ($266,000) and FY22 SFA Response 
Grant ($308,121) as part of an approved budget revision. 
 
FY23 – UTVs w/ slip-on firefighting units, $64,929 (Federal Funding–SICF SFA Response) 
Purchase three (3) Polaris Ranger UTVs.  These UTVs will be replacing units that were acquired 
through the Firefighter Property Program (FFP) but are no longer in service due to age and 
mechanical issues. Each UTV will be equipped with a slip-on skid unit that can handle spot fires 
and support mop-up throughout the duration of a wildfire.  In addition, these UTVS configured with 
windshields, canopies and seatbelts can safely and efficiently transport fire line personnel to areas 
where pickups/engines are unable to access.  Funding for this entire purchase will come the US 
Forest Service – FY22 SICF SFA Response Grant ($64,929) as part of an approved budget revision. 
 
FY23 – Wildfire detection cameras, $107,800 (Federal Funding–SICF SFA Response) 
Purchase eleven (11) PTZ IP Detection Cameras.  The cameras will re-establish wildfire detection in 
eastern Oklahoma providing coverage of the 6.2-million-acre protection areas.  An early warning 
detection system is necessary for keeping fire sizes manageable and ensuring a prompt response.  
With this system in place, OFS will have the ability to detect fires 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.  



13 
 

Funding for this entire purchase will come the US Forest Service – FY22 SICF SFA Response 
Grant ($107,800) as part of an approved budget revision. 
  
FY23 - $15,000 
Aerial pesticide spray application to the seed production pine tree orchards at FTIC in Idabel.  
Aerial pesticide spray will be applied to the cone crop in our genetically improved pine tree 
orchards.  This will maximize the embryotic material filled seed in the cones collected at the 
orchards by controlling cone worms and other seed insects.  Aerial application of pesticide spray to 
the orchards will control these pests.  Justification: Without this purchase, there will be a continued 
decline in the production of genetically improved seed. 
 
FY 23- $20,000 
Purchase the pouring of a concrete pad in an existing pole barn. This purchase will be reimbursed by 
the Revegetation/National Seed Strategy Funding Grant. Justification: Numerous landowners are 
requesting seedlings grown in containers for their harsher sites and we are unable to meet the 
demand now due to the lack of infrastructure for the equipment. We have the container filling 
equipment; we simply don’t have a structure solid location to set it up.  This concrete pad will allow 
us to set up and use the container filling equipment, which in return will meet landowner needs and 
save resources and time from having to do it all by hand. 
 
FY23-$50,000 
Purchase a forklift for the Forest Regeneration Center. A forklift is required to set up equipment, 
move racks and boxes of seedlings, unload bulk soil media and fertilizers and containers from 
delivery trucks on a regular basis at the Forest Regeneration Center. The nursery currently does not 
have a forklift to manage these tasks and one must be borrowed. This purchase will be reimbursed 
by the Revegetation/National Seed Strategy Funding Grant. Justification: Without this purchase, 
staff will need to move these items by hand which would be time consuming and potentially unsafe. 
 
FY 23- $15,000 
Purchase strapping machines at the Forest Regeneration center. Strapping machines are required to 
bundle bareroot conservation seedlings at the Forest Regeneration Center. It is essential for the 
seedlings to be bundled properly and accurately for landowners and delivery procedures. The 
current strapping machine is obsolete, and the parts are no longer available. This purchase will be 
reimbursed by the Revegetation/National Seed Strategy Funding Grant. Justification: Without a 
strapping machine, the seedlings will not be bundled properly and accurately for landowners. 
 
FY 23- $10,000 
Purchase metal siding, purlin, posts and equipment door for existing three-sided pole barn at the 
Forest Regeneration Center. This will secure the building and the container filling equipment that 
will be housed inside. This purchase will be reimbursed by the Revegetation/National Seed Strategy 
Funding Grant. Justification: Numerous landowners are requesting seedlings grown in containers for 
their harsher sites and we are unable to meet the demand now due to the lack of infrastructure for 
the equipment. Once the container filling equipment is assembled, it must be housed in a secure 
building, away from weather that would affect its operation of filling containers for landowners. 
 
FY 23 - $25,000 
Upfit of two new 1/2 -ton pickups to include installation of emergency warning system, 
communication hardware, off-road capability and conspicuity striping.  Specifically, the following 
will be included: Emergency warning system – Warning lights/siren meeting NFPA standards, 
Communication hardware – Radio console and associated wiring and cabling, Off-road capability – 



14 
 

grille guard and leveling kit, and Conspicuity striping to provide for visibility while working 
incidents in hazardous/low light conditions (i.e. smoke, nighttime, roadside).  Justification: Warning 
lighting, siren and conspicuity striping to meet NFPA standards and enhance visibility during 
incident response.  Radio console installation to provide secured housing for high-value 
communications equipment.  Off-road capability equipment to facilitate efficient operation in 
routine off-road environments where brush, boulders and other obstacles are present. 
 
FY23- $30,000 
Additional contract harvesting services is needed by qualified, trained workers to lift seedlings at the 
Forest Regeneration Center (FRC).  Each year, the FRC delivers millions of seedlings to 
Oklahomans for conservation planting.  To meet the planting demands of landowners throughout the 
state, a steady supply of seedlings is required. To make sure our customers have quality, healthy 
seedlings, delivered on schedule, a trained harvesting crew is required to lift these seedlings. Some 
of the harvesting will be completed by FRC staff. However, we no longer have the inmate crews 
that we used in the past. Justification: without this purchase, we will not be able to lift the seedlings 
in a timely manner and we will fail to meet the delivery requirements for Oklahoma customers.  
 
FY 23 - $55,000 
Purchase ESRI ArcGIS Online Licenses (Federal Grant) – Justification:  This allows the OFS 
Incident Management Team and fire personnel to utilize Collector, giving our firefighters real-time 
wildland fire data exchange.  Data collected from the Collector application gives firefighters an 
advantage on fighting fires and increases overall firefighter and public safety.  
 
FY23 - $13,200 
Random and pre-hire Drug and Alcohol testing for all CDL drives OFS employees to comply with 
DOT Requirements. If we do not perform drug screening, we will not be up to DOT regulations 
with CDL drivers and keep testing throughout the fiscal year. The amount asked for will is the 
estimated cost for one-time testing of all Forestry Services employees currently holding a CDL. This 
purchase is needed for policy and procedures. 

 
Laboratory Services  
FY23 - $31,318.56 Service Contract 
Purchase of a one-year Preventative Maintenance Agreement for the HPLC-MSMS Triple quad 
6470 in the Pesticide Section to ensure continuous and consistent operation of the instrument and 
improves overall quality of the data being reported. 
Justification: Without a maintenance agreement the laboratory would not be able to verify the 
accuracy of the test results and the equipment could possibly fail rendering it unusable. 
(To be purchased by Consumer Protection Services).  (Pre-approval letter sent to Secretary Arthur). 
 
FY23 - $10,685.00 Preventive Maintenance 
Purchase of a one-year Preventative Maintenance Agreement for the ICP (Inductively Coupled 
Plasma-Optical Emission Spectrometry Unit), in the General Chemistry Section to ensure 
continuous and consistent operation of the instrument and ensures the overall quality of the data 
being reported. (To be purchased by Consumer Protection Services). 
 
FY23 - $6500.00 Service Contract 
Purchase of a one-year Service Contract for the Skalar San (Flow Analyzer) with Autosampler, UV 
Vis and Flame Photometers for the General Chemistry Section. (To be purchased by Consumer 
Protection Services). 
 



15 
 

FY23 - $7100.00 Service Contract 
Purchase of a Service Contract for the LECO Sulphur and Nitrogen Analyzer for the General 
Chemistry Section.  (To be purchased by Consumer Protection Services). 
 
Market Development Services  
FY2023 – Made in Oklahoma Showcase – facility rental - $5,000.00. 
 
FY2023 – Farm to School Formula Grant – Date of Award through September 30, 2026 - 
$964,406.00 
 
Justification: This project is entirely funded by the Farm to School State Formula Grant. This 
funding will support program efforts in the state with activities including development and 
expansion of educational resources for school cafeteria personnel and students, training and 
networking opportunities for food producers and direct consultation services for schools interested 
in initiation or expansion of procurement. In addition, the funding will support a full-time employee 
dedicated to the Farm to School program and a part-time intern as well as several contactors 
including nutritionists, chefs and former school staff with documented success with Farm to School 
programs. If this proposed expense is not approved and therefore the project is not completed, the 
State not only loses money immediately that is important to the school districts throughout the state, 
but also runs the risk of not being awarded money in the future. 
 
FY2023 – Agritourism categorical brochures – printing - $48,000.00 
Justification: It is the goal of the Agritourism Program to utilize all marketing channels to create a 
consistent brand awareness campaign and utilize these channels for seasonal promotions within the 
many categories of Agritourism. The brochure distribution program is one of the top marketing 
channels for Oklahoma Agritourism as we are able to reach hundreds of thousands of consumers 
each year. Not only are individual consumers requesting these brochures through TravelOK.com, 
but they are also distributed at festivals, tradeshows, and other events throughout the year. If this 
expense is not approved, there will be a negative impact on the ability of the Agritourism Program 
to promote and advertise the 400+ Agritourism venues in the state, resulting in an economic loss of 
those businesses and the local economy in those areas. 
 
FY2024 – Made in Oklahoma & Made in Oklahoma State Fair Store bags – cost share basis - 
$15,000.00 
 
FY2024 – Agreement with Oklahoma Tourism and Recreation Department to promote the 
Agritourism industry through the development of consumer marketing campaigns. - $35,000.00   
Justification: The Agritourism program is entering a partnership with Oklahoma Tourism and 
Recreation Department (OTRD) as part of our marketing plan for FY2024. As a part of this 
partnership, Agritourism gets to use their existing marketing channels including free ads in their 
guides, website presence, travel show co-ops and brochure inventory, warehousing, and distribution. 
If this proposed expense is not approved, we will lose an opportunity to share in a campaign that 
gains exponentially more reach than we could obtain on our own. OTRD already has the channels 
set up and by not partnering we would be looking at well over $100,000 to replace what they can 
give us in ad placement, website presence and Search Engine Optimization. We have evaluated the 
warehousing and postage costs; this alone would be over $50,000 in hard costs and does not include 
the advertising and marketing part of our agreement. 
 



16 
 

FY2024 – Agreement with Discover Oklahoma, Oklahoma Tourism and Recreation Department, for 
the promotion of Agritourism venues through the development and production of an advertising 
campaign on Discover Oklahoma television shows. - $15,000.00   
 
FY2024 – Renewal of contract with Freestyle, graphic design firm, for Year 4 of 4 to work with the 
Agritourism program in creating promotional and print items to further promote the program and 
help establish continuity with advertising and marketing pieces. - $30,000.00   
 
Justification: This is Year 4 of 4 for the graphic design firm that maintains the Agritourism brand 
while developing new print materials, refreshing website content, strategically updating social 
media channels and assisting with social and website analytics. It is the goal of the Agritourism 
Program to utilize all marketing channels to create a consistent brand awareness campaign and 
utilize social channels for seasonal promotions within the many categories of Agritourism. If this 
expense is not approved, there will be a negative impact on the ability of the Agritourism Program 
to promote and advertise the 350+ Agritourism venues in the state, resulting in an economic loss of 
those businesses and the local economy in those areas.   
 
FY2024 – Agreement with Food Export Association of the Midwest USA (Food Export – Midwest) 
for membership to provide small and medium size food and agricultural companies’ access to 
international markets through a variety of exporter programs and to increase volume and value of 
agricultural exports from the region in represents. - $7,000.00 
 
FY2024 – Addendum with Oklahoma State University for Year 4 of 4 - Viticulture and Enologist 
Extension Specialist – Project funded entirely by the Viticulture and Enology Center Development 
Revolving Fund Grant - $70,000.00 
 
Justification: This project is entirely funded by the Oklahoma Viticulture and Enology Center 
Development Revolving Fund. This employee will coordinate an annual grape management course, 
create online grape management and wine making classes, write grant applications and research 
vineyard and viticulture projects as needed. The employee will also assist grape growers and wine 
makers through field days, correspondence, and site visits. If this proposed expense is not approved 
and therefore the project is not completed, the State not only loses money immediately that is 
important to the grape and wine industry through the economic impact, but also runs the risk of not 
being awarded money from the Oklahoma Viticulture and Enology Center Development Revolving 
Fund in the future.  
 
 
 
 

 



Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, 
Food & Forestry 

June 1, 2023, Board Report 

Administrative Services

A‐1



Administrative Services – Investigative Services

A‐2



Administrative Services

A‐3

• Fiscal Year 2024 Budget
• Preparing workpapers & reports
• Meeting with divisions
• Establishing purchase orders

• New Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB 96) pronouncement
• New reporting requirement for Subscription Based 
Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA)
• Effective Date ‐ 7/1/2022 (fiscal year 2023)
• Primarily software
• Requires long term agreements to be capitalized

• Vacant Accountant position
• Three more vehicles were recently retired/surplused 
due to age, condition, and high mileage



A‐4
Note: The amounts above include fund 700, Commodity Storage Indemnity 
Fund, which had a balance of $11,305,528 as of 4/30/2023.

Available Cash at Month End per Allotment Budget & 
Available Cash Report Fiscal Year 2020‐2023

Months Ending: July 2019 – April 2023

$2
5.
3

$2
1.
9

$2
1.
0

$1
9.
1

$1
9.
4

$1
9.
8

$1
9.
9

$1
9.
9

$1
9.
9

$2
0.
7

$2
1.
3

$2
2.
2

$2
0.
9

$2
7.
5

$3
4.
3

$2
5.
6

$2
4.
7

$2
9.
3

$2
8.
7

$2
8.
9

$2
9.
8

$2
9.
0

$2
6.
5

$2
6.
5

$2
7.
3

$2
8.
2

$3
2.
4

$3
3.
0

$3
0.
3

$3
0.
9

$3
1.
1

$3
1.
5

$3
1.
9

$3
1.
8

$3
2.
0

$3
1.
3

$3
2.
3

$3
2.
3

$3
1.
7

$4
1.
4

$4
3.
0

$3
5.
5

$3
2.
7

$3
1.
8

$3
3.
4

$3
3.
1

$3
4.
1

$3
5.
9

$3
5.
6

$3
5.
7

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

$50

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Avg

D
ol
la
rs
 in

 M
ill
io
ns

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023



Administrative Services ‐ Finance

A‐5

 Cash balance as of 4/30/2023 was $35.6 million 
compared to $31.3 million as of 4/30/2022.
 Increase of $4.3 million from the prior year and is primarily 
attributed to the following:
 Increase in appropriations and appropriated cash for 
increases in legislative directed payments

 Increase in revenue
 Timing of payments



A‐6

Total Revenues, Expenses, Transfers In & Out
July 2022 – April 2023

$18,014,305

$39,369,720

$57,384,025
$54,123,654

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

July 22 ‐ April 23 ‐ Revenues July 22 ‐ April 23 ‐ Expenses

Revenues Appropriations Expenses Transfers Out



Total Revenue by Month 
July 2019 – April 2023

A‐7

$1
.9

$1
.9

$0
.9

$0
.7

$1
.8

$1
.3

$1
.3

$1
.1

$1
.9

$1
.7

$1
.2

$2
.8

$1
.5

$1
.6

$2
.7

$1
.6

$0
.6

$5
.6

$1
.6

$0
.8

$2
.2

$2
.2

$2
.1

$1
.6 $1

.8 $2
.0

$1
.3

$2
.4

$1
.3

$1
.7

$2
.3

$1
.3

$0
.8

$1
.5 $1
.6

$2
.2

$1
.1

$2
.3

$1
.6

$2
.1

$2
.1

$1
.6

$1
.2

$1
.7

$1
.1

$2
.0

$1
.8

$2
.7

$1
.8

$1
.8

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Average

$’
s i
n 
M
ill
io
ns

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

Note: November 2020 includes a $4.2 million pass thru 
payment from Oklahoma Emergency Management 
payable to the US Forest Services for the 2018 Oklahoma 
fires.



Revenue By Division July 2022 – April 2023

A‐8Note: Clearing fund, 79901, is not included in the above table.

Division  April 2023 Revenue

Fiscal Year to Date 
Thru 4/30/2023 

Revenue
Admin. Svcs. 150,650.05                369,933                    
General Counsel 2,325.00                    37,245                      
AEMS 10,999.00                  160,802                    
Stats ‐                            
Forestry 318,665.98                2,258,549                 
Animal Ind. 138,742.80                1,141,657                 
Mkt. Dev. 153,209.81                1,383,471                 
CPS 606,447.60                8,111,627                 
Wildlife 12,500.00                  121,850                    
Food Safety 453,625.15                3,485,680                 
Ag. Lab 45,684.00                  851,495                    
DIVISION TOTAL  (see division receipts graph below) 1,892,849.39             17,922,308               

‐                            
Commodity Storage Indemnity 20,103.22                  174,737                    
Appropriations 3,095,517.00             39,369,720               
AGENCY TOTAL 5,008,469.61             57,466,765               

OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND FORESTRY
PROGRAM REVENUE SUMMARY

4/30/2023



Revenue By Division July 2022 – April 2023

A‐9

$369,933
$37,245 $160,802 $0

$2,258,549

$1,141,657
$1,383,471

$8,111,627

$121,850

$3,485,680

$851,495

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

$5,000,000

$5,500,000

$6,000,000

$6,500,000

$7,000,000

$7,500,000

$8,000,000

$8,500,000

$9,000,000

ADMIN. 
SVCS.

GENERAL 
COUNSEL

AEMS STATS FORESTRY ANIMAL 
IND.

MKT. DEV. CPS WILDLIFE FOOD 
SAFETY

AG. LAB

Fiscal Year to Date Thru 4/30/2023 Revenue Note: Clearing fund, 79901, is not included 
in the above table.



Administrative Services ‐ Finance

A‐10

• Revenues (excluding appropriations) for July 2022 
thru April 2023 were $18 million, compared to $16.3 
million for the same period last fiscal year.

 This is an increase of approximately $1.7 million
 Primarily due to an increase in federal 
reimbursements
 Additional funding
 Timing of payments received



Total Expenses by Month 
July 2019 – April 2023

A‐11

$3
.0

$6
.8

$4
.0

$4
.6

$3
.0

$2
.7

$3
.3

$3
.0

$3
.0 $3
.3

$1
.9

$4
.5

$3
.6

$2
.1

$7
.0

$2
.8

$2
.9

$2
.8 $3

.3

$2
.6 $2

.9

$4
.2

$7
.0

$3
.5

$2
.6

$3
.6

$2
.2

$3
.5

$7
.5

$3
.9

$3
.6

$3
.2

$2
.5

$3
.9

$3
.5

$5
.4

$3
.1

$4
.0

$3
.9$4
.1

$3
.7

$1
2.
6

$7
.1

$5
.6

$2
.6

$4
.8

$4
.3

$4
.0

$5
.2 $5
.4

$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

$12

$14

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Average

$’
s i
n 
M
ill
io
ns

FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023

Note1 : Forestry ‐ April 2021 includes a $4.2 million pass thru payment from 
Oklahoma Emergency Management payable to the US Forest Services for the 
2018 Oklahoma fires.

Note 2: Forestry  ‐ Fire Operational Grants totaling $4,000,991 were paid out 
in September 2021.

Note 3: Forestry  ‐ Fire Operational Grants totaling $8,369,050 were paid out 
in September 2022.

Note 4: Administration ‐ Legislative directed payments for incorporated 
municipalities affected by the extreme weather between 2/7/21 & 2/21/21 
totaling $4.5 million were paid in fiscal year 2023.



Administrative Services ‐ Finance

• The expenses for July 2022 – April 2023 were $54.1 
million  
• This is an increase of $14.8 million compared to the prior 
year and was due to the following:
• Increases in fiscal year 2023 legislative directed payments for:

• OSU College of Veterinary Medicine 
• Fire Operational Grants 

• $8.4 million paid out to Oklahoma fire stations
• Increase of $4.4 million from the prior year.

• 80/20 Rural Fire Operational Grants
• Payments to incorporated municipalities affected by extreme 
weather events during February 2021
• $4.5 million paid out 

• Timing of payments
A‐12



FY 2023 Total Expenses 
by Month with Budget Year

A‐13

$2.83

$1.02
$0.31 $0.17 $0.38 $0.00 $0.31 $0.05 $0.01 $0.04

$1.28

$2.57

$12.30

$6.92
$5.25

$2.61

$4.51
$4.29 $3.97

$5.16

$4.11
$3.73

$12.62

$7.09

$5.63

$2.62

$4.82
$4.33

$3.98

$5.19

$0.00 $0.00$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

$14.0

Ju
l‐2

2

Au
g‐
22

Se
p‐
22

O
ct
‐2
2

N
ov

‐2
2

D
ec
‐2
2

Ja
n‐
23

Fe
b‐
23

M
ar
‐2
3

Ap
r‐
23

M
ay
‐2
3

Ju
n‐
23

$’
s 
in
  M

ill
io
ns
 

19 20 21 22 23

Budget Year

Note 1: Forestry  ‐ Fire Operational Grants totaling $8,369,050 
were paid out in September 2022.

Note 2: Administration ‐ Legislative directed payments for 
incorporated municipalities affected by the extreme weather 
between 2/7/21 & 2/21/21 totaling $4.5 million were paid in 
fiscal year 2023.



Employee FTE Totals 
Fiscal Year FY 2006 – FY 2023

A‐14

467
458 459 452

441

412 408
395 388

372
352

337 336 336 342 343 343
353

 ‐

 50.00

 100.00

 150.00

 200.00

 250.00

 300.00

 350.00

 400.00

 450.00

 500.00

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

Em
pl
oy
ee

  (
FT
E)

Fiscal Year Note: FTE listed for Fiscal Year 2023 was based 
on the FTE as of 4/30/2023.



Appropriations 
FY 2018 ‐ thru April 2023

A‐15

$22.5

$24.8

$29.4

$27.0

$31.5

$39.4

$2.0 $2.0
$3.5 $2.9

$0.0 $0.0
$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 thru
4/30/2023

$ 
‘s
 in

 M
ill
io
ns

Appropriation Transfers In Appropriation Transfers Out

Note 1: Legislative directed payments to OSU are processed quarterly from operating expense accounts for fiscal year 2022 & 2023.



Administrative Services – Commodity Storage Indemnity

A‐16

Commodity Storage Indemnity
Investment Report
As of April 30, 2023

Investments with Office of State Treasurer
  Cash  Management Account:  $11,305,528

FY‐2023 Receipts
 

Current Month   YTD
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐            ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

New ‐                       ‐                                  
Interest 20,103                 174,737                          
Reinsurance ‐                                  
ODAFF Support Services (50,000)                           
Recovered Salvage ‐                       ‐                                  
Elevator Salvage ‐                       ‐                                  
Matured Long Term Investments ‐                       ‐                                  

           ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐            ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

TOTALS 20,103                 124,737                          
        ===========         ================



A‐17

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food & Forestry
Monthly Budget Report ‐ Budget Year 2023

As of April 30, 2023
Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Budget to Actuals for Budget Year 2023 thru April 30, 2023

 Object 
Code   Account Description 

 Annual 
Budget   Expenditures 

 Encumbrances & 
Pre Encumbrances 

 Available 
Budget 

511 Salary Expense                 18,874,528  13,024,687  7,609,494  (1,759,652) 
512 Insur.Prem‐Hlth‐Life,etc       5,973,536  3,601,688  134,367  2,237,481 
513 FICA‐Retirement Contributions  4,735,708  3,104,181  ‐  1,631,527 
515 Professional Services          3,100,583  1,305,505  1,570,694  224,384 
519 Inter/Intra Agy Pmt‐Pers Svcs 30,000  20,227  23,707  (13,934) 
521 Travel ‐ Reimbursements        328,702  158,774  ‐  169,928 
522 Travel ‐ Agency Direct Pmts    365,898  263,131  6,272  96,495 
531 Misc. Administrative Expenses  1,178,520  701,773  101,479  375,268 
532 Rent Expense                   686,033  443,273  207,443  35,317 
533 Maintenance & Repair Expense   1,415,108  760,623  244,837  409,649 
534 Specialized Sup & Mat.Expense  1,585,410  701,352  273,234  610,824 
535 Production,Safety,Security Exp 201,456  61,844  ‐  139,612 
536 General Operating Expenses     300,860  91,157  ‐  209,703 
537 Shop Expense                   603,831  396,232  88,111  119,488 
541 Office Furniture & Equipment   3,170,652  660,723  778,112  1,731,817 
542 Library Equipment‐Resources    932  108  ‐  824 
543 Lease Purchases                1,703,720  1,419,561  278,747  5,412 
544 Livestock‐Poultry              ‐  10,053  ‐  (10,053) 
546 Buildings‐Purch.,Constr,Renov. ‐  9,080  ‐  (9,080) 
552 Scholar.,Tuition,Incentive Pmt ‐  250  ‐  (250) 
553 Refunds,Idemnities,Restitution 20,000  ‐  ‐  20,000 
554 Program Reimb,Litigation Costs 5,265,453  10,400,558  3,107,936  (8,243,041) 
555 Pmts‐Local Gov't,Non‐Profits   15,953,116  9,313,234  1,650,177  4,989,705 
559 Assistance Pymts to Agencies   8,248,687  2,250,000  750,000  5,248,687 
561 Loans,Taxes,Other Disbursements ‐  294  ‐  (294) 
564 Merchandise For Resale         140,000  ‐  94,900  45,100 
601 AFP Encumbrances ‐  ‐  812,698  (812,698) 
810 Req Only ‐  ‐  781,068  (781,068) 

Operating Totals 73,882,733      48,698,305     18,513,277             6,671,152       



A‐18

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food & Forestry
Monthly Budget Report ‐ Budget Year 2023

As of April 30, 2023
Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Budget to Actuals for Budget Year 2023 thru April 30, 2023

 Class 
Funding   Class Fund Description 

 Annual 
Budget   Expenditures 

 Encumbrances & 
Pre Encumbrances 

 Available 
Budget 

19201 GRF ‐ Duties ‐  ‐  0  (0) 
19211 Carryover 683,679  34,169  238,761  410,749 
19301 GRF ‐ Duties 37,146,198  24,167,286  7,574,321  5,404,590 
20500 Rural Fire Defense Eqp Rev Fd 140,000  ‐  134,629  5,371 
21000 Agriculture Revolving Fund 22,629,010  14,036,307  8,144,409  448,294 
22500 Enhancement & Diversificatn Fnd 250,000  43,667  126,476  79,857 
23000 Okla Pet Overpopulation Fund 13,000  13,000  ‐  ‐ 
23500 Animal Friendly Revolving Fund 13,000  2,000  11,000  ‐ 
24000 Unwanted Pesticide Disp Fund 350,000  68,306  281,694  ‐ 
24500 Rural Fire Revolving Fund 800,000  373,827  426,173  ‐ 
25600 Ok Viticulture Enology Revl Fd 350,000  32,148  97,587  220,264 
26200 Poultry Grading Revolving Fund 1,049,479  684,234  277,748  87,498 
28500 Milk & Milk Prod Inspec Rev Fd 379,817  218,797  100,363  60,657 
28600 Ag In The Classrm Educ Rvlv Fd 24,000  ‐  6,272  17,728 
28700 Healthy Food Financing Revl Fd 100,000  6,667  3,333  90,000 
42000 Specialty Crop Federal Funds 690,000  339,276  626,697  (275,973) 
43000 Farm and Ranch Stress Alliance 500,000  264,071  218,814  17,116 
43500 Local Food for Schools Co‐op 350,000  ‐  245,000  105,000 
57604 Duties 8,414,550  8,414,550  ‐  0 

Totals 73,882,733  48,698,305  18,513,277  6,671,152 



B1 
 

JUNE 2023 BOARD REPORT 
AGRICULTURE LABORATORY SERVICES 

(March and April 2023 Activities) 
 
 
QUALITY MANAGEMENT SECTION: (Daniel Tripp, QA Manager) 
 
The QA Manager completed the Inorganic Section’s Internal Audit and is now working with the 
Food and Dairy Section performing validations on the newly installed autoclave.  The autoclave 
validations ensure that the autoclave is capable of sterilizing contents exiting the chamber under 
the cycle’s settings/parameters. 
 
PT Results 
 
The routine distribution of quality control samples to respective sections of the Laboratory 
continued. Collection and submission of data to the respective study groups for statistical analysis 
was conducted. 
                                                               
 

 
 
 
 
The QA Manager is continuing to conduct autoclave validations for the Food and Dairy Section 
for the month of April. 
 
PT Results 
 
The routine distribution of quality control samples to respective sections of the Laboratory 
continued. Collection and submission of data to the respective study groups for statistical analysis 
was conducted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

100%

0%

General Chemistry

# Analytes Passed

# Analytes Failed

General Chemistry 
# Analytes Results Received 27 

# Analytes Passed 27 
# Analytes Failed 0 



B2 
 

 

 
 
 
INORGANIC SECTION: (Elena Lyon, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory Scientist IV) 
 
In March the Section completed 199 samples consisting of 943 determinations, with the following 
breakdown: 
 

March 2023  Inorganic Breakdown  
Customer Samples Determinations 
OCC 122 1098 
LMFO 55 330 
Pollution 22 64 
   
Total 199 1492 

  
 
 

 
 
In April the Section completed 180 samples consisting of 1356 determinations, with the following 
breakdown: 

100%

0%

General Chemistry

# Analytes Passed

# Analytes Failed

General Chemistry 
# Analytes Results Received 24 

# Analytes Passed 24 
# Analytes Failed 0 



B3 
 

 
    
                                          April 2023  Inorganic Breakdown 
Customer Samples Determinations 
OCC 98 882 
LMFO 76 456 
Pollution 6 18 
Total 180 1356 
   

   
 

 

 

 
 
Both sample digestors stopped working. The Section is  trying to determine the cause and is 
planning to send both digestors for repair before looking at purchase options. 
 
 
 
DAIRY/FOOD SAFETY SECTION: (Sharon Swyear, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory 
Scientist IV) 
 
The month of March was a typical testing month and three dairies were not tested. 
 
The isolated colonies from the Campylobacter investigation have been sent to the Nebraska Health 
Department for whole genome sequencing and we are waiting on those results.   
 
The Section tested twenty-six meat samples and four meat plant water samples this month. 
 
The new autoclave has been installed and the Section is working on sterilization validations for 
the different types of media being prepared.  Bids have been sent out for a new electronic somatic 
cell counter.  The existing somatic cell counter is no longer supported by the manufacturer and the 
last repair used refurbished parts.  

65%

34%

1%

April 2023
Determinations Breakdown

OCC

LMFO

Pollutio



B4 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
The month of April was a typical testing month.  Five dairies were not tested for the month and an 
additional one is dry. There are a total of 67 dairies that the Section tests and six have closed this 
year. 
 
Sharon Swyear attended the National Conference of Milk Shippers Bi-annual Conference in 
Indianapolis, April 2nd-7th.  At the conference, state regulatory agency delegates, the FDA and 
industry delegates work together to approve legislation regarding the milk program.  New methods, 
language changes, and up-dates to current methods are introduced and voted on during the 
conference. 
 
 

0

500

1000

1500

Jan March May July Sept. Nov.

Total Determinations

CY 21

CY 22

CY 23

$11,770.00

$4,026.00
$0.00

$10,604.00

Revenue Breakdown      Actual Invoiced

Billed by I.L.

Other

Unbilled

0

500

1000

1500

Jan March May July Sept. Nov.

Total Determinations

CY 21

CY 22

CY 23

61

3 8

Dairy Farms

Completed In-house

Completed Out of State

Not Completed

0



B5 
 

 
 

 
 
SEED SECTION: (Tori Gillispie, Agriculture Services Administrator I and Wade Krivanek, State 
Seed Program Administrator) 

Activity in the Seed Section remained normal for the month of March.  Records indicate a total of 
164 samples were received for testing.  Crop types continue to consist mainly of corn, sorghum, 
soybean, peanuts and spring grasses.  Most samples were taken by CPS inspectors following up 
on carry over seed needing updated germination tests.  There were no Seed Law violations 
discovered. 

The Section successfully completed proficiency testing for Non-mechanical Seed Count on Foxtail 
Millet through the Association of Official Seed Analysts.  

The Oklahoma Crop Improvement Association (OCIA) held their quarterly Board of Directors 
Meeting at the Oklahoma Department of Agriculture. Crop updates from growers indicate that the 
states certified wheat crop remains in poor condition in nearly all areas of western and panhandle 
regions due to the drought.  However, central and northern areas have seen great improvement and 
indicated they have cut more wheat this year than the previous years.  It is still uncertain what to 
expect as far as quality for certified wheat seed production.  Concerns remain that many certified 
fields in the state will not meet OCIA standards, primarily for purity content and test weight which 
can influence seed vigor. 
 
In April the Section received a total of 119 samples.  Seeds being analyzed consisted primarily of 
sorghum, soybean, corn, cowpeas, and summer grasses.  Currently, there have been no quality 
issues discovered pertaining to summer crop seed.  However, the Section received a certain variety 
of peanuts that failed to germinate.  The analyst conducted different seed vigor testing, sand and 
soil, to determine the cause.  The outcome of the tests determined most of the peanut seeds were 
weak and failed to germinate.  Necessary action was taken to inform the grower.  There were seed 
tag violations discovered on two different seed lots.  A total of 15-30 pounds of bermudagrass 
seeds were placed under stop sale due to test date expiration.  All of the infractions have since been 
remedied and released from stop sale. 

$6,402.00

$1,034.00
$0.00

$11,319.00

Revenue Breakdown      Actual Invoiced

Billed by I.L.

Other

Unbilled

58

3
5

Dairy Farms

Completed In-house

Completed Out of State

Not Completed

0



B6 
 

 
Brenda Gilbert performing sand test on foundation peanuts. 
 
 
SEROLOGY SECTION: (Pete Bourns, Laboratory Scientist IV)  
 

March 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3-year Summary of Samples Analyzed 

Year Brucellosis Pseudorabies E.I.A. 

2022 450 45 6 

2021 402 38 15 

2020 382 46 6 



B7 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

April 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se

pt
em

be
r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
De

ce
m

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne

N
um

be
rs

 o
f S

am
pl

es
 

EIA SAMPLES ( 3 Year trend ) 

0
2,000
4,000
6,000
8,000

10,000
12,000

Ju
ly

Se
pt

em
be

r

N
ov

em
be

r

Ja
nu

ar
y

M
ar

ch

M
ay

N
um

be
rs

 o
f S

am
pl

es
 

PSEUDORABIES SAMPLES ( 3 Year trend ) 

2022-2023

2021-2022

2020-2021

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se

pt
e…

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
…

De
ce

m
…

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne

N
um

be
rs

 o
f S

am
pl

es

BRUCELLOSIS SAMPLES ( 3 Year trend )

2022-
2023

3-year Summary of Samples Analyzed 

Year Brucellosis Pseudorabies E.I.A. 

2022 218 132 9 

2021 849 227 7 

2020 828 292 4 



B8 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
GENERAL CHEMISTRY SECTION: (Johnathan White, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory 
Scientist IV) 
 
March was a very productive month for the Section, with 1449 determinations, completing 333 
samples and continued exceeding our goal of 1000 determinations per month.    
 
We have re-incorporated most of the fertilizer testing to our work load.  It was discovered that the 
muffle furnace used for total phosphate analysis had failed and are waiting on delivery of a new 
unit. All other analyses are being conducted; this will only impact a small number of samples.  
 
The Section is currently analyzing a mixture of feed and fertilizer samples but are anticipating a 
slight decrease in overall sample numbers as the Section starts to see more fertilizers over the next 
few months. This is being coordinated with CPS staff. 
 

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se

pt
em

be
r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
De

ce
m

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne

N
um

be
rs

 o
f S

am
pl

es
 

EIA SAMPLES ( 3 Year trend ) 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

N
um

be
rs

 o
f S

am
pl

es
 

PSEUDORABIES SAMPLES ( 3 Year trend ) 

2022-2023

2021-2022

2020-2021

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

Ju
ly

Au
gu

st

Se
pt

e…

O
ct

ob
…

N
ov

e…

De
ce

…

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

u…

M
ar

ch

Ap
ril

M
ay

Ju
neN

um
be

rs
 o

f S
am

pl
es

BRUCELLOSIS SAMPLES ( 3 Year trend )

2022-
2023



B9 
 

Turn around time was 15.31 days and is staying under the Section’s 18-day target. The Section 
continues to hit an internal target of samples being run within a week of receiving for most 
analyses. 
 
Overview of Section numbers for the month: 
 

 Feed Fertilizer Lime Total 

Samples Received 232 79 7 318 

Samples Completed 265 64 4 333 

Determinations 1225 1498 26 1449 

Violations 133 6 0 139 

Violation % 10.86% 303% 0.00% 10.15% 
 
 
In April the Section continued to maintain productivity, and was able to make 1210 
determinations, completing 259 samples.  The Section continues exceeding their goal of 1000 
determinations per month.  The ability of our staff to perform multiple roles and their willingness 
to step-up and do what is needed has allowed for the success of the Section.  John Holden from 
the Inorganic Section provided some assistance with grinding samples which has allowed us to 
keep up with our other duties. 
   
On May 8th a new lab tech will start and the Section will be back up to prior staffing numbers. 
 
We have restarted all of our current fertilizer and lime analysis so we are providing all of the 
services we are set up for at this point.  Hopefully we will be able to add back in some analysis 
that was cut due to staffing and prior equipment issues before the end of summer (heavy metals 
in fertilizers by ICP). 
 
Our turnaround time was 16.43 days so we are staying under our 18 day target.   
 
Overview of Section numbers for the month: 
 

 Feed Fertilizer Lime Total 

Samples Received 176 64 6 246 

Samples Completed 203 51 5 259 

Determinations 1014 162 34 1210 

Violations 82 16 0 98 

Violation % 8.09% 9.88% 0.00% 8.10% 
 
 



B10 
 

PESTICIDE SECTION: (Usha Pandey-Kadel, Environmental/Chemical Laboratory Scientist 
IV)     
 
Two chemists and the supervisor attended the Agilent “Back to Basics” seminar which was held 
in Oklahoma City. The Section completed and submitted the proficiency test results (AAPCO 
Program) for formulation analysis and continues with routine work.  
 
In the month of March, the Section completed 29 samples. Below is the table showing the number 
of samples, tests per sample, and determinations (Det.) per sample with turnaround times (TAT). 
The average TAT for this month is 65 days. 
 

 
Number Test Det. 

Average TAT 
(days) 

 Average Residue 
Turnaround Time: 27 days 
 
Average Formulation 
Turnaround Time: 100 days 
 
Average Hemp Turnaround 
Time:6 days 
 
 

IFA Soil 8 11 42 26  

Organic Act 3 3 3 19  

Concentrate 11 22 25 96  

Tank mix 3 6 13 152  

Hemp 2 2 2 6  

Proficiency Test 2 4 7 44   

 
 
 
 
 
The Section received 30 samples for March with most of the samples received for Residue 
Analysis (see Fig A). The Section also received one service sample (vegetation) from OSU for 
glyphosate residue analysis. 
 

                 
 
Fig A. Pie charts representing the number of samples received by type (left) and matrix (right) 

27%

43%

13%

10%
3%

Samples Received by Type

Formulation Residue Hemp IFA Other

20%

37%13%

20%

7% 3%

Samples Received by 
Matrix

Concentrate Soil Hemp

Vegetation Tank Mix Water

Totals 
# of Samples # of Tests # of Determinations 

29 48 92 



B11 
 

 
Fig B. Graph showing the number of samples received by the section each month.  
 
This month, the Section completed 92 determinations and with most of the determinations on the 
IFA soil samples.  
 

 
Fig C. Graph showing the number of determinations completed each month. 
 
 
In the month of April, the Section completed 23 samples. Below is the table showing the number 
of samples, tests per sample, and determinations (Det.) per sample with turnaround times (TAT). 
The average TAT for this month is 31 days. 
 

 
Number Test Det. 

Average TAT 
(days) 

 Average Residue 
Turnaround Time: 27 days 
 
Average Formulation 
Turnaround Time: 71 days 
 
Average Hemp 
Turnaround Time:6 days 
 
 

Residue 
Vegetation 9 25 122 33  

Residue Swab 2 4 20 44  
Residue Soil 6 8 34 13  

Organic Act 1 1 1 19  

Concentrate 3 6 9 71  

Hemp 2 2 2 6   

 
 
 
 

0

50

100

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2020

3 Yr Avg

2021

2022

2023

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2020

3 Yr Ave

2021

2022

2023

Totals 
# of Samples # of Tests # of Determinations 

23 46 188 



B12 
 

The Section received 28 samples for the month of April. Most of the samples received were for 
Residue Analysis (see Fig A).  
 

 
 Kandy Ferry receiving and verifying information on hemp samples. 

 
 

                 
 
Fig A. Pie charts representing the number of samples received by type (left) and matrix (right). 
 
 
 

14%

46%

14%

14%

4%
7%

Samples Received by Type

Formulation Residue Hemp

IFA Other Organic Act

7%

43%

14%

18%

7%
7% 4%

Samples Received by Matrix

Concentrate Soil Hemp

Vegetation Tank Mix Water

Pesticide, Other



B13 
 

 
Fig B. Graph showing the number of samples received by the Section each month.  
 
In April the Section completed 118 determinations with most of the determinations were on residue 
vegetation samples.  
 

 
Fig C. Graph showing the number of determinations completed each month. 
 
 
OKLAHOMA BUREAU OF STANDARDS: (William Krivanek, Metrologist I)  
 
The following is a workload summary for the Oklahoma Bureau of Standards from March 1st 
through 31st.   
 
The Section had several personnel changes take place since late February. Amanda Kramer 
resigned her position and William Krivanek accepted the position as  Metrologist I.  William will 
attend training with National Institute of  Standard and Technology (NIST) and  Southwest 
Assurance Program (SWAP) Meet, which will take place during the fall months. William is 
currently being trained by Richard Gonzales. The Bureau has posted a new metrologist position 
for hire at this time.  
 
The Section is currently in a state of suspended accreditation due to the changes in personnel. The 
Section has been reaching out to clients and informing them that for the time being, the Section 
will not be able to provide accredited calibration results or accredited certificates. In some 
instances, clients have been inclined to cancel their appointment with the Section due to 
accreditation purposes. Clients have inquired as to when the Bureau will be regaining its 
accreditation status, and can resume performing accredited calibrations. The Section is expected  
to regain accreditation as soon as possible after newly acquired personnel receive the required 
training from NIST. 

0

50

100

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2020

3 Yr Avg

2021

2022

2023

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

2020

3 Yr Ave

2021

2022

2023



B14 
 

 
Month # Fees % of Fees # Standards % of 

Standards 
Out-of-State Customers 1  $100.00  0.43% 1 0.08% 

In-State Customers 6  $23,195.00  99.57% 1,286   99.92% 
Totals 7  $23,295.00  100% 1,287 100% 

 
Echelon Total Fees not Charged # Working Days Lead Time to 

Next Available Date for 
Calibration 

Mass I / II $220.00 0 
Mass III $0 0 
Volume $0 0 

 
 

 
 
 
The following is a workload summary for the Oklahoma Bureau of Standards from April 1st 
through April 30th. 
 

$0

$5
0,

00
0

$23,295
$0

$29,758

Revenue Generated

Revenue Comparison 2022 March

2023 February

March 2023

0 500 1000 1500 2000

1287

137

1800

# of Artifacts Calibrated

Artifacts Comparison 2022 March

2023 February

March 2023

0 50 100 150

85
25

142

Certificates Issued

Certificate Comparison
2022 March

2023 February

March 2023



B15 
 

The Section did not complete any appointments during the month of April, therefore did not 
accumulate any revenue for the month. This is entirely due to accreditation being in a suspended 
status,  until newly acquired personnel can receive required training from the National Institute of 
Standards and Technology (NIST).  
 
The Section has hired Termelia Hogg, as a Metrologist and she will begin working on May 8th. 
Termelia will be sent to NIST for training at the earliest opportunity that is available. Richard 
Gonzales was a previous Bureau employee who has temporarily come back on contract  to provide 
instruction and hands-on training. This will ensure that the new staff will be prepared and able to 
perform appointments in the future, as well as being able to return to a heavier workflow when 
accreditation is back in place.  
 

 
Pictured above: Richard Gonzales and William Krivanek are calibrating a weight cart in the 
Bureau’s large Mass III laboratory. 



B16 
 

 
Pictured above: Eli Klimek is performing a test on a test measure in the Bureau’s volume 
laboratory. 
 
 

Month # Fees % of Fees # Standards % of 
Standards 

Out-of-State Customers 0 $0 0% 0 0% 
In-State Customers 0 $0 0% 0 0% 

Totals 0 $0 0% 0 0% 
 

Echelon Total Fees not Charged # Working Days Lead Time to 
Next Available Date for 

Calibration 
Mass I / II $0 0 
Mass III $0 0 
Volume $0 0 

 



B17 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 

 
Wade Krivanek 
Laboratory Director 
Laboratory Services Division 
  

$0

$5
0,

00
0

$0
$23,295

$24,247

Revenue Generated

Revenue Comparison 2022 April

2023 March

April 2023

0 50 100 150

0
85

148

Certificates Issued

Certificate Comparison
2022 April

2023 March

April 2023

0 500 1000 1500 2000

0

1287

1722

# of Artifacts Calibrated

Artifacts Comparison 2022 April

2023 March

April 2023



FEED SAMPLES 232
FEED DETERMINATIONS 1225
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 133

FERTILIZER SAMPLES 79
FERTILIZER DETERMINATIONS 198
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 6

LIME SAMPLES 7
LIME DETERMINATIONS 26
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

PESTICIDE SAMPLES 29
PESTICIDE DETERMINATIONS 92
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

MEAT SAMPLES 0
MEAT DETERMINATIONS 0
VIOLATIONS 0

INORGANIC LAB SAMPLES 199
DETERMINATIONS 1492

STATE-FEDERAL VET. LAB. SAMPLES 501
STATE-FEDERAL VET. LAB. DETERMINATIONS 926
NUMBER POSITIVES 1

SEED SAMPLES 164
SEED DETERMINATIONS 176
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

BUREAU OF STANDARDS CERTIFICATES 85
NUMBER OF STANDARDS CALIBRATED 1287
FEE CHARGES $23,295.00

DAIRY SAMPLES 422
DAIRY DETERMINATIONS 777
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 5

TOTAL SAMPLES 1718
TOTAL DETERMINATIONS 6199
TOTAL POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 145

BOARD REPORT
AGRICULTURAL LABORATORY SERVICES

MARCH 2023 ACTIVITIES

B18



FEED SAMPLES 176
FEED DETERMINATIONS 1014
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 82

FERTILIZER SAMPLES 64
FERTILIZER DETERMINATIONS 162
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 16

LIME SAMPLES 6
LIME DETERMINATIONS 34
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

PESTICIDE SAMPLES 23
PESTICIDE DETERMINATIONS 188
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

MEAT SAMPLES 0
MEAT DETERMINATIONS 0
VIOLATIONS 0

INORGANIC LAB SAMPLES 180
DETERMINATIONS 1356

STATE-FEDERAL VET. LAB. SAMPLES 359
STATE-FEDERAL VET. LAB. DETERMINATIONS 524
NUMBER POSITIVES 0

SEED SAMPLES 119
SEED DETERMINATIONS 125
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 0

BUREAU OF STANDARDS CERTIFICATES 0
NUMBER OF STANDARDS CALIBRATED 0
FEE CHARGES $0.00

DAIRY SAMPLES 172
DAIRY DETERMINATIONS 640
POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 9

TOTAL SAMPLES 1099
TOTAL DETERMINATIONS 4043
TOTAL POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS 107

BOARD REPORT
AGRICULTURAL LABORATORY SERVICES

APRIL 2023 ACTIVITIES

B19



C-1 
 

OKLAHOMA FORESTRY SERVICES BOARD REPORT 
 
Division Activities from April 6, 2023 – May 12, 2023 

Serving Oklahoma by conserving, enhancing, and protecting our forests and natural resources for present 
and future generations.  The Forestry Services board report is formatted to reflect the priorities of the 
National Cohesive Wildland Fire Management Strategy, which include Resilient Landscapes, Fire Adapted 
Communities, and Wildfire Response. 

 
RESILIENT LANDSCAPES 
 

URBAN AND COMMUNITY FORESTRY PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS - Improving 
the Forests Where We Live 
 
Program Highlights 
 
Oklahoma Garden Clubs 
On April 5th Oklahoma State Garden Club Representatives brought the 2023 
Smokey Bear-Woodsy Owl Poster Contest finalists from across the country 
to the Agriculture Building.  The finalist’s posters were ranked, and the Grade 
1 – 5 National poster contest winner was selected.  Urban Forestry 
Coordinator Mark Bays, Education Coordinator Tony Pascall, and Information 
Representative Keith Merckx helped with the judging and the winning 
posters were announced through the National Garden Clubs. 
 
Master Naturalists 
On April 8, the Oklahoma Master Naturalists Training Program was held in 
Oklahoma City at the OSU Extension office. Participants from across the state 
heard from Mark Bays on the benefits and services trees in our communities 
provide. 

 
NSU 
On April 18th Forester Riley Coy presented for Earth Day at Northeastern State University in Tahlequah about Urban 
Forestry and how faculty and students can get involved. 
 
Oklahoma City National Memorial 
In preparation of the 28th Anniversary and Remembrance Ceremony of the bombing of the 
Alfred P. Murrah Federal Building, Mark coordinated the Survivor Tree seedling giveaway with 
Steve Bieberich of Sunshine Nursery, and staff and volunteers from the Oklahoma City 
National Memorial.   
 
Riley, Mark, Forest Management Chief Craig Marquardt, and Keith Merckx helped sort and 
prepare seedlings from the Survivor Tree for the giveaway on April 19.  Riley, Mark, and Keith 
were on hand to help volunteers and Memorial Foundation staff hand out over 325 seedlings 
following the Remembrance Ceremony.  Individuals registered the planting location before 
receiving their seedling.   
 
 
 
 



C-2 
 

Tree Decay Workshop 
OFS co-hosted a Tree Decay Workshop with the Oklahoma Community Forestry Council April 21st – 22nd at Tulsa 
Community College’s downtown campus.  Over 35 arborists from Oklahoma, Arkansas and Kansas were on hand to learn 
from experts on various decay fungi within trees, what causes them and how they impact structural integrity.  Part of the 
workshop included an outdoor demonstration at Woodward Park of specialized equipment including a Resist-o-graph and 
Sonic Tomography that allows the operator to map exactly where internal decay is in trees.   

 
Tree Risk Assessment Qualification (TRAQ) Training  
On May 2nd - 5th  OFS Foresters Connie Robinson and Evan Long attended Tree Risk Assessment Qualification training in 
Georgia.  The session taught necessary skills and qualified the students to perform tree risk assessments on public lands. 
 
Oklahoma Gardening  
The Oklahoma Gardening film crew was on hand to film the TRAQ’s outdoor demonstration.  The segment aired the 
weekend of May 6th – 7th.  See the link to the segment here: Oklahoma Gardening Tree Decay 
 
Outdoor Classroom  
On May 3rd and 4th Riley Coy and Chris Mask presented forestry topics at the Piedmont Outdoor Classroom event which 
was attended by approximately 200 4th grade students. Tree density and forest management were the topics presented 
utilizing a Project Learning Tree exercise called Every Tree for Itself. 

 
Grant Writing Workshop 
On May 9th, the Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group (OMAG) 
hosted a Grant Writing Workshop at the Moore Norman Technology 
Center.  As many as seventy people representing 47 cities and towns 
were on hand to hear from state and federal agencies on different 
grant opportunities available.  Mark Bays presented on the Urban & 
Community Forestry Grant Program sponsored by OFS.  He also 
introduced a new funding program that will be available in the fall for 
tree planting in disadvantaged and lower income communities. 
 
 
 
 

 
OCFC UP With Trees  
On May 11th Foresters Riley Coy and Mark Bays attended the quarterly meeting of the Oklahoma Community Forestry 
Council at Up With Trees in Tulsa. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=B3dGAFPMwO0


C-3 
 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
FORESTRY EDUCATION 
 

Project Learning Tree 
On April 3rd, Education Coordinator Tony Pascall, Forest 
Management Chief Craig Marquardt, Urban Forestry Coordinator 
Mark Bays, Forest Management Coordinator Dieter Rudolph, and 
Service Forester Evan Long trained every Pre-K teacher and 
assistant in Broken 
Arrow Public Schools 
on Project Learning 
Tree.  Now, over 100 
teachers are trained 
and ready to teach 

their students about the importance and function of the forest. 
 
On April 8th, Tony trained twelve Early Childhood Educators on Project 
Learning Tree’s Trees & Me curriculum.  
  
On April 13th, Tony went to Duncan Elementary School for their Ag Day event 
and taught about the life of a tree and the importance of healthy forest 
management to over 180 students 
 
On April 22nd, Tony staffed a booth at Scissortail Park’s Earth Day event lead 
by OKC Beautiful.  Over 300 people visited the booth receiving educational 
seedlings and information about tree care. 
 

On April 27th, Tony taught several classes at Duncan Middle School about the value 
of forests and sustainable forest management.  Approximately 150 students 
attended the classes. 
 
On May 8th, Tony and GIS Specialist Chris Mask went to McAlester Early Childhood 
Center to teach approximately 200 Kindergartners about tree growth and the 
importance of trees as a part of their Native American Heritage Day.  Smokey Bear 
was also present to assist with delivering a fire prevention message. 
 
On May 10th, Tony had a booth at the 5th Green School Summit at Terra Verde 
Discovery School in Norman.  Over 100 students and teachers from Green Schools 
around the state learned how they could bring resources from Project Learning 
Tree and OFS back to their home school. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



C-4 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
SafeStayOK.gov 
Approval of the .gov domain is complete. The request for acquisition of that domain was made through the office of the 
state Chief Information Officer. The .com, .org., and .net domains have been acquired and will redirect to the .gov domain 
once that is in place. Further planning and implementation of the project is now moving forward. 
 
Circle Mountain Fuels and Fire 
Information Representative Keith Merckx is completing post-production of a video highlighting the effectiveness of 
hazardous fuels mitigation in Oklahoma.  Just weeks after OFS mitigation efforts were completed on Circle Mountain south 
of Bartlesville, the area experienced a wildland fire which was successfully stopped when it hit the treated area. Interviews 
were conducted with emergency management officials, the fire chief, and residents whose property/homes were spared 
due to the OFS mitigation efforts. 
 
Turkey Mountain Prescribed Burn 
Keith and GIS Coordinator Chris Mask were on hand to document prescribed burning at the Turkey Mountain Urban 
Wilderness Area in Tulsa. They shot video both on the ground inside the fire and from the air with a UAS.  Clearance to 
shoot the video with the UAS was obtained from R.L. Jones municipal airport. This footage will be included in future videos 
as well as the Fuels Mitigation Story Map which is nearing completion. 
 
COMMUNITY FIRE ASSISTANCE 
 
The Community Fire Assistance Program assisted numerous fire departments with equipment issues during the 
reporting period.  Two notable successes are shown below.  Maramec Fire Department received title to the 2002 
Stewart & Stevenson 2.5-ton 4x4 shown below after converting and placing it into service as a wildland firefighting 
engine. We passed title on the truck to the Fire Dept. this month. The green fire truck shown below is a 1993 Pierce fire 
engine that was acquired from the military this month.  This engine will soon be placed with a rural fire department. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FOREST REGENERATION CENTER/FOREST TREE IMPROVEMENT CENTER 
 
Before the Regeneration team wrapped up this year's seedling sales, the staff was able 
to partner with the Garfield County Conservation District and USDA—NRCS and Farm 
Service Agency in Enid, OK for a great community outreach event. The four-hour event 
help to promote over 2,000 seedlings being sold to local landowners to help meet 
conservation needs and provided information to numerous landowner participants' 
requesting information for future conservation projects.  In all, it was a successful 
event that helped the Forest Regeneration Center push the total number of seedling 
orders to over 700 orders statewide this harvest season.  
 
 



C-5 
 

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE EASTERN AREA OFFICES 
 
NORTHEAST AREA 
 

 Forest Protection Highlights 
From April 1st through May 12th, the Northeast Area had 63 
fires which burned 5,591.6 acres.  NE Area Rangers also 
assisted with fires outside of the Protection Area during the 
reporting period.  Matt Waldrop and Dakota Green 
completed S-230 Single Resource Boss training held in 
Broken Bow.  Joe Leak and Dusty Ryals completed S-215 Fire 
Operations in the Wildland Urban Interface training in 
Broken Bow on April 15th – 16th.  Cole Hix and Craig 
Longshore conducted interviews for the Park Hill Forest 

Ranger I position on May 3rd.  Billy Riggs and Cole Hix attended the L-280 Followership to Leadership 
training at the Arkansas River Valley Wildland Fire Academy.    
 
Prescribed Burning 
NE Area Rangers along with Rangers from East Central Area 
conducted the first prescribed fire within the City of Tulsa.  
They conducted the prescribed fire on April 12th and burned 
12 acres on the property.  Additionally, through April and 
May NE Area Rangers assisted with mechanical hazardous 
fuel reduction at Turkey Mountain.  

 
Other prescribed fire activity in the Northeast Area included 
burning 138 acres in Adair County.    
 
 
 
Forest Management/Program Highlights 
Connie Robinson and Evan Long organized and assisted 
with several forest educational programs during the 
reporting period.  They conducted the NE Area FFA 
regional forestry competition at Flint Ridge on April 4th.  
Connie hosted two educational presentations, one each 
for Caney Valley Conservation District and Jay Elementary 
School. These educational presentations covered topics 
for Earth Day and Fire Education for a combined total of 
675 children in attendance.  Evan assisted with a training 
that helped educators with Broken Arrow Public Schools 
System teach about forest ecology and conservation using 
the Project Learning Tree Book.  Evan assisted with the 
Job Readiness Career Competition in Tulsa as a judge for 
the horticulture event.  Evan and Connie also attended 
the ISA TRAQ Training in Georgia.  Connie participated as 
member on 2023 SAF Certification Exam Committee for 
two days to set standard of performance for SAF Exam.  
Connie assisted five landowners last month and Evan assisted  
seven landowners regarding tree health and management options. 
 

 Travis Garrison & Smokey at Jay’s Earth Day event 



C-6 
 

EAST CENTRAL AREA 
Forest Protection Highlights: 
 
Since the last board report date of March 31, 2023, the East Central Area has extinguished 14 fires which burned 1,996 
acres with an average fire size of 142 acres.  Five (5) primary structures at a total value of $500,000 were threatened by 
wildfire but protected by OFS during suppression activities. 
 
Prescribed Fire:  
 
- East Central Rangers completed prescribed fires for eight private landowners, treating a total of 1,141 acres.  Four (4) 
prescribed burn plans were completed covering 694 acres.  
- East Central Rangers also assisted with the prescribed burn on Units 1 and 2 at Turkey Mountain in Tulsa. 

 
 
East Central Area Forest Management Highlights: 
 
- East Central rangers assisted with the fuels mitigation project at Turkey Mountain in Tulsa. 
- During the reporting period one new forest stewardship plan was completed on a total of 339 acres. 

 

 
 



C-7 
 

Information / Education Highlights: 
 

East Central Area foresters and rangers participated in local events that included the Old Timer’s Day in Monroe and Kid’s 
Fishing Derby’s in Pittsburg and Haskell County.  This is a community event that helps get school-age children outdoors 
and highlights recreational opportunities available to them. 

 
Foresters Eddie Woods and Tommy Frampton assisted with the SE District FFA forestry judging contest at Beaver’s Bend.  
They, along w/ East Central Area Rangers also set up and ran the Kiamichi Tech FFA forestry judging contest at Talihina.  
Eddie also set up and ran the State FFA and 4-H forestry judging contests. 

 
Eddie also participated in the Blue Thumb Q&A in McAlester and water quality monitoring and the SAF field day at 
Pushmataha WMA. 

 
EC also set up an OFS booth at the Simply Ag event in McAlester which is an educational event for both adults and children 
that highlights agriculture and its’ commodities in SE Oklahoma. 

 

 
 

Personnel update: 
 
The Quinton unit Ranger vacancy was filled by EC’s newest ranger Brett Boland on April 10, 2023. 

 
Since the last board report, EC has had another ranger position vacated.  Drake Smith, who hired on in January in the 
Adamson unit, left OFS employment for a law enforcement position in Atoka county. This vacancy is currently posted and 
OFS is accepting applicants for the position. 

 
OSU NREM Capstone update: 
 
OSU students completed their senior capstone forest management plans and presented them to the landowners, OSU 
professors, and OFS foresters Caleb Fields and Riley Coy on May 3rd.  The students gained valuable, real world experience 
through this project and received positive feedback from all involved.  Discussion is in progress regarding OFS foresters 
helping to provide even more guidance to OSU capstone students in the future.  Thank you to Dr. Ryan Desantis and the 
students for involving OFS and for all their hard work in putting together the plans for the landowners. 
 
Safety / Training Highlights: 
 
When not fighting fire or conducting prescribed burns, OFS employees also attend training to enhance their firefighting 
knowledge, skills, and abilities.  New employee, Brett Boland, completed S-130/S-190/L-180 in order to provide a presence 
on the fireline in support of wildfires and prescribed fire activities.  These courses train new firefighters in basic firefighting 
skills. 

 



C-8 
 

An assortment of OFS rangers are also currently attending S-212 Wildland Fire Chainsaws, S-290 Intermediate Wildland 
Fire Behavior, S-390 Introduction to Wildland Fire Behavior Calculations, and L-280 Followership to Leadership at the 
Arkansas River Valley Wildland Fire Academy in Russellville, AR to advance their roles in wildland fire and prescribed fire.   

 
This year the academy offered courses for wildland firefighters from all wildland fire agencies ranging from 4 to 40 hours 
in length. Each course is taught by instructors from state and federal agencies, allowing the academy to provide unique 
experiences as well as a wealth of professional knowledge and abilities to each course.  OFS has several rangers serving in 
instructor roles at the academy. 

 

 
 

 
Ongoing Issues: 
 
- Filling vacancies, retaining employees, new Class A CDL requirements, and new employee training will be our most 
pressing issues.  A recurring theme within the past several years are employees leaving employment with OFS to seek 
higher paying jobs elsewhere.   

 
- On a positive note, OFS has been in discussion with ODOT and other state forestry agencies regarding Entry Level Driver 
Training (ELDT) requirements.  These federal requirements were implemented in February 2022 and require CDL 
applicants to take training that consists of theory and behind-the-wheel training.  This is a 5-week course and costs ran 
from $4,800-$5,800 per employee.  OFS will register to become a training provider for our employees and have designated 
Rangers to attend training to become federally-certified instructors. 
 
SOUTHEAST AREA 
 
Forest Protection Highlights 
- In April the SE Area responded to 13 fires that burned 473 acres 
- In May the SE Area responded to 1 fire that burned 3 acres. 
- Forest Rangers Steve Painter and Oley Walker assisted with the hazardous fuel mitigation project at Turkey 

Mountain 
- SE Area Broken Bow District hired Jeffrey Kemp as a Forest Ranger 1.  Jeffrey lives in the Pickens, OK area with his 

wife and baby. 
- Don Cook attended the McCurtain County Fire Association meeting in April 
 
Forest Management Program 
- Will Phifer provided assistance to 13 landowners 
- JT Allen provided assistance to 10 landowners 
- Tyler Hyatt provided assistance to 7 landowners 
- Tyler Hyatt completed two forest stewardship plans 



C-9 
 

- Brock Hill and JT Allen met with OFS, representatives from the Conservation Fund and AFM to plan forest 
management activities for the new State Forest near Nashoba, OK 

- SE Area Foresters and Rangers assisted with the county and district Forestry contests for high school students 
- Three tracts were aerially sprayed for herbaceous weed control on 250 acres 

Prescribed Fire Assistance: 
- One prescribed fire was completed which treated 320 acres on the Double E Ranch 

Safety/Training Highlights: 
- Tony Macon and Pat Wayman taught the S-200 Initial Attack Incident Commander class at Arkansas River Valley 

Wildland Academy 
- Derik Gee, Tyler Hyatt and Steve Painter taught S-130 Basic Wildland Firefighting and S-190 Introduction to Wildland 

Fire Behavior for Caddo/Kiowa County RFDs 
- Jared Burgett, Colton Fuller, Tyler Hyatt completed S-290 Intermediate Wildland Fire Behavior at Antlers 
- Calvin Webb, Mark Webb, Jared Burgett, Tyler Hyatt, Cody Mack completed the S-200 Initial Attack Incident 

Commander and S-230 Single Resource Boss classes at Broken Bow.  Instructors were Don Cook and Pat Wayman. 
- Jeffrey Kemp, new Ranger I at Broken Bow, completed his initial wildland firefighter training with Don Cook and 

Sonny Johnson. 
- Don Cook conducted S-215 Fire Operations in the Wildland Urban Interface course for local fire departments in 

McCurtain County.  Assisting in the course were rangers Bradley Walker, Bryden Walker and Sonny Johnson; 
- JT Allen attended Arkansas River Valley Wildfire Academy and completed the L-380 Fireline Leadership course; 
- This week attending Arkansas River Valley Wildfire Academy are Tony Macon S-220 course; Steve Painter, Sonny 

Johnson, Tyler Hyatt, S-212 Wildfire Powersaws course; and JT Allen S-330 Task Force/Strike Team Leader course; 
Cody Mack taking S-219 Firing Operations course. 

- Attending Texas Wildfire Academy in Lufkin this week is Leon Macon S-270 Introduction to Aviation Operations 
course. 

Upcoming events/activities: 
- Hochatown Mapping Updates 
- SE Area personnel will provide security for Forestry Youth Camp in June 
- Jeffrey Kemp will attend a Wildfire Dozer Academy in North Little Rock, AR at the end of May 

STATE FORESTER ACTIVITIES from 6 April to 18 May: 
- Attended scheduled Director’s Meetings 
- Virtually attended one Steering Committee meeting for the S-520 Advanced Incident Management Course (Goeller serves as 

a Subject Matter Expert/Cadre/Steering Committee member) 
- Attended the April Board of Agriculture Meeting 
- Participated in numerous committee meetings planning for the Southern Group of State Foresters Annual Meeting to be held 

in June 2023 in OKC 
- Participated on the National Association of State Foresters’ All State Foresters Monthly Policy Call 
- Participated in Ag Day at the Capitol events 
- Attended organizational meeting for Northern Rockies Incident Management Team #1 in Kalispell, MT 
- Attended a presentation of Forestry Services personnel to the Oklahoma House of Representatives 
- Attended a meeting with Forestry Services Area Foresters and Fire Management Staff 
- Attended the Director’s Retreat in Oklahoma City 
- Attended the National Association of State Foresters’ Executive Committee Meeting in Washington, DC. 
- Virtually attended two meetings of the Community Wildfire Defense Grant Program Policy Development team 
- Participated in the April Southern Group of State Foresters Fire Management Chiefs’ conference call 



C-10 
 

- Attended the Forestry Services’ Leadership Team’s “First Tuesday” meetings in April  
- Attended a Forestry Services Budget Planning Session 

Respectfully submitted by Mark E. Goeller 

 



 

D-1 
 

                      

JUNE 1, 2023 BOARD MEETING 
REPORT FOR MARCH/APRIL/MAY 2023 

 
 
PESTICIDE SECTION  
 
Pesticide Registration Activity 

Pesticide registrations for April 1st to May 11th, 2023 are presented in the following chart. A total 
of 2515 products were registered, of the products registered 2379 were renewals and 136 were 
new. There were 142 products cancelled.   

 

 Pesticide Samples 

Pesticide samples taken March-April 2023 are presented in the following chart. A total of 36 
Residue, 8 Concentrate, 4 Plant Food, and 4 Tank mix samples were taken.     

 

 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

Total Renew New Cancelled

2,515 2,379

136 142

N
U

M
BE

R 
O

F 
RE

G
IS

TR
AT

IO
N

S

TYPE OF REGISTRATION

Pesticide Registration Activity
April 2023- May 2023

Concentration, 8

Residue, 36

Tank Mix, 4
Plant Food, 4

Pesticide Sample Submissions for            
March - April 2023

Concentration Documentary Residue Tank Mix Pollution Plant Food



 

D-2 
 

Table 1. Inspection Count for March - April 2023* 
  

  Number of Inspections 

Inspection Type March April Two Month Total 

Experimental Use Permit 0 0 0 

Marketplace 41 20 61 

Pesticide Applicator Facility 21 18 39 

Pesticide Service Inspection 0 0 0 

Restricted Use Pesticide Dealer 12 8 20 

Container Containment Inspection 0 0 0 

Producer Establishment 0 0 0 

Use 78 71 149 

Termite 0 0 0 

Wood 0 0 0 

Pre-treat 1 1 2 

Drift Investigation 0 0 0 

Pesticide Label 2322 1065 3387 

Worker Protection 0 3 3 

Total 2475 1186 3661 

* Inspections not yet submitted at the time of this report will be reflected in the next board report 

Along with the above inspections CPS inspectors also took 25 nonagricultural use samples, 18 
agricultural use samples, 4 nonagricultural follow up samples and 5 marketplace samples for a 
total of 52 samples. 

Unwanted Pesticide Disposal 

ODAFF held two unwanted pesticide disposals the first on April 25th in McAlester at the 
Southeast Expo Center, the second was held April 27th in Kingfisher at the Kingfisher County 
Fairgrounds. The collection was scheduled from 8:00am until 1:00pm. The McAlester event 
collected 2,472 pounds and the Kingfisher event collected over 38,000 pounds. ODAFF started 
the Unwanted Pesticide Disposal Program in 2006, since the start of the program ODAFF has 
collected almost 1.3 million pounds of unwanted pesticides.  ODAFF works with our hazardous 
waste contractor, CleanEarth to dispose of these pesticides properly.  



 

D-3 
 

Pesticide Testing & Updates 

Licensing & Certification: 

There are currently 2,014 active pesticide applicator licenses. There are 93 licenses under stop 
work order for nonrenewal in 2023. 

Categories expiring this year – 1a-Ag Plant, A-Aerial, 7b-Structural Pest, 10-Demonstration & 
Research, and Private Applicators. CEU renewal letters will be sent out in September and again 
in November. 

Private Applicators will be allowed to start retesting July 1st. Letters will be sent out to all active 
private applicators before July with new testing procedures and renewal information for those 
receiving CEUs 

Pesticide Complaints 

PESTICIDE COMPLAINTS   April 12, 2023 – May 31, 2023   

  RECEIVED CLOSED WARNINGS ISSUED NO ACTION 

CONSUMER GENERATED: 13 4 3 4 

MUSK THISTLE: 4 
 

  

PMR CASES: 12 0 7 0 

CASES REFERRED TO OGC: 15    

 

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE AND HORTICULTURE SECTION 
 
Plant Protection Program 

Phytosanitary Certificates  
  
Federal phytosanitary certificates Issued from April 1, 2023 – April 30, 2023  

Commercial value of shipment $1,250 or more:  
   13 Federal phytosanitary certificates issued @ $106.00 each  
Commercial value of shipment less than $1,250:  
   3 Federal phytosanitary Certificates issued @ $61.00 each  
  



 

D-4 
 

 
 
Companies applying for federal phytosanitary certificates 
 
 Ace Logistics    1 

Greenleaf Nursery Company  1 
International Ingredient  4  

  OSU Biosciences   2 
  Sesaco     8 
 
State phytosanitary certificates Issued from April 1, 2023 – April 30, 2023  

262 phytosanitary certificates for 32,124 plants 
 

 
  
Phytophthora ramorum Survey 
 
Means Nursery, a P. ramorum positive nursery in Oregon, continues their Spring shipments to 
Lowe’s stores in Oklahoma. Inspectors are checking these plants as they come in to make sure 
they’re symptom-free when they reach the state. 
 
We are also checking local nurseries and garden centers host-associated plants (HAP).  HAP 
include Azalea, Rhododendron, Pieris, Camellia, Kalmia, Viburnum, and Lilac. 
 

7

38

62

1 5 4 2 21 6

83

7
26

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

Certificates Issued

Certificates Issued



 

D-5 
 

Chrysanthemum White Rust 
 
An Oklahoma, Chrysanthemum grower 
has been subject to various trace-forward 
and track-back events over the last few 
years concerning Chrysanthemum White 
Rust, a federally regulated disease caused 
by the fungus Puccinia horiana. The 
disease has never been found at his 
operation, but we are collecting data, 
inspecting each variety, and taking 
samples each month.  We concluded our 
sampling in April, having inspected over 
160 varieties of mums and collected 81 
samples since January. All samples have 
come back negative for CWR. We will 
keep the data on file. 
 
Japanese Beetle Survey 
 
CPS will have 5 inspectors that are trapping for the 
Japanese Beetle survey this year, which begins at the 
end of May. They will place 42 traps over 7 counties. 
The traps will be checked every 2 weeks in June & 
July, and once per month in August and September. 
The traps will be removed at the end of September. 
Data will be collected and kept on file for use with 
compliance agreements and shipping certificates 
regarding Japanese Beetle compliance in other states. 
 

 
Inspector Training and Visit to Guthrie Greenhouse 
 

Kaci Hubbell, Joey Baker, and Jarrod Sanders conducted an 
inspection at Guthrie Greenhouse on May 11. Guthrie Greenhouse 
is a large wholesale nursery specializing in bedding plants, 
vegetables, and hanging 
baskets. They supply many 
Nursery operations in 
Oklahoma, including 
Atwoods, as well as 
nurseries in Kansas, Texas, 
Colorado, Arkansas, and 
Missouri. They have 
several compliance 
agreements with ODAFF. 

 

 
Figure 1: White Rust on Chrysanthemum.  

 
Figure 2: Japanese Beetle  

 
Figure 3: Guthrie Greenhouse 

Bedding Plants.  
Figure 4: Joey Baker and Jarrod Sander Completing a Nursery 

Inspection  



 

D-6 
 

Hemp 

Currently receiving some grower applications for both indoor and outdoor. We are currently at 
19 active growers, 10,389sqft, and 250 acres.  

Apiary 

The USDA/ODAFF 2023 National Honeybee Survey 
begins this month. We have received our supplies and will 
begin sampling various apiaries around the state for the 
remainder of the year. Our first sample will be conducted 
in Edmond. The samples we take including some live bees 
will be shipped to the University of Maryland for further 
assessment. Figure 5 is an example of what is contained 
within each sample box.  

Environmental Resource Program  

On March 3rd, 2023, ODAFF inspector, Keith Neugebauer investigated a complaint reporting a 
pesticide spill starting approximately 0.4 miles north of 67th Street and Tinney Road in Lawton, 
OK. Upon arrival, the inspector noticed the spill and followed the dye trail, which ended at the 
lawn company Rid a Weed/ Ultra Green in Walters, OK. The dye trail extended approximately 
23 miles long. During the investigation, a water sample was collected at a puddled area at the 
intersection of 67th Street and Highway 36. Various pesticide residues, including 2,4-D, dicamba 
and MCPA, were detected in the sample. A letter of warning was issued to the Rid a Weed/ Ultra 
Green for label violations regarding the spill. 

The photos from left to right are taken at the starting point on 67th Street, intersection of 
Highway 5 & Highway 277 west of Walters looking east, Rid-A-Weed/ Ultra Green’s driveway. 

 

 
Figure 5: National Honeybee Supply Survey Supplies  

 
Figure 6: photos from left to right are taken at the starting point on 67th Street, intersection of Highway 5 & Highway 

277 west of Walters looking east, Rid-A-Weed/ Ultra Green’s driveway. 



 

D-7 
 

AGRICULTURE RESOURCE SECTION 
 

Weights & Measures Program  

During this period the large capacity scale technicians tested 4 vehicle scales and 45 ranch 
scales, 2 of the vehicle scales were rejected for repairs and 7 ranch scales were also rejected. The 
ranch scale testing program has been completed and we are concentrating on checking vehicle 
scales at Coops and grain elevators prior to the start of wheat harvest. 

CPS inspectors checked a total of 1281 small scales and 24 platform scales, 21 of the scales were 
rejected. There were 20 random pack inspections and 71 standard pack inspections conducted 
that resulted in 3 companies receiving letters of warning. Additionally, 102 price verification 
inspections were conducted at various retailers that resulted in 2 companies receiving letters of 
warning. 

One company received a Stop Work order for operating without a Service Agent license. 

 
Feed Program 

Program Performance 
 
During this reporting period there were a total of 203 official feed samples analyzed, with 966 
feed determinations made from these samples.  These determinations resulted in the issuance of 
42 violations for feeds or feed ingredients that did not meet established tolerances based on their 
guaranteed analysis.  Most of these violations were issued for products deficient in Calcium. 
Other violation includes Crude Fat, Crude Fiber, Vitamin A, Phosphorus, Crude Protein, Salt, 
Copper, Manganese, and Zinc. Twenty-Eight stop sale orders were issued for feed products with 
severe deviations from their guaranteed analysis. Seven stop sales were issued for products 
deficient in Vitamin A. Six stop sales were issued for products deficient in Salt. Five stop sales 
were issued for products deficient in Calcium. Four stop sales were issued for products deficient 
in Crude Fat. Two stop sales were issued for products deficient in Zinc. One stop sale was issued 
for a product deficient in Phosphorus. One stop sale was issued for a product deficient in Copper. 
One stop sale was issued for a product deficient in Crude Protein. One stop sale was issued for a 
product with excessive levels of Crude Fiber.  

The following tables show a two-month comparison of label violations and stop sale orders 
issued by the Department for feed products that did not meet their guaranteed analysis.   

 

 

 



 

D-8 
 

Table 1. Feed Notice of Label Violation Summary April 2023- March 2023 
 Number of Label Violations 
Nutritional Guarantee April 1 March 2 Two Month Total 
Crude Protein 5 8 13 
Non-protein Nitrogen 0 0 0 
Crude Fat 5 5 10 
Crude Fiber 1 3 4 
Calcium 11 15 26 
Phosphorus 1 13 14 
Salt 3 5 8 
Magnesium 0 0 0 
Potassium 0 3 3 
Copper 3 1 4 
Manganese 2 1 3 
Zinc 6 5 11 
Vitamin A 5 4 9 
Medicated Feed 0 0 0 

Total 42 63 105 
1 203 feed samples analyzed with 966 determinations; 2 258 feed samples analyzed with 1225 determinations  
 

 

 

Table 2. Feed Stop Sale Summary April 2023- March 2023 
 Number of Stop Sales 
Nutritional Guarantee April 1 March 2 Two Month Total 
Crude Protein 1 3 4 
Non-protein Nitrogen 0 0 0 
Crude Fat 4 3 7 
Crude Fiber 1 1 2 
Calcium 5 15 20 
Phosphorus 1 4 5 
Salt 6 4 10 
Manganese 0 0 0 
Potassium 0 1 1 
Copper 1 4 5 
Zinc 2 1 3 
Vitamin A 7 9 16 
Medicated Feed 0 0 0 

Total 28 45 73 
1 203 feed samples analyzed with 966 determinations; 2 258 feed samples analyzed with 1225 determinations  

 
 
Fertilizer Program  
 
Program Performance 

 



 

D-9 
 

Below you will find the performance numbers for the fertilizer, agricultural lime, and soil 
amendment programs for the time-period of March 31st to May 15th, 2023. The fertilizer program 
has been conducting anhydrous ammonia inspections for both nurse and storage tanks, and also 
completing ammonium nitrate audits.   
  
 

 

 
 

          I will be glad to answer any questions from the Board members. 
 

           
                 Kenny M. Naylor 

 

Investigation Type Number 
Anhydrous Ammonia Nurse Tanks 41 (850 Total Tanks) 

Anhydrous Ammonia Storage Tanks 25 (43 Total Tanks) 
Dry Bulk Fertilizer Storage Facility 10 

Liquid Bulk Fertilizer Storage Facility 2 
Facility Pre-Site 2 

Sample 
Type Number Deficiency 

Penalty/SS 
Fertilizer 101 9 

Lime 12 0 



 E - 1 

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food and Forestry 
Animal Industry Services Board Report 

June 1, 2023 
Activities April 1, 2023 – May 12, 2023 

 
Animal Disease Traceability: 
We continue to distribute the free RFID tags to interested veterinarians and producers. 
During this time, we shipped 3,820 tags to veterinarians and producers.  
 
During this time, we selected wand recipients to receive the RFID wands purchased with 
ADT supplemental funding. 42 veterinary clinics were selected. Of these, 32 clinics 
received the Allflex AWR300 wand and 10 clinics received the Allflex LPR wand. We 
are currently working with the livestock market veterinarians to demonstrate the wands 
and provide an option for the wand of their choice in order to be prepared for the EID 
transition when the proposed rule is finalized. Any remaining wands after the markets are 
outfitted, will then be allocated to veterinarians and/or producers. 
 
The comment period for the proposed changes to the ADT rule has closed.  Comments 
are being reviewed.  If adopted, we anticipate the rule will be published in late summer.  
The implementation date will be 180 days after the final rule is published. 
 
Aquaculture:   
We have finalized aquaculture renewals. We currently have 16 facilities that have 
renewed their licenses. A Letter of Warning was sent to three aquaculture producers who 
failed to renew their licenses. The letters resulted in the close out of 2 facilities.  
 
Biologics: 
During this time, biological product renewals were finalized. Stop Sales Notices were 
automatically generated for 4 companies that did not register products before the 
expiration date. 3 of the 4 companies renewed after receiving the notices. The last 
company does not have any biological products for distribution or sale in Oklahoma. This 
registration period resulted in 785 biological products being renewed, 11 products 
cancelled, and 21 new products registered. This resulted in $161,200 in registration fees 
and $2,000 in late fees. 
 
Cattle Programs: 

Brucellosis: 
On May 8 I was notified of a positive Brucellosis test in a cow from McCurtain County.  
The group of cattle the cow is with are quarantined and we’re waiting from confirmatory 
testing by National Veterinary Services Laboratory in Ames, IA. 
 
The only remaining reservoir of B abortus in the U.S. is in elk and bison in the Greater 
Yellowstone Park area.  Those states have Designated Surveillance Areas, where the 
disease in wildlife occasionally spills over into domestic cattle and bison.  
 



 E - 2 

While there is very little need to test for B abortus any longer, this means we have very 
little or no surveillance for Brucella suis (Swine Brucellosis) in cattle, which currently 
infects approximately 20% of the feral swine that our Wildlife Services personnel test.  B 
suis can, and does, infect cattle occasionally.  
 

Tuberculosis: 
We currently have no TB affected herds in Oklahoma.   
 

 
Trichomoniasis: 

During this period there were 3,003 Oklahoma bulls tested for Trichomoniasis with five 
positive individuals found.  
 

 
 
Our current statistics compare to 2.1% positive bulls in 2011, 1.4% in 2012, 1.3% in 
2013, 1.4% in 2014, 1.1% in 2015, 1.1% in 2016, 0.5% in 2017, 0.32% in 2018, 0.42% in 
2019, 0.35% in 2020, 0.28% in 2021, and 0.3% in 2022. 

 
Johne’s Disease: 

During our reporting period we received seven new positive affected herds but a total of 
nine positive reports.  Over the last eight years the number of new positive premises has 
remained basically the same, but the number of multiple positive reports is significantly 
less, average 1.5 the last two years verses 5.2 the previous six years.  It is difficult to 
know if infected herd owners are simply recognizing the disease and culling animals 
rather than test or if management is improving.     
 
 
 
 



 E - 3 

Emergency Management: 
During this timeframe, Dr. Gorczyca worked with OK Medical Reserve Corps to submit 
a state application for the MRC-STRRONG award. The application, if awarded, would 
provide necessary funding to host training opportunities for the State Animal Response 
Team volunteers. 
 
On April 1, Dr. Gorczyca assisted the Payne County Animal Response Team and the 
OSU CVM to conduct an emergency animal sheltering exercise utilizing veterinary 
students. 
 
On April 6, the National Pork Board depopulation and disposal exercise team held a 
planning call with the proposed host producer, Hanor, to introduce the concept of the 
exercise and to answer any questions. On April 12, a Foreign Animal Disease disposal 
option webinar was provided to the NPB depopulation and disposal exercise team along 
with the host producer, Hanor. On May 2, a depopulation webinar was conducted for the 
host producer to assist with selection of the method of depopulation for the exercise. We 
held the regular planning team meeting on April 27. The timeframe to conduct this 
exercise has moved up significantly due to concerns of endemic diseases commonly seen 
on hog farms in the fall. The exercise will now be held August 10-11 and then conclude 
on August 14-15.  
 
On April 13 and May 11, Dr. Gorczyca hosted the Multistate Partnership (MSP) for 
Security in Agriculture monthly call.  
 
On April 18-20, Dr. Gorczyca and Dr. Ruby attended the Regional State Agricultural 
Emergency Management meeting, “Regional Ruckus”, in Charlotte, NC. This meeting 
brought together Ag emergency managers from 29 different states along with federal 
partners to discuss gaps in planning efforts and how to collaborate to assist planning 
efforts in all states.  
 
On April 20 Dr. Gorczyca and I fielded several calls related to livestock injured in the 
tornado the night before at Cole, OK.  We were able to connect the callers to the 
appropriate emergency responders. 
 
Equine Programs: 
There are no reported cases or quarantines for CEM in Oklahoma 
There is one known Piroplasmosis case in Oklahoma. 
There is one known Equine Infectious Anemia case in Oklahoma 
 
On April 20 I was notified that a horse that became ill and died on April 17 at the 
National Reining Breeders Classic show at the Tulsa Expo Square was confirmed to have 
Equine Herpes Virus.  Dr. Zeke Proctor with USDA Veterinary Services began an 
epidemiological investigation that night and removed the horses that were most likely 
exposed to an isolation area.  Those horses were tested and thankfully all were negative.  
The horses at the event were quarantined until we could gather more information and 
contact State Veterinarians in the 22 states that sent horses to the event.  A product that 

 



 E - 4 

has proven anecdotally to eliminate shedding of the virus by infected horses was offered, 
and almost 600 horses were treated with it.  By mid afternoon May 22 we had no reports 
of other symptomatic horses and the State Veterinarians had the information on the 
trainers from their states who had horses there.  They gave permission for the horses to 
come back to their states under quarantine to be isolated and monitored.  Thankfully, no 
other horses became ill.  The isolation period ended on May 8th and no additional cases of 
EHV-1 were reported. 
 
Oklahoma has one horse that has been confirmed to be positive for both Equine 
Infectious Anemia (EIA) and Equine Piroplasmosis (EP).  The infected horse is a 3-year-
old racing quarter horse.  There is no history of this horse participating in sanctioned 
racing in the United States and is known to have originated from Mexico.  It is likely she 
was illegally imported into the United States and transported to a farm in Oklahoma with 
the intent to participate in unsanctioned racing. Because EIA is not treatable, options for 
this horse are lifelong quarantine in an area with a minimum distance of 200 yards from 
any other equine or euthanasia.  If the owner opts to quarantine, the dual infection with 
EP will require that the horse be treated with an acaricide (tick preventive) year round, 
the vegetation in the quarantine area must be kept less than 4 inches tall, and a 10 foot 
barrier with no vegetation must surround the area of quarantine.  We are working with the 
owner to determine if the requirements for quarantine can be met.  Animal Industry and 
USDA field staff are working closely with the owner and neighbors to determine 
additionally exposed equine and implement testing to look for additional cases.  
 
Farmed Cervidae Programs: 
AIS continues to process Farmed Cervidae license renewals and schedule premises 
inspections for our cervidae producers. Letters of Warning were mailed out on April 21, 
2023 to producers who have not submitted their annual renewals. 
 
In the course of renewals for our monitored herds, laboratory results for tuberculosis 
testing have revealed that two herds have animals that have non-negative test results.  
Those premises continue to be under quarantine at this time. 
 
Dana Call and I met with Oklahoma Elk producer Jason Parrish, who brought guests 
from New Zealand to discuss the possibility of establishing a premier farmed cervidae 
facility in Oklahoma.  Hamish Fraser, CEO of Venator and Dr. Jeff Ward, Geneticist for 
Venator, discussed their ideas for a second operational facility here. 
 
We’ve been in communication with white tail deer producers that are interested in 
pursuing funding from the USDA for antemortem testing research for Chronic Wasting 
Disease.  Dr. Gorczyca and Dana Call attended a virtual information session hosted by 
the USDA regarding the process for requesting grant funding for this project. 
 
A bill signed by Governor Stitt has removed the import and export restrictions that were 
previously in place for Whitetail Deer. Oklahoma producers are now free to import 
whitetail deer from Texas, Florida, New York, Pennsylvania and Indiana, so long as all 



 E - 5 

other import requirements are satisfied.   The Cervidae Entry Permit Application has been 
updated to reflect this change.  
 
Feral Swine: 
AIS continues to process feral swine sporting facility and handling facility license 
renewals.  Letters of Warning were mailed out on April 26, 2023 to facilities who have 
not submitted their annual renewal applications.  There continues to be a high volume of 
feral swine hunter license requests. 
 
Foreign Animal Disease: 
There were three FAD investigations during this time. 
 
One was for a backyard flock of chickens that had a high death loss.  One was a small 
rabbit breeding operation that had several rabbits die suddenly.  Thankfully, neither of 
these were diagnosed as a FAD. 
 
The third case was a horse that tested positive for Equine Infectious Anemia.  This was a 
quarter horse recently imported from Mexico.  Since we see a fairly high incidence of a 
FAD called Piroplasmosis in horses infected with EIA, we tested for Piroplasmosis and it 
was positive.  There is no treatment for EIA.  We are encouraging the owner to euthanize 
the horse, but so far he is attempting to find a place to quarantine the horses at least 200 
yards from any other horses.   
 
The 2022 incursion of Highly Pathogenic Avian Influenza is continuing in the United 
States but confirmed cases appear to be declining with no reported cases in commercial 
poultry in the last month.  Oklahoma has not had a confirmed case since December of 
2022.  We continue to investigate sick bird calls to test for Avian Influenza and 
encourage flock owners to report any clinical symptoms consistent with AI infection.  
 
We continue to be part of three separate working groups that are planning to respond to 
African Swine Fever in case the disease makes it to the USA.  This has gained greater 
significance due to the finding of ASF in the Dominican Republic and Haiti. 
 
Livestock Market Audits: 
During this period, one new livestock market license was issued to Okmulgee Livestock 
Auction. Blaze Simonson has leased the facility with plans to have periodic horse sales 
and a goat/sheep sale twice monthly. Mr. Simonson has completed the registration 
process with ODAFF, as well as USDA Packers and Stockyards. Okmulgee Livestock 
Auction has a horse sale scheduled for May 14 and their first sheep and goat sale on May 
23rd.  
 
Jeff Scott has continued to work with Tara Sanders of JT Livestock. Ms. Sanders is 
currently registered as a livestock dealer with USDA and is operating as such at the 
Overbrook, Oklahoma facility, with plans to eventually host a monthly horse sale. At this 
point in time, JT Livestock has not submitted any paperwork to become a licensed 
livestock market. 



 E - 6 

Although only one market application was received this month, packets were requested 
by a of couple of others interested in sale barn ownership. This period also allowed for 
the completion of a new market orientation as well as a number of custodial account reviews.  

     Livestock Auction Market Activities 

   Auction market licenses issued      1 
  Auction market licenses pending  0 
   Market custodial audits completed       7 
   Auction market complaints investigated     0 
  Fines collected    0 
   Livestock Markets with Legal Action     0  
   Special Audits (Market Development) 0 
 
Outreach: 
On April 5 our Field Staff was in for our quarterly meeting.  We discussed upcoming 
changes to over the counter antibiotics, new livestock markets, they got their laptop 
computers updated, and several other tasks. 
 
On April 18 I attended a virtual meeting of the National Assembly of State Animal 
Health Officials.  About 20 of the State Veterinarians were attending the National 
Institute of Animal Agriculture meeting and met to discuss some issues that we are all 
dealing with. 
 
On April 24 I was interviewed by Tulsa News 6 about the case of Equine Herpes Virus at 
Tulsa Expo Square. 
 
On May 1 Dr. Stone presented to the Perkins 4-H and FFA community meeting.  He 
presented an overview of regulatory medicine, agricultural improvement in America, 
biosecurity and protecting our food supply using HPAI as an example.  He illustrated 
how it gets to the US, how it spreads, and what we can do to reduce risk.  The group of 
30 consisted of about half high school students and half adults.  The group remained 
engaged and had a number of good really questions were asked.   
 
On May 4 I traveled to Stillwater to attend the Oklahoma Animal Disease Diagnostic 
Laboratory Board of Advisors Meeting. 
 
On May 5 I was interviewed by Savannah Magoteaux from Oklahoma Farm and Ranch 
magazine. 
 
On May 10 I traveled to Stillwater to assist USDA Veterinary Services personnel in 
teaching an orientation class to begin the accreditation process to perform regulatory 
work.  After the accreditation orientation, students who are staying in Oklahoma and will 
be doing some bovine work stayed and I gave them a presentation about our 
Trichomoniasis program so they can be approved to perform regulatory Trichomoniasis 
testing. 



 E - 7 

Poultry Programs: 
There have been 27 sick or dead birds submitted for our sick bird/dead bird program 
since the last board report, for a total of 51 cases this year. 
 
We held six Poultry Tester Training classes at various locations around the state and 
certified 52 Poultry Testers.  
 
Public Health 
There is nothing to report during this time. 
 
Rabies in Livestock: 
There have been no new cases of rabies in livestock since the last report. 
 
Sheep and Goat Programs: 
There were no significant activities in this program. 
 
Swine Programs: 
On April 10 We hosted a virtual meeting of ODAFF personnel, OYE personnel, 
Oklahoma Pork Council personnel, and two private veterinarians to discuss the cases of 
Porcine Epidemic Diarrhea at OYE and how to minimize the potential for the disease to 
negatively impact the event in the future.  The discussion was good and we have some 
plans as we move forward. 
 
Veterinarians are beginning to use the online swine test charts OADDL has provided for 
swine testing.  OADDL is sending electronic copies to the designated e-mail for AIS.  
There have been no issues with the initial transition.   Letters of Warning were mailed out 
on April 27, 2023, to V/Q herd participants that have not updated their herd inventory for 
the program.   
 
Miscellaneous: 
On April 21 the Jackson County Sheriff’s office contacted Dr. Stone for help in handling 
an exotic petting zoo monkey that bit a visitor.   Dr. Stone and Oklahoma State Public 
Health Veterinarian Dr. LeMac’ Morris worked together to get the animal quarantined 
and local health officials and veterinarians involved.   
 
On April 27 I attended the ODAFF Directors Retreat at Hamm Institute for American 
Energy.  We discussed how to communicate better with our stakeholders and received 
some good tips on conducting interviews. 
 
On April 27 I was contacted by an employee of a bank in Pontotoc County.  The bank is 
the trustee of land that was owned by a deceased client of theirs.  They were getting 
complaints about cattle that were not authorized to be on the land being in poor condition.  
I assigned our Livestock Inspector, Robbie Sanders to meet with a representative of the 
bank and a deputy from Garvin County to assess the situation.  Robbie and the others 
visited the premises on May 9.  Robbie reported that some of the cows were thinner than 
they should be but most were in acceptable body condition.  With grass coming he 



 E - 8 

believes the cattle have adequate feed.  I reported back to the bank and told them there is 
currently no evidence of any reportable disease or mistreatment of the cattle and advised 
them to seek legal counsel for assistance with removing the cattle. 
 
On May 5th the Texas County Sheriff requested help with an investigation of excessive 
animal deaths that involved cattle stolen by bogus check by a Texas county man.  The 
cattle originated from an Okmulgee County producer.  Neighbors reported the death and 
deteriorating condition.  
On one premise of about Dr. Stone found 5 dead and 28 live cows: 7 dead young calves 
and 35 live young calves from a shipment of 139 cows and 46 calves.  Multiple premises 
are involved but not all had been identified at the time of Dr. Stone’s investigation.   
Cause of death could not be determined in most cases because of severe decomposition.  
However, it appears that the cattle were dropped into a pasture and were not able to find 
water for up to 10 days.  Some of the cows were calving during this time.  The lack of 
water created enough dehydration to severely limit milk supply.  Calves were starving as 
well as not receiving adequate colostrum.  Official identification on any of the animals 
was a complicating factor throughout the investigation.  A report has been sent to Texas 
County for the district attorney’s use.  
The man has been arrested and multiple charges filed.  
 
On May 9 Drs. Gorczyca-Southerland, Ruby, and I cooked a meal for our Administrative 
Professionals and served it for lunch.  We had intended to do it the last week of April 
during Administrative Professionals Week, but there were too many other things going 
on to do it then.  We had an enjoyable time celebrating the great team we have. 
 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Rod Hall, DVM 
 



 
F-1 

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, Food, and Forestry 
Wildlife Services Division 

 Board Report for April 2023 Activities 
 
 
Introduction 
 
 Wildlife Services (WS) responds to damage complaints caused by wildlife to resources or 
property throughout Oklahoma.  WS Specialists conduct operational damage management programs 
for many of the complaints they receive to resolve these wildlife damage problems.  During this 
period, these projects were conducted on 548 properties with an estimated 2,332,143 acres of land 
under agreement.  Additionally, WS helped 167 persons and entities with technical assistance which 
involved providing information to cooperators so they can resolve problems themselves.  
Cooperators reported and WS Specialists verified wildlife damage of $420,597 during this period. 
Beaver damages accounted for losses totaling $188,157. Coyotes were responsible for a number of 
damage requests, primarily to livestock, with losses totaling $35,645. Feral swine damages accounted 
for losses totaling $192,695, while other species of wildlife were responsible for $4,100 in damages 
to property, agriculture, and livestock.  
 
 
Providing Wildlife Services  

      
                   
 

                
                        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Figure 2: Species Removed in the East District 
by percentage during April 2023 
 

Figure 1: Species Removed in West District by 
percentage during April 2023 
 

Figure 3: Species Removed in the Central District 
by percentage during April 2023 

87%

5%
8%

West District

Feral swine Beaver Coyotes

79%

17%
4%

East District

Feral swine Beaver Coyotes

76%

17%
7%

Central District

Feral swine Beaver Coyote



F-2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Coyote Damage Management 
 

Comanche County livestock producer requested assistance with coyotes depredating on his 
goats.  The producer reported that coyotes had killed one goat valued at $186. The Wildlife Specialist 
assigned to Comanche County responded to the request and examined the carcasses and confirmed 
coyotes were responsible for the loss of the goat. The Specialist used leg hold traps and snares to 
remove six coyotes.  Control efforts continue to prevent additional losses. 

Woodward County landowner requested assistance with coyotes depredating on his calves.  
The landowner reported coyotes had killed two calves valued $1,700. The Wildlife Specialist assigned 
to Woodward County examined one of the carcasses and verified coyotes were responsible for the 
loss of the calf.  Damage management efforts were successful in removing eleven coyotes from the 
property.  Control efforts continue to help further reduce the threat to the cooperator’s calves. 

Texas County livestock producer requested assistance with coyotes depredating on his 
calves.  The producer reported coyotes killed one calf valued at $900. The Wildlife Specialist assigned 
to Texas County responded to the request and examined on of the carcass and confirmed coyotes 
were responsible for the loss of the calf. Control efforts have removed five coyotes and are continuing 
at this time to further reduce predation losses to coyotes for the producer. 

 
Feral Swine Damage Management 
 

Ellis County landowner requested assistance with feral swine that were destroying stored 
haybales. The landowner estimated that feral swine were responsible for $900 in damage to his hay.  
The Wildlife Specialist assigned to Ellis County responded to the request and verified feral swine 
were responsible for the damage.  The Specialist utilized a live trap to remove thirty-one feral swine 

Figure 4: Species Removed in the State by percentage during April  2023 
 

82%

12%

6%

State of Oklahoma

Feral swine Beaver Coyotes



 
F-3 

from the area.  Feral swine activity in this area is closely being monitored to determine if further 
management is needed.  

Greer County landowner contacted WS needing assistance with feral swine rooting in his 
pastures.  The landowner estimated that feral swine rooted up twenty acres valued at $5,000 in 
damages.  The Wildlife Specialist assigned to Greer County responded to the request and verified 
feral swine were responsible for the damage.  A live trap was used to remove twenty-seven feral 
swine from the property.  No additional damage has occurred and feral swine population in the area 
is being monitored to determine if additional management is needed. 

Blaine County farmer requested assistance with feral swine causing damage in his pastures.  
The farmer reported that feral swine are responsible for $2,800 in damages to his pastures.  The 
Wildlife Specialist assigned to Blaine County responded to the request and his field inspection 
verified feral swine were responsible for the damages to the pastures. The Specialist used a live trap 
to remove twenty-three feral swine from the property. This area continues to be monitored for feral 
swine activity to determine if additional management efforts are needed to further reduce damage. 

            McCurtain County producer called WS for assistance with feral swine. He reported that the 
feral swine were consuming his corn as soon as he planted it in the field. The damage was verified 
and estimated at $4,000 in crop and production loss. After pre-baiting with corn, a remote camera 
trap was placed, and twenty-five feral swine have been removed to date. This project is still being 
monitored.  

          Washington County producer called WS for assistance with feral swine. The owner reported 
seeing several feral swine and had found significant damage to his pasture. The feral swine activity 
on the property was confirmed and rooting damage to the cattle pastures was estimated at $3,200. 
After pre-baiting, a remote camera trap was placed and sixteen feral swine have been removed. This 
project is still being monitored.  

          Seminole County rancher called WS for feral swine damage to the owner’s cattle pasture. The 
damage was verified and estimated at $6,000. After pre-baiting, a remote camera trap was placed, 
and thirty-six feral swine were removed.  

Noble County landowner contacted WS with concerns regarding feral swine damage. The 
landowner reported seeing signs of damage in a corn field that was just planted. A WS Specialist 
responded to the report and verified the damage. The damage is estimated to be 1 acre worth 
$440.  The Specialist used thermal hunting to remove seven feral swine. Work continues currently. 

Pawnee County producer contatcted WS because of feral swine consumig his wheat crop. WS 
set a feral swine trap in the area with the most recent damage. During the following week several 
feral swine were caught. Work will continue in this area and damage was estimated to 10 acres of 
wheat valued at $1326. 

    Aerial Operations 

Aerial operations were conducted in Washita and Custer Counties in response to multiple 
farmers and ranchers requesting feral swine damage management.  The Specialist for the counties 
reported damage to wheat fields and pastures totaling $5,000.  To reduce damage in this area the 



F-4 
 

helicopter was utilized for 5.3 flying hours to remove one hundred and ninety-three feral swine.  This 
area will be closely monitored to determine if additional aerial operations are needed. 

Aerial operations were conducted in Custer and Blaine Counties.  The area flown historically 
has high levels of feral swine damage to corn and milo production.  To help reduce feral swine damage 
in these areas the helicopter was utilized to reduce feral swine populations prior to planting season.  
Aerial operations were conducted for six flight hours to remove one hundred and thirty-three feral 
swine.  Feral swine activity will be closely monitored in the area to determine if additional operations 
are needed. 

 
Beaver Damage Management 
 

Blaine County Road Commissioner contacted WS for assistance with beaver that were 
responsible for damming a culvert on one of the roads in his district. The Commissioner estimated 
the damage to the road to be valued at $2,000.  The Specialist for Blaine County responded and 
verified beaver were responsible for damage.  Control measures used by the Specialist were 
successful in removing eight beavers from the area to help reduce any additional damage to the road 
structure.  

Custer County Road Commissioner contacted WS for assistance with beaver that were 
responsible for damming up a road culvert and causing damage to the road structure. The 
Commissioner estimated the damage to the road to be valued at $3,000.  The Specialist for Custer 
County responded and verified beavers were responsible for damage.  Control measures employed 
by the Specialist were successful in removing four beavers from the creek to help reduce any 
additional damage to road structure.  

Beckham County landowner contacted WS for assistance with beavers that were responsible 
for burrowing into his pond dam on his property. The landowner estimated the damage to the 
pasture to be valued at $3,000.  The Specialist for Beckham County responded and verified beaver 
were responsible for damage.  Control measures used by the Specialist were successful in removing 
six beavers from the pond to help reduce any additional damage to the pond dam structure.  

          Rogers County producer called WS for assistance with beavers. He reported losing several trees 
and damming activity on his stock pond. The damage was verified and estimated at $4,500. Neck 
snares and spotlight/shooting were used to remove several beavers form the pond. This project is 
still being monitored. The owner was advised on exclusion/barriers that may help protect his trees. 

          Ottawa County producer called WS for assistance with beavers when he found tree damage and 
other beaver sign on a drainage ditch. The flooding, tree damage, and burrowing into the dam was 
verified and estimated at $15,000. Conibear traps were placed and two beavers were removed to 
date. The owner was advised to remove the beaver dam to deter future beaver issues.   

          Pittsburg County rancher called WS for assistance with beavers when he noticed flooding 
issues on his property. The beaver flooding damage was verified and burrowing into the stock pond 
was also found, combined with tree losses the damages totaled $2,500. Conibear traps were placed, 
and three beavers were removed to alleviate the damages. This project concluded and the owner was 
advised to remove the beaver dam to deter future beaver activity.  



 
F-5 

Love County Commissioner called and requested assistance with beavers damming culverts. 
Beavers had water flooding the roadway causing and estimated $1000 in damages. Body grip traps 
were used and five beavers have been removed. 
 

Johnston County property owner contacted WS about beavers cutting down their trees and 
clogging up their drain pipes. Estimated damages were valued at $2,500. Body grip traps were set 
and seven beavers have been caught to date.  
 
 
Black Vulture Management 
 

Hughes County rancher that had previously suffered calf losses from Black vultures called 
WS for assistance when he noticed large numbers of vultures around his cattle. The vulture threat 
was verified and a vulture trap was set on the property. To date, 157 black vultures have been 
removed from this property to reduce the risk of calf loss. This project is still being monitored and 
the preventative work has successfully kept calf losses down to nothing.   

          Delaware County rancher called WS for assistance with Black vultures. The owner reported 
losing six calves to the vultures and a large number of vultures was verified on the property. The 
owner purchased the supplies and WS assisted in constructing two vulture traps on the property. 
Two more calves were found and verified as losses to bring the total estimated losses to $7,000. To 
date, 84 black vultures have been removed to alleviate the damage. This project is still being 
monitored.    

 

Table 1: Beaver, Coyote, and Feral Swine removal in Oklahoma by WS April 2023 
  

County Beaver Coyote 
Feral 
swine District 

Adair 3   E 
Alfalfa  13  W 
Atoka 3   E 
Beaver 2 4  W 
Beckham 6  29 W 
Blaine   174 W 
Bryan 12 4 70 E 
Caddo 3  6 W 
Canadian 8 1 41 C 
Carter 9 6 16 C 
Cherokee   2 E 
Choctaw 7  14 E 
Cimarron  12  W 
Cleveland 8  23 C 
Coal 1 10  C 
Comanche 2  10 W 



F-6 
 

Cotton   22 W 
Craig 5  19 E 
Creek 4  68 E 
Custer 21 3 74 W 
Delaware   17 E 
Dewey  1 174 W 
Ellis  2 101 W 
Garfield 6   C 
Garvin 5 8  C 
Grady 2  103 W 
Grant 2   C 
Harper  3  W 
Haskell 5  2 E 
Hughes 9  31 E 
Jefferson 4   C 
Kiowa  2 4 W 
Leflore 8  17 E 
Lincoln 10 5 22 C 
Logan 3 5  C 
Love 13   C 
Major 2   W 
McClain  4 9 C 
McCurtain 12  10 E 
McIntosh 2  23 E 
Murray 6   C 
Noble 3  11 C 
Nowata   38 E 
Okfuskee 5 3 83 E 
Oklahoma 1 1 17 C 
Okmulgee 15 16 1 E 
Osage 5  128 E 
Ottawa 2   E 
Pawnee   276 C 
Payne 3   C 
Pittsburg 13   E 
Pontotoc 8   C 
Pushmataha 11 2 11 E 
Roger Mills 3  9 W 
Seminole  2 22 E 
Stephens 10 5  W 
Texas  7  W 



 
F-7 

Tillman 4 24 87 W 
Tulsa 4   E 
Wagoner 4 1 4 E 
Washington   17 E 
Washita   79 W 
TOTAL 274 144 1864  

*E –East, W – West, C - Central Districts 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Scott Alls 
Division Director 
Wildlife Services Division 



  G-1 
 

April 2023 Activity Report 
for  

June 2023 Board Meeting 
 

Agricultural Statistics Division 
 
General 
Rainfall totals the first full week of April in Oklahoma averaged 0.06 of an inch. According to 
the April 4th US Drought Monitor Report, drought conditions were rated 60 percent abnormally 
dry to exceptional drought, down 26 points from last year. Additionally, 54 percent of the state 
was in the moderate drought to exceptional drought categories, down 22 points from the previous 
year. Statewide, temperatures averaged in the 50’s. Topsoil moisture conditions were rated very 
short to short and subsoil moisture conditions were rated very short to adequate. 
 
Small grains continue to be stressed due to little rainfall and warm temperatures. Rainfall totals 
the second week of April in Oklahoma averaged 0.04 of an inch. According to the April 11th 
US Drought Monitor Report, drought conditions were rated 60 percent abnormally dry to 
exceptional drought, down 25 points from last year. Additionally, 54 percent of the state was in 
the moderate drought to exceptional drought categories, down 20 points from the previous year. 
Statewide, temperatures averaged in the low 60’s. Topsoil and subsoil moisture conditions were 
rated very short to short. 
 
Most of the state experienced severe storms which brought some rain and cooler temperatures. 
Rainfall totals the third week of April in Oklahoma averaged 0.12 of an inch. According to the 
April 18th US Drought Monitor Report, drought conditions were rated 64 percent abnormally 
dry to exceptional drought, down 17 points from last year. Additionally, 54 percent of the state 
was in the moderate drought to exceptional drought categories, down 19 points from the previous 
year. Statewide, temperatures averaged in the low 60’s. Topsoil and subsoil moisture conditions 
were rated very short to short. 
 
The state welcomed much needed rainfall for a majority of last week. Rainfall totals the fouth 
week of April in Oklahoma averaged 1.89 of an inch. According to the April 25th US Drought 
Monitor Report, drought conditions were rated 65 percent abnormally dry to exceptional 
drought, down 12 points from last year. Additionally, 54 percent of the state was in the moderate 
drought to exceptional drought categories, down 11 points from the previous year. Statewide, 
temperatures averaged in the low to mid 50’s. Topsoil moisture conditions were rated adequate 
to short. Subsoil moisture conditions were rated very short to adequate. 
 
Small Grains: Wheat continued to be cut for hay due to little grain development. Winter wheat 
jointing reached 92 percent, up 8 points from the previous year. Winter wheat headed reached 43 
percent, up 6 points from the previous year but down 5 points from normal. Canola blooming 
reached 55 percent, down 5 points from the previous year and down 19 points from normal. Rye 
jointing reached 88 percent, up 2 points from the previous year but down 2 points from normal. 
Rye headed reached 53 percent. Oats jointing reached 63 percent, up 9 points from the previous 
year and up 11 points from normal. Oats headed reached 25 percent.  
 



  G-2 
 

Row Crops: While the rainfall received might be too late for small grains, it will help provide 
needed moisture for row crops being planted. Corn planted reached 37 percent, up 6 points from 
the previous year and up 3 points from normal. Corn emerged reached 21 percent, up 15 points 
from the previous year and up 10 points from normal. Sorghum planted reached 16 percent, up 
13 points from the previous year and up 10 points from normal. Soybeans planted reached 5 
percent, down 10 points from the previous year and down 4 points from normal.  
 
Pasture and Livestock: Pasture and range condition was rated at 62 percent very poor to fair. 
Livestock condition was rated at 77 percent fair to good. 
 
Surveys:  Surveys administered by the Oklahoma call center are listed in the table below: 

Survey Enumerated 
by: Survey Dates 

ITC/Census DCC 12/15 -6/15 

Cash Rents DCC 4/17 – 6/22 

Ag Labor DCC 4/19 – 5/9 

May Ag Yield DCC 4/29 -5/9 

June Crop APS DCC 5/27 – 6/15 

June Ag Yield DCC 5/30 – 6/6 

Grain Stocks DCC 6/1 – 6/14 

Grain Prices DCC 6/1 – 6/14 
 
Statistics: On May 12, 2023, the first look at the 2023 Wheat crop was published in the May 
Crop Production Report. Highlights include: 
 
Wheat production for Oklahoma is forecast at 49.5 million bushels, down 28 percent from last 
year. Yield per acre is expected to average 23.0 bushels, down 5.0 bushels from the previous 
year. Acres expected to be harvested for grain, at 2.15 million acres, are down 12 percent from 
2022. 

 



  G-3 
 

Information Requests:  Phone calls, personal visits to our office, and requests via e-mail for 
information since last report totaled 29.   
 
Releases for April:   Relating Dates:  Release Dates: 
Crop Production    April 1, 2023   April 11, 2023 
National Hemp Report   2022 Crop Year  April 19, 2023 
Cattle on Feed     April 1, 2023   April 21, 2023 
Meat Animal PDI    2022 Prod Year  April 27, 2023 
Agricultural Prices    April 15, 2023   April 28, 2023 
 
Releases for May:      Relating Dates:  Release Dates 
Crop Production    May 1, 2023   May 12, 2023 
Cattle on Feed     May 1, 2023   May 19, 2023 
Farm Labor     October 2022/April 2023 May 24, 2023 
Agricultural Prices    May 15, 2023   May 31, 2023 
 
Meetings and Events:   Date:    Location: 
AISES Science Fair    April 1, 2023   Stillwater, OK 
OTCAC Producer Meeting   April 4, 2023   Miami, OK 
OTCAC Producer Meeting   April 5, 2023   Shawnee, OK 
Women in Ag Caddo Co   April 6, 2023   Ft. Cobb, OK  
OBHRPI Conference    April 8, 2023   OKC, OK 
Ag Day at the Capitol    April 11, 2023   OKC, OK  
OTCAC Producer Meeting   April 13, 2023   Guthrie, OK 
Poteau Ag Show    April 15, 2023   Poteau, OK 
Wheat OY NASDA Training   April 18-19, 2023  Elk City, OK 
OTCAC Producer Meeting   April 25, 2023   Hugo, OK 
OTCAC Producer Meeting   April 26, 2023   Kremlin, OK 
Kickapoo Tribe Meeting   May 4, 2023   McLoud, OK 
Oklahoma Wheat Commission  May 8, 2023   OKC, OK 
OTCAC Producer Meeting   May 9, 2023   Okmulgee, OK 
OTCAC Producer Meeting   May 11, 2023   Ardmore, OK 
AYC Final Session    May 12, 2023   OKC, OK 
OTCAC Producer Meeting   May 18, 2023   Ada, OK 
APHIS Phase II Training   May 22-23, 2023  Sulphur, OK 
OTCAC Board Meeting   May 22, 2023   Sulphur, OK 
OTCAC Producer Meeting   May 30, 2023   Ponca City, OK 
AYC 2023-24 Interviews   May 31, 2023   Virtual 
 
 
 
          Respectfully Submitted,  
             
 
          
         Troy Marshall 



H-1 
 
 
 

MARKET DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
June 1, 2023 

Report to the State Board of Agriculture  
 

AG IN THE CLASSROOM 
 

AG IN THE CLASSROOM IMPACT 
● Total Number of Teachers/Administrators Impacted: 92 
● Total Number of Pre-service Teachers Impacted: 93 
● Total Number of Extension Educators Impacted: 5 
● Total Number of Students Directly Impacted by Coordinators: 2,412 
● Total Number of Resources Given: 2,698 
● Total Number of Teachers/PreService Teachers Resources Given to: 216 
● Total Number of PreK-12th Grade Students Resources Given to: 724 

 
AG IN THE CLASSROOM WEBSITE, LESSON IMPACT, AND SOCIAL MEDIA 
• The AITC website had 19,163 visits and 16,114 unique pageview visits. 
• The AITC monthly email is delivered to 16,725 accounts. 
• The AITC Facebook page now has 9,218 followers. 
• The AITC Twitter page now has 584 followers. 
• Oklahoma AITC Instagram account now has 711 followers.  
• Oklahoma AITC Pinterest account now has 219 followers. 
• The AITC YouTube channel now has 9,099 views.   

 
Ag in the Classroom- Professional Development Workshops 

Number of 
Educators & 

Grade 
Level(s) 

Location Lessons/Activities Used Resources Given 

11 3rd-5th 
grade 
educators and 
4-H extension 
educators 

Liveasay Orchards in 
Porter, OK 

Okies Earning Ag Badges workshop - 
used new National AITC AgBadging 
Field Guides and activities out of 
them 

The Professional Development 
grant from National Ag in the 
Classroom allowed us to give 
each educator that attended 30 
AgBadging Field Guides to take 
back to their classroom; 
Teachers also received 
Oklahoma Ag Mags 

7 3rd-5th 
grade 
educators and 
4-H extension 
agents 

Magnolia & Prayers 
Alpaca Farm, Newcastle, 
OK 

Okies Earning Ag Badges workshop - 
used new National AITC AgBadging 
Field Guides and activities out of 
them 

The Professional Development 
grant from National Ag in the 
Classroom allowed us to give 
each educator that attended 30 
AgBadging Field Guides to take 
back to their classroom; 
Teachers also received 
Oklahoma Ag Mags 



H-2 
 
 
 

13 Pre-
service 
teachers 

OSU Early Childhood 
Education 

Egg catapults, Did you know posters, 
Grady in the silo, Garden in a glove Barn full of resources 

15 Pre-
service 
teachers 

NSU - Afton - NE Tech - 
Elem Ed 

Did you know posters Strawberry 
Rocks Egg Glyph 

Strawberry Tear Sheets, Ag 
Mags, Rt 66 Mags, Coloring 
Book, Stem Tear Sheet, Career 
Reader, HS Financial Literacy 
cards 

50 Pre-
service 
teachers 

Stillwater OK OKSTATE 
Campus 

Strawberry Tear Sheets, Egg 
Catapults, Egg Glyph, pig 
personality, strawberry smoothie Barn full of resources 

15 Pre-
service 
teachers NSU Broken Arrow 

Strawberry Rocks Tear Sheets, Egg 
Glyph, Smoothies, Pig Personality barn full of resources 

 

Ag in the Classroom- Student Events 

Number of 
Participants & 
Grade Level(s) 

Location Lessons/Activities Used Resources Given 

8 contest 
winners; 350 
parents and 
members at 
banquet  Central High FFA Banquet 

Oklahoma AITC Art Poster Contest 
winners - from 7th - 12th grade in the 
Central High FFA Chapter  

Framed Picture, AITC 
Medal, Gift Card (all 
sponsored by 
Oklahoma Beef 
Council), Legislator 
Citations 

2 winners 
presentation 

Peavine Elementary in 
Stilwell, Oklahoma 

Oklahoma AITC Art and Photography 
Contest Winner Presentation - Coloring 
Contest PreK 1st Place Winner and 
Kindergarten 2nd Place Winner 

Framed Picture, AITC 
Medal, Gift Card (all 
sponsored by 
Oklahoma Beef 
Council), Legislator 
Citations 

70 1st-12th 
grade students 

Mid-Del District Wide STEM 
Night 

Hopping Corn from the Soil, Plants, & 
Animals Oh My resource 

Oklahoma Ag 
Magazine or Ag on Rt 
66 Magazine and age 
appropriate corn ag 
activity sheet 

4 Overall contest 
winners; 14 3rd 
grade students Ag Day at the State Capitol 

Oklahoma AITC Art and Photography 
Contest Overall Contest Winner 
Presentations; Launch of the Oklahoma 
MyPlate with the Lt. Governor, Symon 
with Hot Toast Music, and 14 3rd 
graders from Minco Elementary school 

Framed Picture, AITC 
Medal, Gift Card (all 
sponsored by 
Oklahoma Beef 
Council), Legislator 
Citations; plaques 

300 students 
PreK - 12th 
grade 

Hillsdale Christian School 
Special Ag Day 

Making butter; Newspaper pots; Bean is 
a seed necklace; What is your brand?; 
Street Cows; Ice Cream in a Bag 

Various Oklahoma Ag 
Activity Tear sheets; 
Oklahoma Ag Mags, or 
Ag on Rt 66 

150 8th-12th 
grade students 

Oklahoma State FFA 
Convention N/A  Oklahoma Ag Mags 

160 4th & 5th 
grade students 
from Purcell and 
Wayne schools 

McClain County Outdoor 
Day Making Butter Oklahoma Ag Mag 



H-3 
 
 
 

24 3rd grade 
students  Newcastle Elementary 

Strawberry Rocks & Oklaberrynana 
smoothies 

Strawberry Tear Sheets 
& Oklahoma Red Dirt 
Symbols 

20 students Oak Grove Elementary Clucking Chickens Chicken Tear Sheets 

60 students 
Cookson Hills Kansas, 
Oklahoma Butter, Did you Know poster race N/A 

K-5th Grade 394 
students 

Union Farm to Student Event 
at Boevers Elementary  Betsy - Milking and Milk Race N/A 

116 students 
3rd-5th 

Skyline Elementary Stillwater 
OK Betsy - Milking and Milk Race N/A 

200 K-5 
Students 

Ag Day Mark Twain 
Elementary, Duncan Making Butter N/A 

20 PreK 
Students 

Contest Winner--Fairview 
Oklahoma 

Oklahoma AITC Art and Photography 
Contest Winner Presentation - Coloring 
Contest  

Framed Picture, AITC 
Medal, Gift Card (all 
sponsored by 
Oklahoma Beef 
Council), Legislator 
Citations 

20 8th Grade 
Students Contest Presentation Perkins 

Oklahoma AITC Art and Photography 
Contest Winner Presentation - Poster 
Contest  

Framed Picture, AITC 
Medal, Gift Card (all 
sponsored by 
Oklahoma Beef 
Council), Legislator 
Citations 

100 4th graders  

Frederick Outdoor Days; 
Frederick, Davidson, Snyder, 
Grandfield   Make Butter N/A 

400 students and 
adults 

Canton Elementary Awards 
Assembly-Contest 
presentation 

Oklahoma AITC Art and Photography 
Contest Winner Presentation - Coloring 
Contest  

Framed Picture, AITC 
Medal, Gift Card (all 
sponsored by 
Oklahoma Beef 
Council), Legislator 
Citations 

 
Ag in the Classroom- Resources Mailed or Delivered 

Locations where Resources are Mailed or Delivered 

Westwood Elementary Stillwater OK Enid Schools 

AITC Southern Region Meeting Jamey Allen  

Oklahoma Cattlewomen’s Conference - Kelli Payne  

 

 

 

 

 



H-4 
 
 
 

Ag in the Classroom- Other Events 

Event Highlights 

Ag in the Classroom 
Southern Region Meeting 

The Oklahoma AITC team participated in 2 ½ days of professional development in 
Alabama with the other AITC Southern Region states; we shared our latest resources 
and professional development; participated in meetings about grants, NAITCO, etc; 
Went on farm tours in Alabama 

Oklahoma State FFA Speech 
Contest Two of the AITC coordinators were honored to judge the State FFA Speech contest. 
 

AGRITOURISM 
 

Agritourism - Site Visits 
Producer Location Category Highlights 
Joe’s Farm Bixby U-Pick, Farm-to-

table, Farmers 
Markets, 
Horticulture 

Checked out strawberry field and talked about 
upcoming products on farm. 

Whitewater Hollow 
Farm 

Jay U-Pick, Pumpkin 
Picking, Teachable 
Moments 

Checked out strawberry field. 

 
Agritourism - New Producers or Potential Producers 

Producer Location Category Highlights 
Snider Exotics Fletcher Pumpkin Picking, 

Teachable Moments 
Site visit and added into the program. 

Simply Country Ranch McAlester Pumpkin Picking, 
Teachable 
Moments, Petting 
Farm 

Site visit and added into program, Owner 
attended OKLAS and agritourism bus tour for 
the first time this year, we connected and 
officially added her into the program a month 
later. 

Tinyhouse Farm Webbers 
Falls 

U-Pick, Horticulture Site visit and added into program 

Random Okie Farm Davis U-Pick, Horticulture Site visit and added into program 
Dorsey Ranch Chouteau Farm to Table Site visit and added into program 

 
Social media 
Facebook 

- 22,650 likes 
- 25,342 followers 

Instagram 
- 2,535 followers 

 
Agritourism - Other Activities 

• Phone consult/conversations with: Ly Do – farm interested in agritourism, Charles Drury – cabins 
in NE OK, Scott Roberts – land in Cushing and interested in agritourism, Jamie Priddy – farm 
hub around Lake Eufaula, Seaira Hull – farmers market questions, Tressie Harzman – farmers 



H-5 
 
 
 

market questions, Marie – agritourism questions, Hoss Horsley – farmers market questions, Dusty 
Baker – bison conference/ODAFF support questions, Rita Weidemann – updates on 
strawberries/plans for year, Paula Parkhurst – AITC curriculum, Jimmy Magruder – OK Grown 
stickers, Glenn Orr – NAFDMA event,  

• Email consultation with: Jeri Irby – cut flower association and specialty crop grant opportunities, 
• Help conduct Market Gardener grant interviews 
• Speak to OSU Ag Communications Class 
• Judge Morrison FFA Speech Contest  
• Send newsletter out to consumers about strawberry season 
• Judge Amber Pocasset FFA speech contest 
• Send newsletter out to producers about bee survey 
• Participate Blue Cross and Blue Shield road show in Tulsa 
• OSU AGCM student meeting with Brandy DeVous 
• Participate in Southeast OLAC Conference 
• Help at Oklahoma State FFA Convention 
• Created farmers market reporting template 
• McCurtain County Tour with McCurtain Co. Chamber  

o Met with OK Ag Board Member Brent Bolen and other chamber directors to tour 
McCurtain County for potential agritourism destinations 

o Spoke at lunch chamber meeting about agritourism program and ideas  
o One on one meetings with chamber members 

• 3rd Batch of handwashing stations from SCBG sent out to agritourism producers 
• Completed and submitted SCBG grant for 2024 and 2025 OKLAS conference 

 

 
One of the hand washing stations we granted to an agritourism producer through the Specialty Crop Block 

Grant. 
 
 
 
 
 



H-6 
 
 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

Activity Action 
Agriculture Enhancement & Diversification Program The selection committee met on May 3rd and voted in favor of 

recommending seven (7) Veteran/ Young Farmer grants, one 
(1) Farm Diversification grant and one (1) Ag Event grant for 
approval. 
 
 

Healthy Food Financing Program The selection committee met on May 4th and voted in favor of 
recommending one (1) grant application for approval. 
 

Viticulture & Enology grant Sent out a Request for Proposals for the 2023 Viticulture & 
Enology grant.  Proposals should help advance the grape or 
wine industry within the state and are limited to $50,000 per 
application.  Proposals must be submitted by June 1st to be 
considered for funding. 
 

Review and approve SCBG invoices Approved 25 invoices for payment after reviewing receipts and 
purchases to make sure they were within the terms of the 
contractual agreement with ODAFF. 

Review and approve Viticulture & Enology grant 
invoices 

Approved 3 invoices for payment after reviewing receipts and 
purchases to make sure they were within the terms of the 
contractual agreement with ODAFF. 

 

In conjunction with the OKC Farm Show a cattle grading 
contest was held at the OKC West livestock auction in El Reno 
on April 14th.  This year there was over 400 4-H and FFA 
members competing in the contest.  Market Development staff 
served as officials. During the contest, youth are tested on their 
ability to evaluate the carcass quality and projected growth 
pattern of beef cattle.  The students determine the animal’s 
gender, age, frame size, muscling and body condition.  Each 
contest is starts by conducting a training “school” about the 
USDA grading system and providing some examples of 
animals. 

 
FARM TO SCHOOL 

 
Visits Made: 

• School Garden Visit – Guymon High School – April 18th 
 

                    



H-7 
 
 
 

• School Garden Visit – Wister High School – April 25th  
 

                 
 
 

• School Garden Visit – Robert E. Lee ECE site. May 1st 
 

       
 

• Sayre Head Start Visit – Farm to School activities– Farm to ECE – May 3rd 
 

• School Garden Visit Stratford – May 8th 
 

    
        

• School Garden Visit Oologah – May 10th 
 

        
 

New Contacts: 
• Amanda Wood – Sayre Head Start 

 
Resource Requests 

• 4 cookbooks, 4 poster sets 



H-8 
 
 
 

Events 
• Ag Day in Duncan – What’s In Your Picnic Basket 
• Producer Training – Fort Smith Arkansas. 5 Oklahoma producers were in attendance 

 
Active Partners 

• Farm Bureau Women’s Leadership Team 
• Hunger Free Oklahoma 
• Dept. of Human Services (LFPA Cooperative Agreement) 
• Healthy Schools Oklahoma 
• ODAFF Food Safety 
• Cooking for Kids – OSU 
• Oklahoma Master Gardeners – Shelley Mitchell 
• National Western Heritage Museum – Gretchen Jeans 
• OK History Center – Sarah Dumas 
• TSET – Dept. of Agriculture – Jamie McDaniel 

 
Upcoming Events 

• Southwest Region USDA Meeting – Dallas Texas – May 23-24th  
 

INTERNATIONAL 
 

Activity Action 
Certificate of Free Sale • N/A 

 
Food Export  National Restaurant Association 

• May 20-23  
• Continued buyer coordination and scheduling meetings 
• Recruitment for OK Pavilion and worked on booth coordination for OK 

companies 
• We had 1 Oklahoma supplier participate in the buyers mission and exhibit in 

the show Matador Foods-company located in Blanchard, OK, they produce 
frozen appetizers for the food service industry  

• Continued coordination of Food Show Plus! Activity for Food Taipei June 
12-17 
 

 
USLGE Inbound Mexico Mission 

• Hosted our first USLGE buyers mission with a delegation from Jalisco, 
Mexico  

• This was hosted in conjunction with the Kansas Dept of agriculture and the 
majority was funded by USLGE 

• We had 5 buyers from the state of Jalisco with varying operations from 
Dairy, Red Angus, Black Angus, Poultry, Agave production.  

 Mexican Delegation  
1. Julio Cesar González Villaseñor, Rancho Buenavista (Charolais and Brahman)  
2. Carlos Ernesto González Villaseñor, Rancho Buenavista (Angus and Brangus)  
3 Enrique Gutierrez Gonzalez, Tepame Ranch (Angus and Holstein)  
4. Rafael Ramirez Gonzalez, Posta El Cuatro (Angus and Charolais)  
5. Eduardo Ramirez Gonzalez, PEC (semen sales, all breeds)  
 



H-9 
 
 
 

We visited the following producers: 
McMurphy Farms-Alva 
Duff Cattle Co. -Hobart 
Express Ranch-Yukon 
Conley Cattle-Sulphur 
7K Cattle -Marietta 
Buck Cattle Co-Madill 

 
 

 
 



H-10 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 GIT (Governor’s 
International 
Team)/ODEC  

• This group is meeting to discuss goals/strategy going forward and how we 
can assist the international community  

 
ODAFF Market 
Development Events 

• MIO Board Meeting 
• MIO Booth Planning for NRA  

Misc Meetings • IBC Global/Commerce Meeting- Potential contractor for Oklahoma 
Commerce Contract work 

 
MADE IN OKLAHOMA COALITION 

 
Made in Oklahoma Coalition – Advertising, Web and Social Traffic 

Type  $ Spent and Information Highlights 
MIO Featured Monthly Recipes in 
Tulsa World and Oklahoman 

$500/month each Featured press release and 1-2 showcased 
recipes in food section 

Marketing, Consulting and 
Graphics Retainer with Krush 

$6,750 Social media posts, digital presence, 
analytics, management of content and 
creation of digital footprint, graphic design, 
etc. 



H-11 
 
 
 

MIO TV Cooking Segments on 
Channel 6 in Tulsa and Channel 4, 
5 & 9 in OKC 

OKC –  
8 appearances  
Tulsa –  
4 appearances 
 

Natalie Mikels & David Brooks, MIO TV 
Personalities filmed in-person and remote 
segments for TV 

FY23 Media Campaign Reporting https://docs.google.com/sprea
dsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgK
wZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-
lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=3
78323568  
 
 
April Report: 
https://www.dropbox.com/s/9
0t68p1w8lk3kqb/MIO_KRU
SH%20Report%20-
%20April%202023.pdf?dl=0  

Here is a link to our original Google sheet 
workbook that we've been updating as the 
campaigns have evolved. You can toggle 
between all the logistical info for the co-op 
campaign such as the featured recipes per 
block, the annual media schedule, media 
budget, and the campaign spend tracker. It 
is a live link so it will be updated 
throughout the months as we continue our 
Co-Op campaigns. 

Restaurant of the Month Each month staff, along with 
Food Service Committee 
present the restaurant with 
their award and eat lunch as a 
group at their establishment.  

April  – Chicken n Pickle, OKC 
 
May – Steer Inn 
 

 
Social Media Stats Staff, and MIO media 

committee plan social content 
each month with our 
advertising agency, Krush 
Digital Marketing. 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/7fyc83iqu9aop
sl/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%
29%20April%201%2C%202023%20%E2%
80%93%20April%2030%2C%202023%20
%282%29.pdf.pdf?dl=0  

Edible OKC Giveaways $100/giveaway Each month MIO partners with Edible OKC 
to give away a $100 gift card to our 
restaurant of the month. 

MIO Monthly Newsletter  
 

 o 2400+ distribution list 
 

OK Living Partnership 
highlighting MIO Recipes 
  

Highlights 2-3 MIO recipes 
per month  

- Free publication to 
electric coop 
members 

 

MIO provides recipe content and OK 
Living does the ad design 

Recipes of the Month MIO recipes are developed 
each month highlighting 
member company products. 

April –  
- Deviled Eggs Three Ways 
- Hallelujah Biscuits 
- Pineapple Honey Glazed Ham 
- Beef and Mushrooms Stir Fry 

May –  
- One Pot Salsa Chicken 
- Braised Beef Street Tacos 
- Angel Food Cake 
- Strawberry Lemonade Creamsicles 

April Retailer of the Month On-Cue   
May Retailer of the Month Love’s Travel Stops Statewide locations 
  Statewide locations 

 
 
 

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgKwZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=378323568
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgKwZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=378323568
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgKwZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=378323568
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgKwZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=378323568
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1HUhkBRVkRgKwZf6ZZvyyTPeUTBx4I1-lprDwzDgnPwM/edit#gid=378323568
https://www.dropbox.com/s/90t68p1w8lk3kqb/MIO_KRUSH%20Report%20-%20April%202023.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/90t68p1w8lk3kqb/MIO_KRUSH%20Report%20-%20April%202023.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/90t68p1w8lk3kqb/MIO_KRUSH%20Report%20-%20April%202023.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/90t68p1w8lk3kqb/MIO_KRUSH%20Report%20-%20April%202023.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/7fyc83iqu9aopsl/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%29%20April%201%2C%202023%20%E2%80%93%20April%2030%2C%202023%20%282%29.pdf.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/7fyc83iqu9aopsl/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%29%20April%201%2C%202023%20%E2%80%93%20April%2030%2C%202023%20%282%29.pdf.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/7fyc83iqu9aopsl/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%29%20April%201%2C%202023%20%E2%80%93%20April%2030%2C%202023%20%282%29.pdf.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/7fyc83iqu9aopsl/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%29%20April%201%2C%202023%20%E2%80%93%20April%2030%2C%202023%20%282%29.pdf.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/7fyc83iqu9aopsl/Profile%20Performance%20%28Krush%29%20April%201%2C%202023%20%E2%80%93%20April%2030%2C%202023%20%282%29.pdf.pdf?dl=0


H-12 
 
 
 

Made in Oklahoma Coalition – Other Activities 
Activity Information 

Made in Oklahoma Month 
Campaign 

- Month-long    

Staff, MIO Media Committee and MIO Agency of Record (Krush) worked to 
develop a comprehensive social media campaign for the month of April (MIO 
Month). 35 members participated in the campaign. State officials created 
videos for us to share encouraging folks to shop local this month. Multiple call 
to actions were shared month-long to boost local product sales. 

Craft Brewers Fest 
- April 8th  

 

Staff and MIO members manned the MIO booth at the Oklahoma Craft 
Brewers Fest held at the Chickasaw Ballpark. It was a great event where folks 
showed lots of interest in local products. It was also a way to support one of 
our associate members and our brewery members. 

Ag Day at the Capitol  
- April 11th       

Staff assisted with Ag Day at the Capitol activities. 

April MIO Meeting +  
New Member Interviews 

- April 14th   

Our monthly member meeting was held via zoom for the month of April. We 
interviewed two new MIO member candidates --Lorie’s Fudge & Matador 
Foods. Both were onboarded as new members. 

Restaurant of the Month Visit 
- April 22nd  

 

Staff and MIO Food Service Committee met for lunch at MIO Restaurant of 
the Month, the Steer Inn, to congratulate them on winning the award and eat 
lunch in support of the restaurant. We also got content for social media. The 
Steer Inn has been a family-owned restaurant in Cushing and Mannford for 
over 50 years. 

Phelps Market Retail Promotion 
- April 22nd        

Staff worked with the owners of Phelps Market in Mannford, OK, a family-
owned store for over 50 years, to set up a retail promotion in support of their 
anniversary sale. 8 MIO members set up and sampled products and we are 
working on creating an MIO section in their store. 

MIO Legislative Lunch at the 
Capitol 

- April 25th    

Staff worked with Senator Darcy Jech’s office to coordinate a lunch for his 
committee. MIO members gathered to educate and thank Senate committee 
members for funding MIO and allowing us to help companies. 

MIO Market at Oklahoma State 
University Spring Carnival 

- May 1st  

Staff worked with the Student Union Activities Board and OSU dining to 
coordinate the MIO market during the OSU spring carnival. We had over 450 
students stop by and visit with our MIO members and sample their products. 
We are in the process of working with OSU dining to bring in more local 
products into their C-store concepts. 

MIO Legislative Dinner with 
House Appropriations Committee 

- May 1st  

Staff coordinated a dinner with the House Appropriations committee to 
provide an opportunity for MIO members to speak about the impact MIO has 
had on their business. It was a great night of dialogue and discussion about 
MIO. 

Restaurant of the Month Visit to 
the Jones Assembly 

- May 2nd  

Staff and MIO Food Service Committee met for lunch at MIO Restaurant of 
the Month, The Jones Assembly, to congratulate them on winning the award 
and eat lunch in support of the restaurant. We also got content for social 
media. 

BEK Food Show 
- May 3rd    

The MIO Coalition had 12 companies participate in the MIO Booth at the 
BEK show. At the show, we signed up over 25 new restaurants and our 
companies made great connections with restaurant owners statewide. 

 
MADE IN OKLAHOMA PROGRAM 

 
Meetings/Events Date Location Details 
Site Visit April 18 Bixby Travelled to Bixby, OK to 

film for our Meet the Maker 
social media series. 



H-13 
 
 
 

NAAMO presentation April 16 Virtual Gave presentation regarding 
MIO Store at Oklahoma 
State Fair 

MIO/OSF Store Jury May 11 OKC Jury for 2023 Made in 
Oklahoma Store at 
Oklahoma State Fair. There 
are multiple new 
companies, the store is full! 

Events:    
Ag Day at the Capitol April 11 OKC 26 agricultural 

organizations and 21 Made 
in Oklahoma companies 
were set up at the Capitol, 
sharing about their business 
with legislators 

Co-Packing Workshop May 15 OKC We brought in Ashley 
Sutterfield, a co-packing 
expert to share about co-
packing. 28 companies 
registered to attend. 

Upcoming Events:    
Made in Oklahoma 
Showcase - Northeast 

May 22 Bixby Producers will set up for a 
wholesale, retailer-only 
market. Attendees must be 
associated with a retail store 
in order to attend. 

Made in Oklahoma Market June 3 OKC Market will be held in 
Stockyards City, in 
conjunction with their 
Wines of the West event. 

Made in Oklahoma 
Showcase - Central 

June 5 Tuttle Producers will set up for a 
wholesale, retailer-only 
market. Attendees must be 
associated with a retail store 
in order to attend. 

 
New Producers: 
We’ve had 55 new applications come in since last month, I plan to review them the week after the Bixby 
Showcase. 
 
Other Made in Oklahoma Activities: 

• Created MIO Store at Oklahoma State Fair layout, determine shelf space, product categories, 
displays 

• Worked with new program members to create an e-commerce account on our webpage 
 

VITICULTURE & ENOLOGY 
 

Viticulture & Enology - Site Visits 
Producer Location Category Highlights 
Bois d”arc 
Winery 

Madill Winery/Vineyard Met the entire Johnson family and saw their new tasting 
room and winery.  



H-14 
 
 
 

 

 
B&G Meadery 
Site Visit 

Stonewall, 
OK 

Meadery  
Site visit and added them to agritourism.   



H-15 
 
 
 

 
Countryaire 
Estates Site 
Visit 

 
McAlester, 
OK 

 
Winery 

 
Site visit and added to program 

 

 
Plymouth 
Valley Site 
Visit 

 
Fairview 

 
Winery 

 
Site visit 
 

 
Viticulture & Enology - Other Activities 

•  Worked the booth at Craft Beer Day 
• Sent out my first producer newsletter 
• Worked with Darcen to reorganize the app into trail names. 
• Attended the Oklahoma State Wine Forum 
• Attended Newsom Wine Day in Plains, Texas 
• Met with Kim McPherson of McPherson Cellars in Lubbock, Texas 
• Researched the requirements to petition for an AVA (American Viticulture Area)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



H-16 
 
 
 

MARKET NEWS SERVICES 
 

April 4, 2023 – May 12, 2023 
 

• Grain Report: 
 

April 4, 2023  May 12, 2023  DIFFERENCE 
 
WHEAT: (bu) $7.77-$8.47  $8.02-$8.52  $0.25 to $0.05 Higher 
 
MILO: (bu)  $6.54-$6.94  $6.06-$6.36  $0.48 to $0.58 Lower 
 
SOYBEANS: (bu) $14.67-$15.22  $13.55-$13.95  $1.12 to $1.27 Lower 
 
CORN: (bu)  $7.19-$7.84  $6.61-$7.36  $0.58 to $0.48 Lower  
 
COTTON: (lb)         77.55 cents  75.78 cents  $1.77 Lower 
 

• OKC NATIONAL STOCKYARDS (OKC) STEER AND HEIFERS 
 

FEEDER STEERS 
Medium & Large Frame No. 1 Muscle Thickness (500-600 lb) 

o (5-10-22)  $175.00-205.00 Wtd. Avg $190.00 
o (5-9-23) $234.00-277.00 Wtd. Avg. $255.50 

 
HEIFERS  
Medium & Large Frame No. 1 Muscle Thickness (500-600 lb)  

o (5-10-22)  $154.00-178.00 Wtd. Avg $166.00 
o (5-9-23) $207.00-245.00 Wtd. Avg. $226.00 

 
• Weekly Report: 

o Six weekly Oklahoma Market Reports were sent to 10,611 subscribers  
April 4, 2023-May 15, 2023 (up from 102 subscribers last report). 
 

• Voice Messaging System: 
o Monthly Total: April 4, 2023-May 15, 2023 6,320 Accessed Times 
o Last Report: February 17, 2023-April 4, 2023 6,587 Accessed Times 
o Compared to Last Month: Accessed Times-is DOWN 267 on Accessed times 

 
• Oklahoma Agriculture Market News  

o Facebook Page  
 Likes/Followers 444 
 UP 25 Likes/Followers 
  People reached through pasted report: 770 people 

• Oklahoma Hay Directory  
o Hay Directory 

 Currently have 14 producers that have hay 
 

• Hay Report  



H-17 
 
 
 

 
This Month: April 4, 2023-May 15, 2023 Hay Traded 2,591 

Last Year April 8, 2023-May 6, 2023Hay Traded 8,485 
DOWN 5,894 Bales Reported 

 
OKLAHOMA HAY MARKET REPORT 

5-12-23 
Receipts: 1640 Last Reported: 136 Year Ago: 0 

  
Compared to the last report: Hay trade is slow with good demand. Drought is no help when it comes to 
crops in Oklahoma. Most of the wheat crop will become wheat hay this year. South of I-44 rain has 
helped their fields grow but has not allowed them to start cutting and bailing hay yet. Oklahoma as a 
whole is half a cutting behind schedule. Still, no price trends are available at this time. The Oklahoma 
Mesonet Drought Monitor shows we are at 10.09 percent in exceptional drought, 33.10 percent in an 
extreme drought, 48.07 percent in severe drought, and 52.47 percent in moderate, 60.81 percent in 
abnormally dry conditions, 39.19 percent that has no drought conditions.  
  
*** The next report release will be on May 26***  
  
 Central 
Alfalfa: Good (Ask/Per Ton) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Square  1200 250.00 250.00 Delivered/New Crop 
  
 North Central  
Bermuda Grass: Good/Premium (Trade/Per Bale) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Round  200 150.00  150.00 F.O.B/Crop 
  
 Northeastern  
Prairie/Meadow Grass: Good (Ask/Per Bale) 
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Medium Round  130.00   Delivered/New Crop 
  
 Northwestern  
Alfalfa: Good (Ask/Per Ton)  
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Square  300.00  Delivered/New Crop 
Wheat: Good/Premium (Ask/Per Ton)  
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Round   170.00  F.O.B/New Crop 
Wheat: Good (Ask/Per Ton)  
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Round   140.00  F.O.B/New Crop 
  
  
 West 
Rye Grass - Good (Trade/Per Ton)  
Size   Qty Price Range Wtd.Avg. Freight/Used 
Large Round  240 185.00  185.00 F.O.B/New Crop 

 
 
 



I-1 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 

AEMS Division Activities  

 

 
Meet AEMS latest staff addition 

Tikisha Fagbemi  

Our new Poultry Admin Assitant II. She is handling the poultry program. 

Welcome Tikisha! 
       

▪ AEMS staff participated in the Illinois River Watershed (IRW) conference calls to review technical efforts 

and the monitoring of waterbodies within the watershed area. 

▪ AEMS and Animal Industry staff participated in the first of two full-scale exercise planning meetings in 

preparation for the National Pork Board’s full-scale exercise scheduled for this fall. It is designed to test 

response capabilities to keep African Swine Fever (ASF) out of the U.S. and prepare for other foreign animal 

diseases. 

▪ Consersvation Commission created an online app, with input from AEMS staff, that is now live and taking 

online requests for Poultry Feeding Operation’s Nutrient Management Plans (NMPs)-export only at this time. 

▪ AEMS staff attended and participated in the I9 education courses at OSU facilities on April 26, May 3, and 

May 10th.  

 

AgPDES Permitting Activities 

➢ Number of AgPDES CAFO Authorizations this reporting period: 0 

➢ Number of AgPDES PGP Authorizations this reporting period: 2 

➢ Number of AgPDES CGP Authorizations this reporting period: 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Oklahoma Department of Agriculture, 

Food, and Forestry 

June Board Report for the 

Agricultural Environmental  

Management Services Division  

April 3, thru May 12, 2023 

 

 

http://oklahoma.gov/


I-2 
 

Complaints and Inspections 

 

A summary of the complaints received and investigated, plus all the inspections and technical assistance 

conducted by the ODAFF AEMS Staff for this reporting period: 

 

10 Complaints received and investigated this reporting period 

3 Complaints closed this reporting period 

Complaints Received - Breakdown 

Cattle - 0 

Swine – 0 

Poultry- 2 

Misc. Animal - 1 

Other – 2 

Animal Shelter - 1 

Pet Breeder- 4 

123 Year-to-date complaints received in FY 23  

56 Year-to-date complaints closed in FY 23  

84 LMFO/CAFO inspection and technical assistance 

257 Poultry inspections and technical assistance 

13 Pet Breeders/Shelters inspections and technical assistance 

  

 

 

CAFO and LMFO Activities - Month and Fiscal Year 2023 

 Apr 3-May7,2023 FY 23 Total 

Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 6 68 

Annual Inspections 71 515 

Technical Assistance with Contacts 13 133 

Site Visit/Review – No contact made 6 193 

 

Poultry Activities – Month and Fiscal Year 2023 

 Ap3 - May 7 2023 FY 23 Total 

Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 4 33 

Annual Poultry Inspections 107 456 

Poultry Technical Assistance 150 1237 

Site Visit/Review – No contact made  85 470 

Eucha-Spavinaw CNMP Written 27 131 

 

Pet Breeders Activities – Month and Fiscal Year 2023 

  Apr3 –May 7 2023 FY 23 Total 

Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 7 140 

Breeder/Shelter Technical Assistance provided 

to owner/operator 
0 178 

Breeder/Shelter Annual Inspections 13 299 

Breeder/shelter Close out 0 7 

 

                     

                                  AGPDES – Month and Fiscal Year 2023 

 Feb 12 –Apr 2, 2023 FY 23 Total 

Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 0 5 

Site Inspections (Annual or 

Compliance Follow-ups  
2 21 

Technical Assistance provided to owner 

/operator 
0 31 

 



I-3 
 

                      Composting Activities – Month and Fiscal Year 2023 

 Feb 12 –Apr 2, 2023 FY 23 Total 

Complaint or Compliance Follow-ups 5 39 

Site Inspections (Annual or 

Compliance follow-up) 

 

0 

 

16 

Technical Assistance provided to owner /operator  

2 

 

21 
 

 
 
 
     

              
 
 
 

 

 

 

Respectively, 

 

 

Teena G. Gunter 

AEMS Division 



J-1  

BEFORE THE STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 
OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 

JUNE 2023 BOARD REPORT 
REGARDING APRIL 2, 2023 THROUGH MAY 12, 2023 ACTIVITIES OF THE 

OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL 
 

AMOUNT OF ADMINISTRATIVE FINES COLLECTED: 
 

Amount to Date (2023) Amount of Fines for this 
Board Meeting 

$162,925.00 $96,900.00 
$207,400.00 2022 
$57,475.00 2021 Total (5/31-

12/31/2021) 
 

CONTRACTS REVIEWED OR DRAFTED (114): 
  

Marketing: 60 
CPS: 7 
Forestry: 6 
AIS: 8 
Wildlife Services: 26 
Admin: 2 
Inv. Serv: 2 
AEMS: 3 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING PROCEEDINGS: 

 
Total Number of Open Cases: 77 
Total Number of New Cases: 11 
Total Number of Cases Closed: 8 
NOVs Sent: 9 

 
OTHER ACTIONS AND PROCEEDINGS: 

 
Kirk Marshall v. ODAFF, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CJ-2020-1347: 
Petition served. Time period tolled by Supreme Court Order until May 15, 2020. Answer 
drafted and prepared for filing. Application for Injunction Denied. Answer filed. Hearing 
held. Amended Petition filed by Plaintiff. Answer to Amended Petition filed. District Court 
Order AFFIRMED by Court of Civil Appeals. ODAFF Amended Motion to Dismiss 
pending. 
Laura Garrison v. State of Oklahoma, ex rel. Oklahoma Department of Agriculture 
Food and Forestry, Pittsburg County District Court, Case No. CJ-2020-111: Lawsuit 
involves vehicle accident between plaintiff and ODAFF employee. Attorney General’s 
Office is handling this claim. 



J-2  

Upton's Naturals Co v. Stitt and Arthur, District Court, W.D. Oklahoma, Case No. 5:20-
cv-00938: Lawsuit against Governor Stitt and Secretary Arthur in their professional 
capacities. Upton’s Naturals challenges a state law that prohibits food manufacturers from 
using terms like "hot dogs," "burgers," or "bacon" on labeling for meat-free products. The 
Attorney General’s Office is handling this claim. 
William Grossman v. Lori Howard et al., Cherokee County District Court, Case No. CJ-
2020-111: Lawsuit filed on the agency and Forestry Services requesting damages for a car 
wreck that occurred during a prescribed burn. The prescribed burn was not performed by 
ODAFF and the agency was not involved with the circumstances. The Attorney General’s 
Office is handling this claim. 
Spring Creek Coalition v. ODAFF and Trong, Cherokee County Case Number CJ-2021-
29: Petition seeking declaratory and injunctive relief. Answer filed.  
Spring Creek Coalition v. ODAFF and Phan, et al., Delaware County Case Number CJ-
2021-33: Petition seeking declaratory and injunctive relief. Answer filed. Discovery 
ongoing. Responded to Motion for Summary. Motion to Dismiss filed. Hearing had March 
2, 2023. Supplement brief filed regarding Motion to Dismiss. 

 
MEETINGS: 

 
Date Activity 

4/3/2023 Senate Ag Committee 
4/4/2023 OBA GALPS 
4/4/2023 Director’s Meeting 
4/5/2023 General Counsels monthly 
4/5/2023 Deposition 
4/11/2023 House Ag Committee 
4/11/2023 Ag Day at the Capitol 
4/12/2023 OBA Women in Law 
4/13/2023 EPA Inspector General 
4/13/2023 Illinois River Discussion 
4/14/2023 OU Ag Law Symposium 
4/18/2023 Forestry planning 
4/19/2023 OBA ILS 
4/19/2023 CLO Audit Committee 
4/20/2023 Tourism regarding MOU 
4/20/2023 Director’s Meeting 
4/25/2023 Source Water Protection Workgroup 
4/25/2023 AgPDES 
4/26/2023 State Board of Agriculture 
4/26/2023 OGC Staff 
4/27/2023 Director’s Retreat 
4/28/2023 OBA regarding Ag Law Section and CLE 
4/28/2023 2023 Kevin Mitnick Security Awareness Training 
5/1/2023 AALA Symposium Planning Committee 



J-3  

5/2/2023 OBA GALPS 
5/2/2023 Seaboard 
5/2/2023 “Effective Communication-Building Trust in a Digital World” 

Webinar 
5/4/2023 Western Environmental Law Conference 
5/5/2023 Western Environmental Law Conference 
5/8/2023 Boll Weevil Eradication Organization regarding NOV process 
5/10/2023 House Admin Rules Committee 
5/10/2023 Director’s Meeting 
5/10/2023 OBA Women in Law 
5/11/2023 Illinois River Technical Group 

 
RULE ACTIVITIES: 

 
Chapter 1.  Administrative Operations (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules 
adopted by Board January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, 
Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission 
filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. 
Chapter 2.  Fees (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted by Board January 
26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, Legislature, and Cabinet 
Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of 
Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. 
Chapter 10. Agricultural Products (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules 
adopted by Board January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, 
Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission 
filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. 
Chapter 15. Animal Industry (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted by 
Board January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, Legislature, 
and Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission filed with 
Office of Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. 
Chapter 17. Water Quality (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted by 
Board January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, Legislature, 
and Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission filed with 
Office of Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. 
Chapter 20. Forestry (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted by Board 
January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, Legislature, and 
Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of 
Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. Notice of Withdrawal submitted to the 
Governor, Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary and filed with the Office of 
Administrative Rules on May 9, 2023. 
Chapter 30. Consumer Protection (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules 
adopted by Board January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, 
Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission 
filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. 



J-4  

Chapter 37. Food Safety (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted by Board 
January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, Legislature, and 
Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of 
Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. Notice of Partial Withdrawal submitted to the 
Governor, Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary and filed with the Office of 
Administrative Rules on May 9, 2023 
Chapter 40. Market Development (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted 
by Board January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, 
Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission 
filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. 
Chapter 44. AgPDES (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted by Board 
January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, Legislature, and 
Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission filed with Office of 
Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. 
Chapter 50. Aquaculture (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted by 
Board January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, Legislature, 
and Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  Statement of Submission filed with 
Office of Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. 
Chapter 55. Commercial Pet Breeders and Animal Shelters (Permanent FY 
2023):  Permanent rules adopted by Board January 26, 2023.  Agency Rule Report 
submitted to the Governor, Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary on February 2, 2023.  
Statement of Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules February 2, 2023. 

OHRC 
Chapter 10. Racing Organization (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted 
by Commission January 19, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, 
Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary on January 26, 2023.  Statement of Submission 
filed with Office of Administrative Rules January 26, 2023. 
Chapter 15. Licensing (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted by 
Commission January 19, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, 
Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary on January 26, 2023.  Statement of Submission 
filed with Office of Administrative Rules January 26, 2023. 
Chapter 25. Entries and Declarations (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules 
adopted by Commission January 19, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the 
Governor, Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary on January 26, 2023.  Statement of 
Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules January 26, 2023. 
Chapter 35. General Conduct (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent rules adopted by 
Commission January 19, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to the Governor, 
Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary on January 26, 2023.  Statement of Submission 
filed with Office of Administrative Rules January 26, 2023. 
Chapter 50. Human Substance Abuse Testing (Permanent FY 2023):  Permanent 
rules adopted by Commission January 19, 2023.  Agency Rule Report submitted to 
the Governor, Legislature, and Cabinet Secretary on January 26, 2023.  Statement of 
Submission filed with Office of Administrative Rules January 26, 2023. 

 
OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS (32): 

 



J-5  

AEMS: 8 
CPS: 14 
AIS: 4 
Forestry: 1 
Pet Breeders: 5 

 
OKLAHOMA HORSE RACING COMMISSION 

 
Litigation: Alfredo Gomez and Cruz Villafranco v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District 
Court Case No. CV-2020-430: Petition served. Response filed. Petitioners’ Motion for 
Partial Summary Judgment responded to. Pending hearing. 
Litigation: Miguel Pena v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CV-2019-
179: Petition for Temporary Restraining Order and Petition for Injunction. Ex Parte TRO 
hearing held October 11, 2019. TRO entered. Amended Petition for TRO heard May 15, 
2020. TRO denied. Permanent injunction denied. Pending Motion to Dismiss. 
Litigation:  Jose Sanchez III, et al. V. Global Gaming, Heritage Place and OHRC, 
Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CJ-2020-2395: Petition for Temporary 
Restraining Order and Petition for Injunction. Ex Parte TRO hearing held May 26, 2020. 
TRO denied. Further action pending. 
Litigation: Sammy Howard v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CV-
2020-1921. Petition served. Response filed. Briefs filed. Oral arguments held. Remanded for 
further proceedings. Order filed. Motion to Reconsider filed. JE Entered. Motion to 
Reconsider pending. 
LITIGATION: Rogelio Marquez, Jr. V. OHRC, Oklahoma County District Court Case 
No. CJ-2021-3393. Petition filed. Injunction sought. Hearing held; Injunction denied. 
Pending further proceedings. (Trailing OHRC v. Heltzel) 
Litigation: Carlos Ruiz v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. CV-2021-
2591. Petition Served. Response filed. Record filed. Pending briefing. 
Litigation: Etniel Sanabria v. OHRC Tulsa County District Court Case No. CV-2022-
1899. Petition for Temporary Restraining Order and Petition for Injunction. Ex Parte TRO 
hearing held September21, 2022. TRO DENIED. OHRC Response and Motion to Dismiss 
filed. Motion to Disqualify Judge filed and heard. Case reassigned. OHRC Motion to 
Dismiss sustained. Motion to Vacate Order of Dismissal filed by Plaintiff. OHRC Response 
filed. Hearing held. Pending Order. 
Litigation: Kelly Marlene Hartzel v. OHRC, Oklahoma County District Court Case No. 
CV-2023-387. Petition for Review of Final Agency Order filed and served. Pending 
Response. 
Prepare cases for presentation at Stewards Hearings 
Prepare cases for presentation in District Courts 
Provide discovery to opposing counsel and Respondents regarding various hearings 
Stewards Hearings at Remington Park 
Hearings in District Courts 
Prepare and file Motion to Reconsider and brief in support 
Discuss possible rule revisions/amendments with Executive Director 
Draft proposed rule revisions 
Advise Executive Director on extent of delegated authority 



J-6  

Discuss certain policy issues with Executive Director 
Review communication from Respondents’ counsel in various cases 
OHRC regular meeting 
Supervise and direct OHRC legal intern 
Attend ARCI Rules Committee meeting 
Consult with OHRC regarding gaming issues 
Attend briefings and meetings regarding Horse Racing Integrity and Safety Act (HISA) 
Consult with concerned constituents regarding HISA 
Respond to open records requests 
Consult and advise on HR issues 
Prepare files for return to OHRC 
 

OTHER ACTIVITIES: 
 
Phone calls or emails with the public: 5 
Assistance to industry: 2 
Assistance to AEMS: 2 
Assistance to CPS: 7 
Assistance to Wildlife Services: 2 
Assistance to Forestry: 7 
Assistance to AIS: 1 
Assistance to Admin: 8 
Assistance to Human Resources: 3 
Assistance to Market Development: 2 
Assistance to other state agencies: 3 
Assistance to federal agencies: 2 
Assistance to Food Safety: 0 
Assistance to NASS: 0 
Assistance to Executive Office: 13 
Assistance to Lab: 0 
Assistance to Investigative Services: 5 
Assistance to Legislature: 10 
Assistance to Attorney General: 1 
Assistance to Public Information: 0 
 
 

  Respectfully Submitted,  
  

         
 
        Teena G. Gunter  
        General Counsel  



K-1  
  

FOOD SAFETY REPORT MAY 2023  
  

POULTRY& EGG GRADING, PRODUCE AND ORGANIC SECTION 
  
Poultry and Egg Section 
In Broken Bow at Tyson Foods, USDA poultry grading was performed by ODAFF inspectors on 
264,796 pounds of poultry – boneless/skinless leg meat and ground meat. ODAFF inspectors 
provided USDA Shell Egg grading on 32,590 dozen eggs at Cal-Maine Foods Inc. at Sulphur. 
ODAFF inspectors provided USDA poultry grading services on poultry products being shipped 
from National Steak & Poultry Quality Meats in Owasso. ODAFF inspectors also provided 
USDA poultry grading services on poultry products being shipped from OK Foods in Muldrow 
& Heavener. Also, routine egg quality inspections under the Oklahoma egg law were conducted.   
 
Organic Foods Section 
Organic inspectors completed compliance and certification inspections at: 

• Nine organic crop producers 
• One organic livestock producer 
• Three organic processors 
• Fourteen retail organic inspections 
• The organic section had requests for 3,000 certified organic stickers from Oklahoma 

Certified Organic producers and processors, which display the stickers on all products 
sold, labeled, or represented as Organic across the United States. The organic section had 
5 requests for organic crop applications, 2 requests for organic processing applications 
and 1 request for a organic livestock application.  
 

Produce Safety Section 
• Completed 4 produce farm inspections for the Produce Safety Rule 
• Visited 5 farmers markets providing outreach and education to producers and to collect 

farm inventory 
• Shared information about the Produce Safety Rule at the McAlester Oklahoma Local 

Agriculture Collaborative Workshop 
• Educated vendors at the Rogers County Farmers Market meeting 
• Shared information about the Produce Safety Rule at the Craig County Homestead 

Conference 
• Assisted farms with remote technical assistance 
• Regular conference calls with TX, LA, AR, NM, MO, MS  
• AFDO Produce Safety Committee work   

 
Homemade Food Freedom Act 

• Received 1 complaint on Homemade Food Freedom Act business 
• Sent 1 warning letter 
• Meat compliance assisted with 1 complaint  

 
 
 



K-2  
  

Oklahoma Meat Inspection Services 
Investigations and Compliance Activities 

                                                           
Planned Compliance Reviews 06 

Random Compliance Reviews 172 

Person-to-Person Contacts 35 

Special Investigations and/or Projects 06 

Reports of Apparent Violations 01 

Detentions 03 

Consumer Complaints 06 

Verbal Warnings Issued 07 

Letters of Warning Issued 01 

Samples Submitted to Lab for Analysis 00 

Accident Investigations 00 

Administrative Procedures Act 01 (OK-1-835) 

  

The Oklahoma Highway Patrol notified Meat Inspection Compliance 
with (0) truck accident in the month of JANUARY 2023 

 
See details below:  

ACCIDENT LOCATION  ANIMAL/PRODUCT  DISPOSITION  
0 0 0 

 
Highlighted Activities:  
During the course of Random Reviews and anonymous Consumer Complaints, Compliance and 
Investigation Services sent out One (1) Letter of Warning for Violations of the Oklahoma Meat 
Inspection Act and/or State Statutes.    
                              
                                    Leave (hours) 
Brad                               8 
Wayne                           0 
Ron                                 168 
 



K-3  
  

MEAT INSPECTION 
Number of Cattle 1,124 

Total Beef Condemned 9,990 lbs 
Beef Heads & Livers Avg. H wt 20,  

Avg. L wt 10 
Number of Swine 113 

Total Pork Condemned 888 lbs 
Pork Heads & Livers Avg. H wt 10,  

Avg. L wt 2 lbs 
Number of Sheep and Goats 3,790 

Total Condemned 0 lbs 
Number of Chickens 305 
Number of Rabbits 12 

Total Condemnations 0 lbs 
  

Number of Exotic Deer 24 
Total Condemnations 40 lbs 

  
TOTAL MEAT INSPECTED 1,210,850 lbs 

PROCESSED MEAT INSPECTED 
Processed Red Meat 672,139 lbs 
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs 
  
Poultry (Portions) 170,078 lbs 
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs 
  
Rabbit Meat 0 
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs 
  
Exotic Deer Meat 0 
Condemned on Reinspection 0 lbs 
  
TOTAL PROCESSED MEAT 
INSPECTED 

 
 lbs 

AVG. CARCASS WT.                        Beef 700 lbs., pork 250, sheep goat 100 
      AVG. BEEF HEAD / LIVER             Head 20 lbs. / Liver 10 lbs 
        AVG. SWINE HEAD / LIVER          Head 10 lbs. / Liver 2 lbs. 
      AVG. LAMB/GOAT HEAD              Head 2 lbs.  
Meat Sample activity: 
23     Samples Submitted for Analysis                                                  0 Samples Not Analyzed 
23     Samples Analyzed                                                                        0  Samples Non-Compliant 
23     Samples Negative Analysis 
**4/24 We hired Brian Stallings as a meat inspector for the Oklahoma City circuit 



K-4  
  

DAIRY SECTION 
  
Dairy staff conducted routine inspections at dairy farms, dairy plants, performed equipment 
checks and collected farm and plant dairy samples throughout the state. 
   
In April, Dairy Services staff represented The State of Oklahoma at The National Conference on 
Interstate Milk Shipments (NCIMS) held in Indianapolis, Indiana.  NCIMS is where FDA, State 
and Industry collaborate, discuss potential or on-going public health issues, and vote on national 
milk related laws.  The goal of this conference is to have the safest possible milk supply for all 
people.  Participation in NCIMS is essential for The State of Oklahoma to participate in Grade A 
interstate milk commerce. 
   
All dairy farm and dairy plant surveys are up to date; therefore, no additional surveys were 
conducted during this board report period. 
   
The Oklahoma Dairy program will be participating in a National Drug Residue Monitoring 
Project with the FDA.  All samples will be collected at random from bulk milk tankers and 
shipped to a 3rd party laboratory for anonymous sample preparation.  This national study will 
help FDA determine if the current drug residue screening methods are effective or need to be 
expanded. 
 
Dairy Services Director, Pete Echelle, is out on medical leave for hip replacement surgery. 
 

. Sincerely,  

  
 Scott Yates 
 Director of Food Safety     



L - 1 
 

Communications 

Compiled 5/17/23 

 

Social Media Highlights 

Directors’ Retreat – April 27 | ODAFF division directors gathered 
to grow as leaders and set personal and professional goals for the 
rest of the year.  

One of the more interesting tidbits was learning about how 
younger generations interact in professional settings compared 
to those who came before them. 
 

 
 

 

Sec. Arthur Visits New Sidwell 
Distribution Facility in Enid – May 1 | 
Sidwell Distribution hosted Sec. 
Arthur and staff at the grand opening 
of their facility in Enid. 

Sidwell Distribution is expected to 
provide new opportunities to Made in 
Oklahoma companies to distribute 
their products across the state.  

 

 
AYC Members Elected to State FFA Officer Team 
– May 3 | Four Agriculture Youth Council 
members were named 2023-24 State FFA Officers 
at the State FFA Convention in Tulsa. 

Sec. Arthur spoke to the more than 15,000 
member group at the closing session. 

 

 



L - 2 
 

Social Media Impact 

Facebook 
21,559 followers 
Since April 10, 2023: 

-Posts and content reached 45,737 users 
-114 new Facebook users have liked the ODAFF page 

 

Instagram 
3,054 followers 
Since April 10, 2023: 

 -Posts and content reached 4,425 users 
 -139 new Instagram users have followed the account (broke the 3k mark) 

 

News & Notes 

ODAFF Hosts Ranchers from Mexico | In mid-May, we hosted five ranchers from Mexico on an 
inbound trade mission. The ranchers visited farms in Alva, Hobart, and Sulphur. 

 

ODAFF Hosts Mona Lee Brock Event | On May 15, Mona Lee Brock was honored at ODAFF with 
a presentation produced by AFR. The program concluded with the unveiling of a curio cabinet 
display in Brock’s memory. 

 

National Beef Month Campaign | Each week in May ODAFF is showcasing the beef industry 
with special social media posts.  





1 
 

June 1, 2023, BOARD MEETING 
 
PURCHASES/CONTRACTS  
Administration 
FY23 – Special Ops Uniforms -$8775 
Investigative Services is requesting Board Approval for (9) bullet proof vests for the Investigative 
Service Agents as the ones they currently have expired in 2021 and the agents safety is of the 
most importance in the job that they perform. 
 
Agricultural Statistics 
Printing of Oklahoma Agricultural Statistics annual bulletins, and Oklahoma Pocket Facts for FY 
2024 - $12,000 dollars. 
 
AMES 
A request of $30,000 
The AEMS Division has obtained permission to contract with Ideagen, April 2023, to develop a 
program that will assist in the modernize of our operations. The development will take several 
months from May 2023 – March 2024 after which there will be an annual maintenance fee of 
$30,000. 
AEMS seeks approval to continue the contract with Ideagen beyond the programming and 
development stage to the support and maintenance which will begin March 2024. Ideagen is part 
of the Statewide contract. 
 
Animal Industry 
Oklahoma Veterinary Medical Association (OVMA) - $70,000.00 – This is pass through 
funds from Oklahoma Tax Commission to OVMA to help lower income Oklahomans get their 
pets spayed and neutered.  OVMA is the only entity in the State of Oklahoma that has the ability 
and contracts statewide to enhance pet sterilization effort is the OVMA. No other entity has 
access to veterinarians and humane organizations on a statewide basis.  
 
USAHerds - $29,000.00 – USAHerds maintenance contract allows us to receive yearly 
enhancements that make the USAHerds program more efficient, user friendly and to offer 
maintenance hours that we use to correct errors and problems and to personalize the program for 
us.  
 
Acclaim Systems, Inc. - $12,000.00 - This agreement provides use access for the State of 
Oklahoma to utilize the VET-CVI application for the duration of time listed in this maintenance 
agreement.  Oklahoma must follow the intended use for this application and only approve 
accredited veterinarians within their state that meet the USDA requirements. 



2 
 

Consumer Protection Services 
FY2024 Oklahoma Boll Weevil Eradication Organization - $6,000.00 
 
Food Services 
Oklahoma State University Produce Safety Training Contract Approval --$74,000  
Outreach and education activities including teaching Produce Safety Alliance classes across the 
state, developing educational materials and videos, assisting farms with the On-Farm Readiness 
Review, measuring the effectiveness of these trainings to determine what topics need further 
training, and assisting ODAFF in identifying and outreach to farms that may need to comply with 
the law. 
 
The Produce Safety Alliance class is the only class currently recognized by the FDA to satisfy the 
produce farm manager training portion of the produce safety rule.  To teach this class, a team of 
certified trainers and a certified lead trainer is required, and OSU has several personnel certified to 
teach this class including the only lead trainer in the state.  OSU currently assists us with teaching 
farms through the On-Farm Readiness Review.  This program will provide an educational tool 
that can be taken to the individual farms and help them identify what areas they need to improve 
on to comply with the new law. 
 
Win Wam computer software up keep for produce safety inspections $5,400.00. 
This computer program is used for completing FDA produce safety compliance inspections.  This 
would be for updates and for software update fees.  This would be paid for by the FDA Produce 
Grant. 
 
Forestry Services 
FY24 - $10,000 Federal Funds 
This request when approved will renew the Oklahoma Gardening Grant. This is a longstanding 
education and outreach grant sponsoring the popular Oklahoma Gardening program produced by 
OSU.  This grant supports tree related educational programming.  Without this purchase, we 
would lose an avenue of support and education.  This purchase will be reimbursed through 
Federal funding. 
 
FY24 - $15,000 Federal Funds 
Renew nonbinding contract with the Oklahoma Urban and Community Forestry Council to 
perform services to assist in implementation of the continuing education component of 
Oklahoma's Urban & Community Forestry program in accordance with federal grant program 



3 
 

intent. Without this program outreach and education related to urban forest management and 
individual tree care would be limited. This purchase will be reimbursed through Federal funding. 
 
FY24 - $60,000 Federal Funds 
Award Federal pass-through funding to communities for the Urban and Community Forestry 
Grants – Up to $60,000.  These grants support projects related to advancing local community 
forestry programs.   Without these projects, we would lose an avenue of community support and 
education.  This purchase will be reimbursed through Federal funding. 
 
FY24 - $230,000 Federal Funds 
Award Federal pass-through funding up to $230,000 to assist financially-challenged cities, 
neighborhoods, and communities for recovery of winter ice storm and cold damage.  These grants 
support projects related to helping lower income neighborhoods and non-profit entities recover 
from the damage, mitigate existing risks and replace lost tree cover from recent winter storms.   
Without these projects, we would lose an avenue of community support and education.  This 
purchase will be reimbursed through Federal funding. 
 
FY24 - $100,000 Federal Funds 
Award Federal pass-through funding up to $100,000 to assist financially-challenged cities, 
neighborhoods, and communities with heat mitigation, promotion of food forests, increase 
equitable access to urban/community tree canopy and to promote other value and benefits of trees 
in communities.  These grants support projects related to helping lower income neighborhoods 
and, non-profits.   Without these projects, we would lose an avenue of community support and 
education.  This purchase will be reimbursed through Federal funding. 
 
FY24 - $101,760 Federal Funds 
Award Federal pass-through funding up to $101,760 for tree canopy assessment and inventory 
project in Oklahoma City metropolitan area to determine canopy loss from 2020 ice storm, 
develop a plan to assist with storm water management, flooding and other safety issues.  This 
project will assist in identifying forest health and other safety concerns. Without this project, an 
opportunity to improve the overall condition of forest cover in central Oklahoma and to improve 
safety of Oklahoma citizens will be lost. This purchase will be reimbursed through Federal 
funding. 
 
FY24- $8,000 Wildland Firefighting Helmets 
OFS is in need of purchasing new wildland firefighting helmets for our firefighters.  One hundred 
fifteen (115) helmets will be purchased through FedMall.  New helmets are essential PPE for our 



4 
 

firefighters to ensure they are safe as they protect life and property while fighting wildfires across 
Oklahoma. The funds will be reimbursed through a federal grant.  
 
FY24 - $15,000 
Aerial pesticide spray application to the seed production pine tree orchards at the Forest Tree 
Improvement Center at Idabel.  Aerial pesticide spray will be applied to the cone crop in our 
genetically improved pine tree orchards.  This will maximize the embryotic-material filled seed in 
the cones collected at the orchards by controlling cone worms and other seed insects.  Aerial 
application of pesticide spray to the orchards will control these pests.  Justification: Without this 
purchase, there will be a continued decline in the production of genetically-improved seed. 
 
FY 24 Temporary Bridge Grant $175,000 (purchase, cost-share, and pass-through) 
Justification: Encourage the use of temporary bridges for stream crossings on timber harvesting 
and related forestry operations. This will help mitigate water quality impact by reducing erosion, 
sediment delivery, and stream bed disturbance. The use of temporary bridges will be encouraged 
by reducing the financial burden of purchasing temporary bridges by timber producing and 
harvesting entities through establishment of a bridge loaner program as well as a cost-share/pass-
through program. Funding: All costs associated with the purchase and maintenance of the loaner 
bridges as well as the establishment of the cost-share/pass-through program will be reimbursed by 
the federal grant. 
 
FY 24 - $55,000 
Purchase ESRI ArcGIS Online Licenses (Federal Grant) – Justification:  This allows the OFS 
Incident Management Team and fire personnel to utilize Collector, giving our firefighters real-
time wildland fire data exchange.  Data collected from the Collector application gives firefighters 
an advantage on fighting fires, increases overall firefighter and public safety.  This purchase also 
improves the State’s wildland fire data which is necessary to receive federal National Fire Plan 
funding.  
 
FY23 – Firefighting bulldozer, $574,121 (Federal Funding–SFA Response) 
Purchase two (2) Type 3, John Deere 650P bulldozers that will be used for state-wide wildfire 
response, suppression and mitigation activities. The horsepower and hydrostatic transmission of 
this type is well suited to the diverse wildland fuels and terrain present across all of Oklahoma.  
The size allows for easy transport on a truck with a dovetail bed enabling access to remote 
locations where fires occur.  These dozers will be replacing a 2001 JD 650H (1649 hrs.) needing 
$15,000 in repairs and a 2001 JD 450H (1400 hrs.) needing $10,000 in repairs.  Funding for this 
entire purchase will come the US Forest Service – FY21 SFA Response Grant ($266,000) and 
FY22 SFA Response Grant ($308,121) as part of an approved budget revision.  (NOTE:  This was 



5 

submitted for approval at the April Board of Agriculture Meeting.  There was an error on the 
Fiscal Year funding information which required the resubmission for approval) 

Laboratory Services 
FY23 - $15,000.00 – PCR 
Purchase of a molecular detection platform for the capabilities to test for Campylobacter and other 
pathogenic organisms in dairy. 

FY23 - $5700.00 – DI Water and Maintenance 
Contract purchase of analytical grade water for laboratory testing and tank maintenance. Contract 
effective 07/01/23 through 06/30/24. 

FY23 - $7,436.00 – Eastern Laboratory Services, Ltd. 
Contract for ELS to provide Somatic Cell Standards (SCC) for milk testing. Contract effective 
07/01/23 through 06/30/24. 

Market Development 
FY2023 – Agritourism Wine Trails Category Guide – graphic design services – Funded entirely 
by the Viticulture and Enology Revolving Fund - $24,600.00. 

FY2024 – AgHERculture Summit – facility rental and food – $17,000.00 

FY2024 - Resilient Food Systems Food Infrastructure Program – USDA Cooperative Agreement 
- $6,407,933.00

FY2024 – Kyle McMichael – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification 
Grant - $10,000.00 

FY2024 – Yalonda Burton – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant 
- $10,000.00

FY2024 – Jennifer Hernandez – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification 
Grant - $5,000.00 

FY2024 – Colby Craige – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - 
$5,000.00 

FY2024 – Dineen Riemenschneider – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & 
Diversification Grant - $5,000.00 



6 
 

 
FY2024 – Mangum Feed & Farm Store, LLC – Healthy Food Finance Grant - $10,000.00 
 
Office of General Counsel 
A request of $8,000 
To continue contract to perform services as a Hearing Officer/Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) in 
cases assigned, in accordance with signed agreement on file with the Oklahoma Depart of  
Agriculture Food, and Forestry. The vendor will perform services at an hourly rate of 
$125.00/hour. 
 
FY24 - $36,942.13 for GovQA 2024 contract. 
Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for approval. 
GovQA is a new product that will allow OGC and the rest of the agency to more easily and 
efficiently fill open records requests. It will allow all records requests to be filled electronically 
and will allow large files to easily be transferred electronically. It is an online product. In addition, 
it will allow ODAFF to invoice the requester for very large requests and allow the agency to 
recoup some funds for filling the requests. 
 
Contract renewal for OGC Westlaw and Clear online legal research system FY 2024 effective 
7/1/2023-6/30/2024. Contract not to exceed $30,000. 
 
1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for approval. 
Westlaw is a necessary legal research tool for the agency attorneys. It allows them to easily and 
quickly review federal, Oklahoma, and other states’ case law and statutes to better serve the 
agency. CLEAR allows the Office of General Counsel and Investigative Services to search for 
addresses and other information regarding individuals for which we do not have good contact 
information. 
 
2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved. 
 
Without Westlaw, agency attorneys would be unable to efficiently research federal and state law, 
resulting in more time looking for information and less time actually completing projects and 
assisting the agency. Without CLEAR, Investigative Services would have a more difficult time 
investigating cases because of the time that would be spent searching for individuals. The Office 
of General Counsel would have a more difficult time finding individuals on enforcement matters. 
 
Wildlife Services 
$ 20,000.00 - ODAFF Wildlife Services is requesting approval for the City of Norman 
Cooperative Agreement regarding the control of wildlife for the City.  

 
 



7 
 

$106,500.00 - ODAFF Wildlife Services is requesting approval for fuel, maintenance and hangar 
rent for the two (2) Federal helicopters for FY24 that is used in the state’s aerial control of 
wildlife. The breakdown is as follows: 

- $55,000 for fuel; 
- $4,800 hangar rent  
- $11,700 hangar rent  
- $35,000 maintenance  

 
 
$769,000.00 -ODAFF Wildlife Services is requesting approval for the cooperative agreement 
with USDA APHIS Wildlife Services which will provide damage management activities to 
farmers and ranchers in Oklahoma. Activities are related to damages incurred from feral swine, 
beavers, coyotes and avian predators. Not approving this agreement would mean significant 
financial loss to Oklahoma Agriculture due to wildlife damage. 

 
 
$68,000 - ODAFF Wildlife Services is requesting approval to purchase ten camera/panel trap 
systems to be utilized at feral swine trap locations, placed strategically across the state.  These 
systems will allow for remote viewing of swine traps from any distance away.  This will allow 
the wildlife specialist to also maintain bait levels at the traps without having to physically go and 
“check” the traps.  The savings here in gas and mileage is significant.  These systems will also 
allow the specialist to “drop” the door on swine traps when the trap has a significant number of 
pigs inside.  A simple command to release the gate is functioned through an app or website.  The 
specialist is alerted by text message that there are pigs in the trap, the live feed is turned on and if 
deemed necessary the door is remotely dropped. 
Not approving of this purchase will mean we continue operating in a less efficient 
way.  Currently, traps must be visited on a daily basis to see if pigs are caught or if more bait is 
required.  This way of conducting trapping operations is a lot less efficient and costs the agency 
more dollars due to increased visits and mileage. 
 
 























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, FOOD, AND FORESTRY 

v. Jason Taylor

Case File No. OGC-22-90 

Summary of Facts: This is a default judgment from the ALJ from January. This case involved 

a use inspection from our CPS inspectors. This company was not on file as being licensed to 

perform commercial pesticide operations. Inspectors observed his employees making an 

application of Lesco Three-Way Select Herbicide without being certified. 

Statute or Rule Violation: : 2 O.S. § 3-82 (A)l; 2 O.S. § 3-86 (A)l5 

Proposed Administrative Penalty: The penalty was assessed at $750 

Deviations: Default Judgement from ALJ 

Other Actions Required: None. 

OGC Attorney: Brady Robison 




























	#1 - Agenda
	#5 - April Minutes
	#7 - Section I - Tab A - Administrative Services
	#7 - Section I - Tab B - Laboratory Services
	JUNE 2023 BOARD REPORT
	ADPDB8B.tmp
	B2

	ADP8812.tmp
	B2


	#7 - Section I - Tab C - Forestry Services
	#7 - Section I - Tab D - Consumer Protection Services
	JUNE 1, 2023 BOARD MEETING
	Feed Program

	Program Performance
	Fertilizer Program


	#7 - Section I - Tab E - Animal Industry
	#7 - Section I - Tab F - Wildlife Services
	#7 - Section I - Tab G - Statistics
	#7 - Section I - Tab H - Market Development
	MARKET NEWS SERVICES
	 OKC NATIONAL STOCKYARDS (OKC) STEER AND HEIFERS
	April 4, 2023-May 15, 2023 (up from 102 subscribers last report).
	 Voice Messaging System:
	o Monthly Total: April 4, 2023-May 15, 2023 6,320 Accessed Times
	o Last Report: February 17, 2023-April 4, 2023 6,587 Accessed Times
	o Compared to Last Month: Accessed Times-is DOWN 267 on Accessed times
	 Oklahoma Agriculture Market News
	o Facebook Page
	 Likes/Followers 444
	 UP 25 Likes/Followers
	  People reached through pasted report: 770 people
	 Oklahoma Hay Directory
	o Hay Directory
	 Currently have 14 producers that have hay
	 Hay Report

	#7 - Section I - Tab I - AMES
	#7 - Section I - Tab J - Office of General Counsel
	#7 - Section I - Tab K - Food Safety Services
	FOOD SAFETY REPORT MAY 2023
	Poultry and Egg Section
	Organic Foods Section
	Produce Safety Section



	#7 - Section I - Tab L - Communications 
	Blank Page
	#10 - Approval of Cases
	Blank Page
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - A - CPS - 5 Star Lawn & Landscape
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - B - CPS - 7-Eleven (OGC-22-510)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - C - CPS - 7-Eleven (OGC-22-742)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - D - CPS - B & B Paint & Weed Service LLC
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - E - CPS - Madison Davis
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - F - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-22-754)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - G - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-22-755)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - H - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-22-758)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - I - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-23-49)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - J - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-23-50)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - K - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-23-51)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - L - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-23-52)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - M - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-23-53)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - N - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-23-55)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - O - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-23-58)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - P - CPS - Dollar General (OGC-23-62)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - Q - CPS - Edko LLC
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - R - CPS - Tyler Enyeart
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - S - CPS - Family Dollar (OGC-23-48)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - T - CPS - Family Dollar (OGC-23-54)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - U - CPS - Family Dollar (OGC-23-56)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - V - CPS - Family Dollar Dollar Tree (OGC-23-57)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - W - CPS - Tanner Harper
	#10 -Stipulations Tab - X - CPS - Quality Ranch LLC
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - Y - CPS - Red Dirt Grow LLC
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - Z - CPS - Paige Sherry
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - Z.2 - CPS - Southeast Vegetation MGMT
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - Z.3 - CPS - Brent Thompson
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - Z.4 - CPS - Tractor Supply Co (OGC-22-713)
	#10 - Stipulations Tab - Z.5 - CPS - TRactor Supply Co (OGC-22-714)
	Blank Page
	#12 - Consent Order Tab - A - AMES - TRi-State Feeders LLC
	#12 - Consent Order Tab - B - CPS - AAPEST (OGC-22-703; OGC-22-744)
	Blank Page
	#14 - Final Order Tab - A - CPS - Security Pest Control Inc
	#14 - Final Order Tab - B - CPS - Jason Taylor
	#9 - June Purchases.pdf
	Administration
	FY23 – Special Ops Uniforms -$8775
	Investigative Services is requesting Board Approval for (9) bullet proof vests for the Investigative Service Agents as the ones they currently have expired in 2021 and the agents safety is of the most importance in the job that they perform.
	Agricultural Statistics
	Printing of Oklahoma Agricultural Statistics annual bulletins, and Oklahoma Pocket Facts for FY 2024 - $12,000 dollars.
	AMES
	A request of $30,000
	The AEMS Division has obtained permission to contract with Ideagen, April 2023, to develop a program that will assist in the modernize of our operations. The development will take several months from May 2023 – March 2024 after which there will be an ...
	AEMS seeks approval to continue the contract with Ideagen beyond the programming and development stage to the support and maintenance which will begin March 2024. Ideagen is part of the Statewide contract.
	Animal Industry
	Consumer Protection Services
	FY2024 Oklahoma Boll Weevil Eradication Organization - $6,000.00
	Food Services
	Oklahoma State University Produce Safety Training Contract Approval --$74,000
	Outreach and education activities including teaching Produce Safety Alliance classes across the state, developing educational materials and videos, assisting farms with the On-Farm Readiness Review, measuring the effectiveness of these trainings to de...
	The Produce Safety Alliance class is the only class currently recognized by the FDA to satisfy the produce farm manager training portion of the produce safety rule.  To teach this class, a team of certified trainers and a certified lead trainer is req...
	Win Wam computer software up keep for produce safety inspections $5,400.00.
	This computer program is used for completing FDA produce safety compliance inspections.  This would be for updates and for software update fees.  This would be paid for by the FDA Produce Grant.
	Forestry Services
	FY24 - $10,000 Federal Funds
	This request when approved will renew the Oklahoma Gardening Grant. This is a longstanding education and outreach grant sponsoring the popular Oklahoma Gardening program produced by OSU.  This grant supports tree related educational programming.  With...
	FY24 - $15,000 Federal Funds
	Renew nonbinding contract with the Oklahoma Urban and Community Forestry Council to perform services to assist in implementation of the continuing education component of Oklahoma's Urban & Community Forestry program in accordance with federal grant pr...
	FY24 - $60,000 Federal Funds
	Award Federal pass-through funding to communities for the Urban and Community Forestry Grants – Up to $60,000.  These grants support projects related to advancing local community forestry programs.   Without these projects, we would lose an avenue of ...
	FY24 - $230,000 Federal Funds
	Award Federal pass-through funding up to $230,000 to assist financially-challenged cities, neighborhoods, and communities for recovery of winter ice storm and cold damage.  These grants support projects related to helping lower income neighborhoods an...
	FY24 - $100,000 Federal Funds
	Award Federal pass-through funding up to $100,000 to assist financially-challenged cities, neighborhoods, and communities with heat mitigation, promotion of food forests, increase equitable access to urban/community tree canopy and to promote other va...
	FY24 - $101,760 Federal Funds
	Award Federal pass-through funding up to $101,760 for tree canopy assessment and inventory project in Oklahoma City metropolitan area to determine canopy loss from 2020 ice storm, develop a plan to assist with storm water management, flooding and othe...
	FY24- $8,000 Wildland Firefighting Helmets
	OFS is in need of purchasing new wildland firefighting helmets for our firefighters.  One hundred fifteen (115) helmets will be purchased through FedMall.  New helmets are essential PPE for our firefighters to ensure they are safe as they protect life...
	FY24 - $15,000
	Aerial pesticide spray application to the seed production pine tree orchards at the Forest Tree Improvement Center at Idabel.  Aerial pesticide spray will be applied to the cone crop in our genetically improved pine tree orchards.  This will maximize ...
	FY 24 Temporary Bridge Grant $175,000 (purchase, cost-share, and pass-through)
	Justification: Encourage the use of temporary bridges for stream crossings on timber harvesting and related forestry operations. This will help mitigate water quality impact by reducing erosion, sediment delivery, and stream bed disturbance. The use o...
	FY 24 - $55,000
	Purchase ESRI ArcGIS Online Licenses (Federal Grant) – Justification:  This allows the OFS Incident Management Team and fire personnel to utilize Collector, giving our firefighters real-time wildland fire data exchange.  Data collected from the Collec...
	FY23 – Firefighting bulldozer, $574,121 (Federal Funding–SFA Response)
	Purchase two (2) Type 3, John Deere 650P bulldozers that will be used for state-wide wildfire response, suppression and mitigation activities. The horsepower and hydrostatic transmission of this type is well suited to the diverse wildland fuels and te...
	Market Development
	FY2023 – Agritourism Wine Trails Category Guide – graphic design services – Funded entirely by the Viticulture and Enology Revolving Fund - $24,600.00.
	FY2024 – AgHERculture Summit – facility rental and food – $17,000.00
	FY2024 - Resilient Food Systems Food Infrastructure Program – USDA Cooperative Agreement - $6,407,933.00
	FY2024 – Kyle McMichael – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - $10,000.00
	FY2024 – Yalonda Burton – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - $10,000.00
	FY2024 – Jennifer Hernandez – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - $5,000.00
	FY2024 – Colby Craige – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - $5,000.00
	FY2024 – Dineen Riemenschneider – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - $5,000.00
	FY2024 – Mangum Feed & Farm Store, LLC – Healthy Food Finance Grant - $10,000.00
	Office of General Counsel
	A request of $8,000
	To continue contract to perform services as a Hearing Officer/Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) in cases assigned, in accordance with signed agreement on file with the Oklahoma Depart of
	Agriculture Food, and Forestry. The vendor will perform services at an hourly rate of $125.00/hour.
	FY24 - $36,942.13 for GovQA 2024 contract.
	Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for approval. GovQA is a new product that will allow OGC and the rest of the agency to more easily and efficiently fill open records requests. It will allow all records ...
	Contract renewal for OGC Westlaw and Clear online legal research system FY 2024 effective 7/1/2023-6/30/2024. Contract not to exceed $30,000.
	1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for approval.
	Westlaw is a necessary legal research tool for the agency attorneys. It allows them to easily and quickly review federal, Oklahoma, and other states’ case law and statutes to better serve the agency. CLEAR allows the Office of General Counsel and Inve...
	2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.
	Without Westlaw, agency attorneys would be unable to efficiently research federal and state law, resulting in more time looking for information and less time actually completing projects and assisting the agency. Without CLEAR, Investigative Services ...
	Wildlife Services

	#9 - June Purchases 2.0.pdf
	Administration
	FY23 – Special Ops Uniforms -$8775
	Investigative Services is requesting Board Approval for (9) bullet proof vests for the Investigative Service Agents as the ones they currently have expired in 2021 and the agents safety is of the most importance in the job that they perform.
	Agricultural Statistics
	Printing of Oklahoma Agricultural Statistics annual bulletins, and Oklahoma Pocket Facts for FY 2024 - $12,000 dollars.
	AMES
	A request of $30,000
	The AEMS Division has obtained permission to contract with Ideagen, April 2023, to develop a program that will assist in the modernize of our operations. The development will take several months from May 2023 – March 2024 after which there will be an ...
	AEMS seeks approval to continue the contract with Ideagen beyond the programming and development stage to the support and maintenance which will begin March 2024. Ideagen is part of the Statewide contract.
	Animal Industry
	Consumer Protection Services
	FY2024 Oklahoma Boll Weevil Eradication Organization - $6,000.00
	Food Services
	Oklahoma State University Produce Safety Training Contract Approval --$74,000
	Outreach and education activities including teaching Produce Safety Alliance classes across the state, developing educational materials and videos, assisting farms with the On-Farm Readiness Review, measuring the effectiveness of these trainings to de...
	The Produce Safety Alliance class is the only class currently recognized by the FDA to satisfy the produce farm manager training portion of the produce safety rule.  To teach this class, a team of certified trainers and a certified lead trainer is req...
	Win Wam computer software up keep for produce safety inspections $5,400.00.
	This computer program is used for completing FDA produce safety compliance inspections.  This would be for updates and for software update fees.  This would be paid for by the FDA Produce Grant.
	Forestry Services
	FY24 - $10,000 Federal Funds
	This request when approved will renew the Oklahoma Gardening Grant. This is a longstanding education and outreach grant sponsoring the popular Oklahoma Gardening program produced by OSU.  This grant supports tree related educational programming.  With...
	FY24 - $15,000 Federal Funds
	Renew nonbinding contract with the Oklahoma Urban and Community Forestry Council to perform services to assist in implementation of the continuing education component of Oklahoma's Urban & Community Forestry program in accordance with federal grant pr...
	FY24 - $60,000 Federal Funds
	Award Federal pass-through funding to communities for the Urban and Community Forestry Grants – Up to $60,000.  These grants support projects related to advancing local community forestry programs.   Without these projects, we would lose an avenue of ...
	FY24 - $230,000 Federal Funds
	Award Federal pass-through funding up to $230,000 to assist financially-challenged cities, neighborhoods, and communities for recovery of winter ice storm and cold damage.  These grants support projects related to helping lower income neighborhoods an...
	FY24 - $100,000 Federal Funds
	Award Federal pass-through funding up to $100,000 to assist financially-challenged cities, neighborhoods, and communities with heat mitigation, promotion of food forests, increase equitable access to urban/community tree canopy and to promote other va...
	FY24 - $101,760 Federal Funds
	Award Federal pass-through funding up to $101,760 for tree canopy assessment and inventory project in Oklahoma City metropolitan area to determine canopy loss from 2020 ice storm, develop a plan to assist with storm water management, flooding and othe...
	FY24- $8,000 Wildland Firefighting Helmets
	OFS is in need of purchasing new wildland firefighting helmets for our firefighters.  One hundred fifteen (115) helmets will be purchased through FedMall.  New helmets are essential PPE for our firefighters to ensure they are safe as they protect life...
	FY24 - $15,000
	Aerial pesticide spray application to the seed production pine tree orchards at the Forest Tree Improvement Center at Idabel.  Aerial pesticide spray will be applied to the cone crop in our genetically improved pine tree orchards.  This will maximize ...
	FY 24 Temporary Bridge Grant $175,000 (purchase, cost-share, and pass-through)
	Justification: Encourage the use of temporary bridges for stream crossings on timber harvesting and related forestry operations. This will help mitigate water quality impact by reducing erosion, sediment delivery, and stream bed disturbance. The use o...
	FY 24 - $55,000
	Purchase ESRI ArcGIS Online Licenses (Federal Grant) – Justification:  This allows the OFS Incident Management Team and fire personnel to utilize Collector, giving our firefighters real-time wildland fire data exchange.  Data collected from the Collec...
	FY23 – Firefighting bulldozer, $574,121 (Federal Funding–SFA Response)
	Purchase two (2) Type 3, John Deere 650P bulldozers that will be used for state-wide wildfire response, suppression and mitigation activities. The horsepower and hydrostatic transmission of this type is well suited to the diverse wildland fuels and te...
	Laboratory Services
	FY23 - $15,000.00 – PCR
	Purchase of a molecular detection platform for the capabilities to test for Campylobacter and other
	pathogenic organisms in dairy.
	FY23 - $5700.00 – DI Water and Maintenance
	Contract purchase of analytical grade water for laboratory testing and tank maintenance. Contract
	effective 07/01/23 through 06/30/24.
	FY23 - $7,436.00 – Eastern Laboratory Services, Ltd.
	Contract for ELS to provide Somatic Cell Standards (SCC) for milk testing. Contract effective
	07/01/23 through 06/30/24.
	Market Development
	FY2023 – Agritourism Wine Trails Category Guide – graphic design services – Funded entirely by the Viticulture and Enology Revolving Fund - $24,600.00.
	FY2024 – AgHERculture Summit – facility rental and food – $17,000.00
	FY2024 - Resilient Food Systems Food Infrastructure Program – USDA Cooperative Agreement - $6,407,933.00
	FY2024 – Kyle McMichael – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - $10,000.00
	FY2024 – Yalonda Burton – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - $10,000.00
	FY2024 – Jennifer Hernandez – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - $5,000.00
	FY2024 – Colby Craige – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - $5,000.00
	FY2024 – Dineen Riemenschneider – Veteran or Young Farmer/Ag Enhancement & Diversification Grant - $5,000.00
	FY2024 – Mangum Feed & Farm Store, LLC – Healthy Food Finance Grant - $10,000.00
	Office of General Counsel
	A request of $8,000
	To continue contract to perform services as a Hearing Officer/Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) in cases assigned, in accordance with signed agreement on file with the Oklahoma Depart of
	Agriculture Food, and Forestry. The vendor will perform services at an hourly rate of $125.00/hour.
	FY24 - $36,942.13 for GovQA 2024 contract.
	Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for approval. GovQA is a new product that will allow OGC and the rest of the agency to more easily and efficiently fill open records requests. It will allow all records ...
	Contract renewal for OGC Westlaw and Clear online legal research system FY 2024 effective 7/1/2023-6/30/2024. Contract not to exceed $30,000.
	1. Brief description of the proposed expense, cost, its necessity, and any deadlines for approval.
	Westlaw is a necessary legal research tool for the agency attorneys. It allows them to easily and quickly review federal, Oklahoma, and other states’ case law and statutes to better serve the agency. CLEAR allows the Office of General Counsel and Inve...
	2. Consequence(s) and cost (if any) if the proposed expense is not approved.
	Without Westlaw, agency attorneys would be unable to efficiently research federal and state law, resulting in more time looking for information and less time actually completing projects and assisting the agency. Without CLEAR, Investigative Services ...
	Wildlife Services




